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diplomatic IMMUNITIES AND PRIVILEGES ACT, 2004

DIPLOMATIC IMMUNITIES AND PRIVILEGES 
(AFRICA FINANCE CORPORATION) ORDER, 2016

A rrangement of Paragraphs -

fmgraph :
Part I— E stablishment and L egal Capacity

1. Establishment of the Africa Finance Corporation.
2. Legal Capacity.

Part II-—E xemptions and Immunities

3. Exemption from Search, etc.
4. Exemption of the Corporation, Officers and Representatives of the 

Corporation from certain Taxes, Rates and Customs duties.
5. Immunities and Privileges of Members, Officers and Representatives 

of the Corporation.
6. Immunities and Privileges of Experts on Mission engaged by the 

Coiporation.

Part III— M iscellaneous'
l  List of Persons to be published. ’

Reference to the Corporation to include reference to the subsdiaries, etc.
9. Revocation and Savings provisions.
W' Interpretations.

Citation.
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S.L No. 14 o f  2016

DIPLOMATIC IM M U N IT IE S AND PRIVILEGES ACT, 2004

DIPLOMATIC -IMMUNITIES AND PRIVILEGES 
(AFRICA FINANCE CORPORATION) ORDER, 2016

[20th Day of November, 2016] Commence- 
; ment.

In e x e rc is e  o f  t h e  p o w e r s  c o n f e r r e d  o n  m e  b y  s e c tio n  11 o f  th e  D ip lo m a tic  
Immunities a n d  P r iv i le g e s  A c t ,  C a p .  D 9 , L a w s  o f  th e  F e d e r a t io n  o f  N ig e ria , 2 0 0 4 , 
and all o th e r  p o w e rs  e n a b l in g  m e  in t h a t  b e h a lf , I, Geoffrey Oxyeama, H o n o u ra b le  
Minister o f  F o r e ig n  A f f a i r s ,  m a k e  th e  fo llo w in g  O r d e r —

Part I—E stablishment of the Africa Finance Corporation

1. The Africa Finance Corporation (here in this Order referred to as Establishment
"the Corporation55) an International Organization of which the Government of the Africa
Nigeria and the Governments of other foreign Sovereign States are members, Nation 
isestablished in the Federal Republ ic of Nigeria for the purpose of the objectives
stated in the Headquarters Agreement between the Corporation and the Federal 
Government of Nigeria. . .

2. —(1) The Corporation shall be a body corporate and in particular, Legal 
shall have full capacity to contract, acquire and dispose of movable and Capacity, 
immovable property', and to institute legal proceedings.

(2) The Corporation shall have immunity from suits and legal processes, 
except where in any particular case, it has expressly waived such immunity.

Part II—E xemptions and Immunities

3.—(1) All the properties, archives and assets of the Corporation shall Exemption 
to exempt from search, seizure, requisition and confiscation. from Search?

. . . • ,. ■ etc- 
(2) Notwithstand ing the provisions of sub-paragraph (1) of this paragraph,

^properties, archives and assets of the Corporation shall be subject to the 
kws of Nigeria, to the extent that such search, seizure or requisition is in the 
Merest of public safety or order.

4.—(1) The Corporation, its assets, properties, income, operations and 
transactions authorized by the Headquarters Agreement, shall be exempted 
from tiaxation, customs duties, stamp duties and liability for the collection or 
Ptymehtofany tax or duty:- ” . .

(2) The properties of the Corporation shall be exempted from levies in 
Aspect of certain non-beneficial rates and taxes, that is to say, property rates 
tased on rateable value of the property and other municipal rates normally 
%able hy 'property owners but which are pot charges levied for specific 

’rendered: . ;-

Exem ption 
o f  the
C orporation. 

* Officers and 
R epresen ta­
tives o f  t h e . 
C orporation  
from  certain  
Taxes. R ates 
and C ustom s 
D u ties .



(3) All goods which are imported or exported by the-Corporation and 
r  which are necessary for the proper performance of its official activities, shall

be exempted from all customs duties and other charges except payments for 
services rendered.

(4) Subject to compliance with the applicable laws and regulations of 
Nigeria, the Corporation shall be exempted from taxes on the importation of 
telecommunication system and transmission equipment directly imported for 
its exclusive official use in Nigeria or on the importation of official 
correspondence, publications, documents, still and moving pictures, films and 
sound recorders directly imported by the Corporation.

(5) Subject to compliance with the applicable laws and regulations of 
Nigeria, the Corporation shall be exempted from taxes on equipment directly 
imported by the Corporation for its official use in Nigeria and for exportation 
or importation of any publication.

*
Unities 5.—r-( 1) Except where in any particular case, any immunity or privilege
af is waived in the case of representatives of member states, by the member
ftinlegeso f  states whom they represent; and in the case of persons designated to serve 
leers and on Board of Directors of the Corporation, their alternates, advisers, officials 
irpresenta- and employees of the Corporation, by the Board of Directors, acting on behalf 
ires of the  of the Corporation, the representatives of member states and persons 
Corporation, designated to serve on the Board of Directors of the Corporation and, as 

appropriate, their alternates, advisers, officials and employees of the 
Corporation shai I enjoy—

(tf) immunity from legal process of every kind in respect of words 
spoken or written and all acts done by them in the course of the 
performance of their official duties, not being traffic offences or 
damages caused by motor vehicles;

(b) exemption from income tax in respect of salaries and emoluments
received by foreign employees; .

(c) exemption from immigration restriction and alien registration 
requirements; and

(d) official immunity whilst exercising their functions as officials of the 
Corporation and during any journey to and from Nigeria including immunity 
from personal arrest or detention and from seizure of their personal baggage 
and inviolability of all papers and documents relating to the work of the 
Corporation.

(2) The Chief Executive Officer, Executive Directors, Chief Operating 
Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Risk Officer and Chief Legal Officer 
o f the corporation shall be accorded in respect of themselves, spouses and 
children under the age of twenty - one, immunity from suit and legal process,

*30
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Inviolability of their residence, and exemption or relief from taxes, as is 
accorded to any envoy or a foreign sovereign power accredited to Nigeria, 
their spouse and children except where in any particular case, any immunity 
orprivilege is waived by the Corporation.

(3) A foreign official of the Corporation shall be entitled to exemption 
from import duty in respect of personal effects and articles imported, including 
one duty free car imported within the first nine months of taking up appointment 
orarrival in Nigeria.

(4) Nothing in sub-paragraph 5 (I) (b) ofthis Paragraph shall be construed 
as entitling any person to enjoy such immunities or exceptions if he is a 
Nigerian, a permanent foreign resident of Nigeria, a domestic servant or a 
locally recruited staff.

6.—(1) Except where in any particular case any immunity or privilege 
is waived by the Board of Directors, acting on behalf of the Corporation, any 
expert employed on a mission on behalf of the Corporation shall enjoy—

(a) in respect of words spoken or written and all acts done by him in the 
course of the performance of official duties, immunity from suit and legal 
process as is accorded to an envoy of a foreign sovereign power accredited 
to Nigeria;

{b) while present in Nigeria for the discharge of his duties, immunity 
from personal arrest or detention as is accorded to an envoy of a foreign 
sovereign power accredited to Nigeria;

■(c) exemption from income tax in respect of emoluments received by 
professional staff as officers or experts engaged by the Corporation; and

(d) while present in Nigeria for the discharge of his duties, inviolability 
for all papers and documents relating to the work on which he is engaged 
for the Corporation, including immunity from personal arrest or detention 
and from search and seizure of their personal baggage as is accorded to 
any envoy of a foreign power accredited to Nigeria. u

(2) Notwithstanding the provisions of sub-paragraph (1) of this paragraph, 
where an expert is a citizen of Nigeria, a permanent foreign resident of - 
Nigeria, a domestic servant or a locally recruited staff, he shall not enjoy any 
'fnmunity under sub-paragraph (1) o f this paragraph.

Part III— M iscellaneous

7.—(1) The names of the persons to whom the provisions of this Order 
aPply shall be set forth in a list compiled and published from time to time by 

Minister under section 11(2) of the Act.

Immunities
and
privileges o f  
Experts on 
M ission 
engaged by 
the
Corporation.

List of 
Persons to 
be
published.
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(2) The list of persons referred to under sub-paragraph (1) of this 
Paragraph shall show with regards to each person, the date as from which, 
for the purpose of this Order, he first held the office or employment in question 
and the date when he ceased to hold that office or employment.

Reference to 8. Every reference to the Corporation in this Order includes reference
the Corpora- to the subsidiaries and affiliates of the Corporation established inNigeria.
lion to •
include 
reference to  
ihe subsidia­
ries. etc.
Revocation 9.—(1) The Diplomatic Immunities and Privileges (Africa Finance
indSavings Corporation) Order No. 23 of February 15,2010 is revoked.
provisions.

(2) The Diplomatic Immunities and Privileges (Africa Finance 
Corporation) Order No. 60 of July 16,2014 is revoked.

(3) Without prejudice to section 6 of the Interpretation Act, the revocation 
of the Orders specified in sub-paragraphs (1), (2) and (3) of this Paragraph 
shall not affect anything done or purported to be done under or pursuant to the 
revoked Orders.

10. In this Order—

"Act" means the Diplomatic Immunities and Privileges Act, Cap. D9, 
Laws of the Federation of Nigeria, 2004.

**Applicable Laws” includes laws for the protection of public health, 
public order and security, protection of revenue, the prevention of disease 
in plants and animals and otherwise in the public interest.

11. This Order may be cited as Diplomatic Immunities and Privileges 
(Africa Finance Corporation) Order, 2016.

. M ade at Abuja this 20th day of November, 2016.

Inteipretations.

Citation,

Geoffrey O nyeama,
Honourable Minister o f Foreign Affairs

E xplanatory N ote.
(This note does not form part o f the above Order but is 

intended to explain its purport)

This Order seeks to establish and grant immunities and privileges to.the 
Africa Finance Corporation in Nigeria pursuant to section 11 of the Diplomatic 
Immunities and Privileges Act, Cap. D9, Laws of the Federation of Nigeria, 
2004 for the actualization of its objectives as spelt out in its Headquarters 
Agreement.
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(2) The list of persons referred to under sub-paragraph (!) of this 
Paragraph shall show with regards to each person, the date as from which, 
for the purpose of this Order, he first held the office or employment in question 
and the date when he ceased to hold that office or employment.

Reference to  8. Every reference to the Corporation in this Order includes reference
die Corpora- t0 the subsidiaries and affiliates of the Corporation established in Nigeria.
(ion to .
iadude
reference to
(hesubsidia-
rieietc. ' ‘
Revocation 9.— (1) The Diplomatic Immunities and Privileges (Africa Finance
ifdSavings Corporation) Order No. 23 of February 15,2010 is revoked.
provisions.

(2) The Diplomatic Immunities and Privileges (Africa Finance 
Corporation) Order No. 60 of July 16,2014 is revoked.

(3) Without prejudice to section 6 of the Interpretation Act, the revocation 
of the Orders specified in sub-paragraphs (.1), (2) and (3) of this Paragraph 

- shall riot affect anything done or purported to be done under or pursuant to the 
revoked Orders.

“̂ 'ons. 10. In this Order—
"Act" means the Diplomatic Immunities and Privileges Act, Cap. D9, 

Laws of the Federation of Nigeria, 2004.
“Applicable Lcw>s” includes laws for the protection of public health, 

public order and security, protection of revenue, the prevention of disease 
in plants and animals and otherwise in the public interest.

itatl0n' i l .  This Order may be cited as Diplomatic Immunities and Privileges
(Africa Finance Corporation) Order, 2016.

Made at Abuja this 20th day ofNovember, 2016.

Geoffrey Onyeama,
Honourable Minister of Foreign Affairs

• E xplanatory NoTt
(This note does not form part o f the above Order but is 

intended to explain its purport)

This Order seeks to establish and grant immunities and privileges to.the 
Africa Finance Corporation in Nigeria pursuant to section 11 of the Diplomatic 
Immunities and Privileges Act, Cap. D9, Laws of the Federation of Nigeria, 
2004 for the actualization of its objectives-as spelt out in its Headquarters 
Agreement. ’
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C E N T R A L  B A N K  O F N IG ERIA 
C O R P O R A T E  IN FO R M A TIO N

Directors

Executives :
Mr Godwin E m efie le  (con) * • ..
Mallam Sanusi L a m id o  S a n u s i  (con) **
Dr Sarah A lade (oon) .......................
Alhaji Suleim an B a ra u  (oon)
MrAdebayo A d e la b u  * * * .................... .
DrOkwu Jo sep h  N n a n n a  * * * *  .. 
MrBabatunde L e m o  (ofr) * * * * *
Dr Kingsley M o g h a lu  (oon) ******

.. G ov ern o r

.. Deputy Governor {Economic Policy Directorate)

.. Deputy Governor {Operations Directorate)

.. Deputy Governor {Corporate Services Directorate) 

.. Deputy Governor {Financial System Stability)

Non-executives:
Mr. Jonah O g u n n iy i O tu n la  
Mr. Anthony A d e iz a  A d a b a  
Alhaji M uham m ad  M u s a  K a f a r a t i  
MrCollins C h ik e  C h ik e lu b a  
MrAyuli Je m id e
Mrs A nastasia M . D a n ie l - N w a o b ia  
Mr Stanley I. L a w so n  * * * * * * *
Stephen O sa g ie d e  O r o n s a y e  * * * * * * * *

* Appointed 3rd June, 2014
** Retired 2nd June, 2014 {This person was a Governor until his retirement)
*** Appointed 9th April, 2014
m * Appointed 3rd February, 2015
***** Retired 10th January, 2014
****** Retired 5th November, 2014
******* Appointed 2nd August, 2014
******** Retired 26th June, 2014
Corporate Secretary^
Yunusa Mohammed Sanusi 
Central Bank o f Nigeria 
Abuja. • ■ '
Auditors

Pricewaterhouse Coopers ;
252E Muri Okunola Street 
Victoria Island, Lagos.
Head O ff ic e :
Central Bank o f Nigeria
Plot 33, Abubakar Tafawa Balewa Way
Central Business D istrict
Cadastral Zone
PCT, Abuja
Nigeria.

Ernst & Young
UBA House, 10th & 13th Floor 
57 Marina, Lagos

.7



DIRECTORS’ R E P O R T  O N  T H E  C O N SO L ID A T E D  A N D  SEPARATE FIN A N C IA L  
S T A T E M E N T S  F O R  T H E  Y E A R  E N D E D  31 ST D E C E M B E R , 2014 •

adduction

The c o n so lid a ted  a n d  s e p a r a t e  f in a n c ia l  s ta te m e n ts  o f  th e  C e n tra l B an k  o f  N ig e r ia  fo r  the  
pended  3 1 s t D e c e m b e r ,  2 0 1 4  w e re  p re p a re d  u s in g  th e  In te rn a tio n a l F in a n c ia l R e p o r tin g  
Standards (IF R S ).

The Bank’s fin an c ia l s ta te m e n ts  w e re  c o n v e rted  to  the In ternational Financial R eporting  Standards 
b20I3.2OI4 f in an c ia l s ta te m e n ts  h e re b y  p re se n te d  c o n tin u ed  to  be p re sen ted  in the  new ly  adopted  
Eamework.

toULTS

The Net In co m e  f o r  th e  y e a r  is N 3 5 .4 2 2  b illio n  fo r the  B an k  w hile  the  G ro u p ’s N e t Incom e is 
1133,893 billion. In  lin e  w ith  th e  p ro v is io n s  o f  th e  F isca l R e sp o n s ib ility  A c t 2 0 1 1 ,2 0 %  o f  the  net 
bcome of the b an k  ( e x c lu s iv e  o f  u n re a l iz e d  g a in )  w ill be c red ited  to  re ta in ed  e a rn in g s  w hile  the 
face will be p a id  to  th e  F e d e ra l  G o v e rn m e n t o f  N ig e ria . A fte r  c o n sid e rin g  the  e f fe c ts .o f  the 
r̂ealized gains .as s ta te d  in n o te  3 3 a , no  p a y m e n ts  w ill be m ade  to th e  Federal G o v e rn m en t in the 

fnancial year.

Corporate Governance

The B oard o f  D ir e c to r s  is th e  h ig h e s t  p o lic y  m ak in g  o rg an  o f  th e  B an k . B o a rd  d ec is io n s are 
taken with su b m iss io n s  f ro m  v a r io u s  b o a rd  c o m m itte e s  and  d e p a rtm e n ta l d irec to rs .

The C om m ittees o f  th e  B o a rd  a r e :

I. Committee o f  G o v e rn o rs .
I Finance and  G e n e ra l  P u r p o s e s  C o m m itte e , 
i  Audit and R is k  M a n a g e m e n t  C o m m itte e .
* Establishment Committee.
V Major Contracts Tenders Committee.
6 Investment Committee.
I Monetary Policy Committee.
I Corporate Strategy Committee.

Financial System Stability Committee. ;
to Remuneration, Ethics and Anti-Corruption.

CBN Pension Fund M anagement.
Apart from the Committee o f  Governors which is the executive management of the Bank, the 

^position o f the other Committees includes the right mix of both the executive and non- executive 
Actors for effective good governance.

A centralized integrated risk management co-ordination function is performed by the Risk 
^agement Department (RM D). The role o f the RMD is to develop, maintain and promote an 
Update risk management policy, framework, approach and culture, methodologies, processes 
^  support systems.

CENTRAL BANK OF NIGERIA
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The R M D  is a ls o  r e s p o n s ib le  fo r  c o -o rd in a tin g  and facilita ting  an in te g ra te d  an d  un ifo rm  
compliance m a n a g e m e n t p r o c e s s  in  th e  G ro u p ; ad v an c in g  and facilitating  sp e c ia liz ed  o p e ra tio n a l 
risk m anagem ent p r o c e s s ,  in c lu d in g  b u s in e s s  co n tin u ity , o ccu p a tio n a l h e a lth  an d  s a fe ty  an d
information secu rity .

The In tern a l A u d i t  D e p a r tm e n t  o f  th e  B a n k  p ro v id es independent o b jec tiv e  a ssu ra n ce  o f  the  
adequacy and  e f fe c t iv e n e s s  o f  c o n tro l ,  r isk  m an ag em en t and governance  p ro cess  o f  th e  g roup .

Ethics Management

The B ank , as th e  C e n tr a l  B a n k  o f  N ig e r ia , m u st be, and be seen to  be, an in stitu tion  o f  integrity  
which m ain ta ins th e  h ig h e s t  e th ic a l  s ta n d a rd s .

, The ex ec u tiv e  m a n a g e m e n t  o f  th e  B a n k  is in ten se ly  aw are o f  this core  value  and expecta tion , 
and commits i ts e lf  to  c r e a t in g  a  w o rk in g  e n v iro n m en t that encourages and facilitates honesty, integrity 
and ethical b e h a v io u r .

The B a n k  is c o m m it te d  to  q u a lity , m e r i to c ra c y  and  in ternational best p ractice .

The D ire c to rs  p r e s e n t  b e lo w  th e  s ta te  o f  A ffa irs  o f  the  G roup  and the  B ank  as at 31 st D ecem ber, 
2014, the re su lts  a n d  th e  c a s h f lo w s  o f  th e  G ro u p  and the  B ank  in acco rd an ce  w ith In ternational 
Financial R e p o r tin g  S ta n d a r d s ,  C B N  A c t  an d  o th e r  re lev an t law s.

S ig n e d

By Order of the Board 
C o m p a n y  S ecre ta ry  

21st May, 2015
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In accordance with the provisions of the Central Bank of Nigeria Act, 2007, the Directors are 
sponsible for the preparation of consolidated and separate financial statements which properly 
|rt$entthe state of affairs of the Central Bank of Nigeria at the end of the year and its income and 
expenditures for the year in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as 
iaiiedbythe International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

The responsibilities include ensuring that:
(0 the Central Bank of Nigeria keeps proper accounting records that disclose, with reasonable 

rcuracy, the financial position of the Group and comply with the requirements of International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB);

(//) appropriate and adequate internal controls are established to safeguard its assets and to 
prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities;

v
(Hi) the Central Bank of Nigeria prepares its consolidated and separate financial statements 

osiug suitable accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates 
fiat are consistently applied ; and

(rv) it is appropriate for the consolidated and separate financial statements to be prepared on a 
going concern basis.

The Governor and the Deputy Governors accept responsibility for the annual financial statements, 
tiiich have been prepared using appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and 
prudent judgments and estimates in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

The Directors are of the opinion that the financial statements give a true and fair view of the 
sale of the financial affairs of the Central Bank of Nigeria and of its income and expenditure and 
ash flows.

The Directors further accept responsibility for the maintenance of accounting records that may 
he relied upon in the preparation of consolidated and separate financial statements, as well as 
Equate systems of internal .financial control.

Nothing has come to the attention of the Directors to indicate that the Central Bank of Nigeria 
*ill not remain a going concern for at least twelve months from the date of this statement.

%edon behalf of the Board of Directors by:

CENTRAL BANK OFNIGERIA
Statement of D ir e c t o r s’ R esponsibilities in R elation to the F inancial Statements

S ig n ed  ! ' v  Signed

. Godwin I. Emefiele (con) Adebayo Adelabu

D irec to r  * D irector

I Number: F R C /2 0 1 3 /IO D N /0 0 0 0 0 0 0 J0 8 0  FRC Number: F R C /20l2 /iC A N /00000002303
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R E P O R T  O F  T H E  IN D E P E N D E N T  JO IN T AUDITORS TO TH E 
M E M B E R S  O F  C E N T R A L  BA N K  OF NIGERIA

We have a u d ite d  th e  a c c o m p a n y in g  c o n so lid a ted  and separate financial s ta tem en ts o f  C en tra l 
Bank of N igeria (“ th e  B a n k ” ) a n d  its  su b s id ia ry  (to g eth er “ the G roup”), which com prise  the statem ents 
of financial p o s it io n  a s  a t  3 1 s t  D e c e m b e r ,  2 0 1 4 , and the income statem ents, s ta tem en ts  o f  o th er 
comprehensive in c o m e ,  s ta te m e n ts  o f  c h a n g e s  in equ ity  and statem ents o f  cash flow s fo r  the y ear 
then ended, and a s u m m a r y  o f  s ig n if ic a n t  a cc o u n tin g  p o lic ies  and o ther exp lanato ry  no tes .

Directors’ Responsibility for the F inancial Statements

The D irec to rs  a re  r e s p o n s ib le  fo r  th e  p re p a ra tio n  and fair presentation o f  these  conso lidated  
and separate f in a n c ia l  s t a te m e n ts  in  a c c o rd a n c e  w ith International Financial R eporting  Standards, 
and the provisions o f  th e  C e n tra l  B a n k  o f  N ig e r ia  A ct N o . 7 ,2 0 0 7  and the Financial R eporting  Council 
of Nigeria A ct N o . 6 , 2 0 1 1 ,  a n d  fo r  s u c h  in te rn a l co n tro l as the D irectors determ ine is necessary  to 
enable the p re p a ra tio n  o f  c o n s o l id a te d  a n d  se p a ra te  financia l statem ents that are free  from  m aterial 
misstatement, w h e th e r  d u e  to  f r a u d  o r  e rro r.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our r e s p o n s ib i l i ty  is  t o  e x p r e s s  a n  o p in io n  o n  th ese  co n so lida ted  and  se p a ra te  financial 
statements based  o n  o u r  a u d i t .  W e c o n d u c te d  o u r  au d it in accordance with In terna tional Standards 
onAuditing. T h o se  s t a n d a r d s  r e q u ir e  th a t  w e  co m p ly  w ith  eth ical requirem ents and plan and perform  
the audit to  o b ta in  r e a s o n a b le  a s s u r a n c e  th a t th e  c o n so lid a ted  and separate financia l statem ents are 
free from m ateria l m is s ta te m e n t .

An au d it in v o lv e s  p e r f o r m in g  p ro c e d u re s  to  o b ta in  aud it ev idence about the am ounts and 
disclosures in th e  c o n s o l id a t e d  a n d  s e p a ra te  f in an c ia l sta tem ents. T he  p rocedures se lec ted  depend 
on the a u d ito rs’ j u d g m e n t ,  in c lu d in g  th e  a s se ssm e n t o f  the  risks o f  m ateria l m isstatem ent o f  the 
consolidated and  s e p a r a te  f in a n c ia l  s ta te m e n ts ,  w h e th e r  due to  fraud o r error. In m ak in g  those risk 
assessments, the  a u d i to r s  c o n s i d e r  in te rn a l  c o n tro l re lev an t to  the en tity ’s p rep ara tio n  and fair 
presentation o f  th e  c o n s o l id a te d  a n d  s e p a ra te  fin an c ia l sta tem ents in order to  design  au d it procedures 
that are a p p ro p ria te  in  th e  c ir c u m s ta n c e s ,  b u t n o t fo r  the  purpose o f  expressing  an op in ion on the 
effectiveness o f  th e  e n t i t y ’s  in te r n a l  c o n tro l .  A n  au d it a lso  includes evaluating  the  app ro p ria ten ess 
of accounting  p o l ic ie s  u s e d  a n d  th e  re a s o n a b le n e s s  o f  accoun ting  estim ates m ade by d irec to rs , as 
well as e v a lu a tin g  th e  o v e r a l l  p r e s e n ta t io n  o f  th e  co n so lid a ted  and separate  financia l s ta tem en ts.

We b e lieve  th a t  th e  a u d i t  e v id e n c e  w e  h a v e  o b ta in ed  is suffic ient and a p p ro p ria te  to  p ro v id e  a 
basis for o u r a u d it  o p in io n .

CENTRAL BANK OF NIGERIA
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Opinion

In  o u r  o p in io n ,  th e  a c c o m p a n y in g  c o n so lid a ted  and separate  fin an c ia l s ta tem en ts  
give a  t r u e  a n d  f a i r  v ie w  o f  th e  fin an c ia l p o sitio n  o f  the B ank  and  G ro u p  as at 31st 
D e c e m b e r ,  2 0 1 4  a n d  o f  th e ir  f in an c ia l p e rfo rm an ce  and cash  flow s fo r th e  y e a r then  
e n d ed  in  a c c o r d a n c e  w ith  In te rn a tio n a l  F in a n c ia l R e p o rtin g  S ta n d a rd s  a n d  the 
p ro v is io n s  o f  th e  C e n tra l  B an k  o f  N ig e ria  A ct N o . 7 ,2 0 0 7  and the Financial R eporting  
C o u n c il o f  N ig e r ia  A c t N o .6 ,2011 .

E n g a g em en t P a rtn er  : Patrick O bianw a Engagement P artner : DaycTBabatunde. FCA

F o r : P ricew aterhouseC oopers

C h a r te re d  A ccountan ts  
L a g o s, N igeria

S igned

P atrick O bianwa

Signed

D ayo Babatuxde 
F o r : Ernst & Young 

Chartered Accountants 
Lagos, Sigeria

F R C /2 0  i 3/IC A N /00000000880  
2 6 th  M ay. 2015

FRC/2013/IC AN/00000000702 
26th M ay 2015
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CENTRAL BANK OFNIGERIA
Consolidated and Separate Income Statements 

FOR THE Y EAR ENDED 31 ST DECEMBER, 2014

Group B ank
2014 2013 2014 2013

.Yores A million A  ’million A  ’million A"m illion

Interest and Similar In co m e 5 434.773 477,787 434.712 477,693
Interest and Sim ilar E x p en se 6 -(396.321) (541.134) (396,291) (541.099)
Net Interest In c o m e /(E x p e n se ) 38,452 (63,347) 38,421 (63,406)
Fees and Com m ission In co m e 7 142.674 111.435 141674 111.435
Net Trading Loss 8 (17,034) (5,727) (17,034) (5,727)
Foreign Exchange R ev alu a tio n  G ains 9 261,197 17,119 261,025 17,145
Other Operating Incom e 10 19.573 40,768 18,679 42,046
Total O perating  In c o m e 444,862 100,248 443,765 101,493
Loan Impairment R eversal 16 24.001 142,368 24,102 141,981
Impairment (Charge)/Reversal on Financial Investments 17 (1,830) 283,647 (1,830) 283,647
Net O perating Incom e 467,033 526,263 4 6 6 ,0 3 7 ' 527,121

Personnel Expenses 12 (101,406) (78,835) (96,991) (75,755)
Financial Sector In terv en tio n  E x p en ses - 13 (136,968) (42.774) (136,968) (42,774)
Depreciation o f  P roperty. P la n t and E quipm ent 28 (14,427) (9,755) (11,191) (8,009)
Amortisation o f  In tan g ib le  A sse ts 27 (2.688) (2,918) (2,688) (1 9 1 5 )
Currency Issue E xpenses 14 (5.509) (18,699) (22.791) (40,057)
Other Operating E xpenses 15 (172,142) (162,973) (159,986) (147,990)
Total O p era tin g  E x p e n se s (433,140) (315,954) (430,615) (317,500)

Net Income before  S h a r e  o f  A sso c ia te s ’ P ro fit 33,893 210,309 35,422 209,621
Share of Profit o f  A sso c ia tes 25 6,227 3.407 — —

Net Income before T ax 40,120 213,716 35,422 209,621
Income Tax Expense 18 (0.520) (154) — —

Net Income fo r the y e a r 33,600 213,562 35,422 209,621

Attributable t o :
Equity Holder o f  the B ank  . 34.498 213,512 35,422 209,621
Non-controlling In terests (898) 50 ’— —

33,600 213,562 35,422 209,621

The accom panying  n o te s  o n  pages 20  to  130 form an integral part o f  these consolidated and separate 
financial statem ents.
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Group .  Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013

CENTRAL BANK OF NIGERIA

Consolidated and  S eparate Statements of O ther Comprehensive Income
for the Y ear E nded 31 $t D ecember, 2014

Xotes X'.million X ‘million X ’million A"million
Net Income for the  y e a r
Ot h e r  Comprehensive Income

33,600 213,562 35,422 209,621

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) lo be reclassified 
loSel Income or Loss in subsequent periods net of Tax:

N et Loss on A vailable-for-Sale F in an cia l A ssets 11 (44) (85) (44) (85)
Share of other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) o f  Associates 25 5,904 (2,271) — —

Net other C om prehensive  In c o m e /(L o ss )  to be
redtssified to Net In c o m e  o r  L oss in subsequent V

periods

Other Comprehensive Income not to be reclassified to 
k  Income or Loss in subsequent periods net of Tax:

5,860 (2,356) (44) (85)

Re-measurement Gains on  d e fin e d  benefit plans 32 9.465 9,536 9,198 9,614
S h a re  of other C om prehensive  Incom e o f  A ssociates 25 554 13 — —

Net other Comprehensive In co m e n o t to be reclassified
to net income o r loss in  s u b s e q u e n t  p e rio d s 10,019 9,549 9,198 9,614

Other Com prehensive In c o m e  fo r  th e  y e a r 15,879 7,193 9,154 9,529
Total Comprehensive In c o m e  f o r  th e  y e a r 49,479 220,755 44,576 219,150

Attributable to:
Equity* Holder o f  the B an k 50.346 220.714 44.576 219,150
Non-controlling In terests (867) 41 — —

49,479 220,755 44,576 219,150

The a c c o m p a n y in g  n o te s  o n  p a g e s  2 0  to  130 fo rm  an in tegral part o f  th ese  co n so lid a ted  and 
*parate fin an c ia l s t a te m e n ts .
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CENTRAL BANK OF NIGERIA
C o n so lid a ted  and S eparate Statements of F inancial Position

as at 31 st D ecember, 2014

Group Bank

As s e t s .Yores
2014 

A  million
2013 

A  'million
2014
million

2013 
A  'million

C a s h  a n d  Bank Balances 19 3.301 7,892 — —
External Reserves 19 5.837.660 6,642,813 5,837,660 6,642.813
IMF Holdings o f Special D ra w in g  R ig h ts 20a 406.403 400,351 406,403 400,351 •
L o a n s  and Receivables 21 51005.685 4,392,773 5,002,834 4,392,324
Financial Assets at Fa ir V a lu e  th ro u g h  P ro fit o r Loss 22 2.404 — 1404 —

Imiment Securities:
Available-for-Sale 23 4.630 4540 4.630 4,540
Held to Maturity 23 177.642 169,394 177,642 169,394
Investment in Subsidiary 24 — — 25,588 23,575
Investments in A ssociates 25 125.570 112,698 91,966 91,866
Quota in International M o n e ta ry  F u n d  (IM F ) 20b 421.713 412,015 421.713 412,015
Employee Defined B en efit A s se ts 32 28.751 7,622 28,665 7,622
Other Assets 26 1.290.908 1,424,971 1273,474 1,404,237
Intangible Assets 27 5.041 7,412 5,041 7,412
Property. Plant and E q u ip m e n t 28 431,993 373,230 374,448 337,355
Total Assets 13,741,701 13,955,711 13,652,468 13,893,504

L i a b i l i t i e s  :
Deposits 29 6,779,515 6128.809 6.779,515 6,128,809
Central Bank o f  N igeria  In s tru m e n ts 30 2,755,611 3,739,093 2,755,611 3.739,093
Bank. Notes and C oins in C irc u la tio n 31 1.797,832 1,776,302 1.797,842 1,776305
IMF Allocation o f  Special D ra w in g  R ig h ts 20d 406,458 400,402 406,458 400,402
IMF Related L iabilities 20c 421,727 412,028 421,727 411028
Financial Liabilities at fa ir v a lu e  th rough  profit o r loss 22 24,704 — 24,704 —

Employee Benefit L ia b ilitie s 32 81,891 66.715 81,832 66.492
Current Income Tax P a y a b le 18 672 475 — —
Deferred Tax L iabilities 18 . 6,586 2.834 — —
Other Liabilities 33 917,036 928,863 887,828 918,000

Total Liabilities 13,192,032 13,455,521 13,155,517 13,441,129

B o o t y  ■
Share Capital 34 5.000 5.000 5,000 5,000
Plained Earnings 34 535,545 491.058 492.053 447,433
Available-for-Sale R eserve 34 1,727 951 (102) (58)
Foreign Currency T ran s la tio n  R ese rv e 34 907 (4,177) — —

Equity attributable to  E q u ity  H o ld ers o f  the Bank 543,179 492,832 496,951 4 5 2 3 7 5

Non-controlling Interests 6,490 7,358 — .

total Equity 549,669 500,190 496,951 4 5 2 3 7 5

Total Liabilities and E q u ity 13,741,70f 13,955,71! 13,652,468 13,893,504



flie accom panying n o te s  o n  p a g e s  2 0  to  130 form  an in tegral part o f  these  c o n so lid a ted  and  
^ le  financial s ta te m e n ts .

]ticconsolidated and sep a ra te  financia l statem ents on page 13 to 130 were approved and authorised for 
^  by the Board o f  D irectors on 21 st May. 2 0 15 and were signed on its behalf b y ;

Signed Signed
Godwin I. Emefiele (con) Adebayo Adelabu

Governor -  ‘ Director
tCNumber: F R C /2 0 1 3 /1 0 D N /0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ! 080 FRC N u m b e r: FRC/2012/1CAN/00000002303

Jonah 0 . Otunia 
D irector

Anastasia M . daniel-Nwaobia 
Director



CENTRAL BANK OF NIGERIA
C o n so lid a ted  and  Separate S tatements of Changes tn Equity

for the Y ear E nded 3 1st D ecember, 2014

A ftr ib u t ab le  to I he Equity? holders o fthe Bank

Share Retained Available Foreign .Von- Total
Capital Earning for-Sale Currency1 Total Control­ Equity

reserve transla­ ling
tion

Reserve
Interests

A ’million A 'million A'million A* 'million A”million A ’million A 'million
As Hi 1st January, 2 0 1 4  5 ,000 491,058 951 (4,177) 492,832 7,358
Net Income for the y e a r  — 34.498 — — 34.498 (898) 33.600
Other Comprehensive Income: 
Change in fair value o f  A vaiiable- ••

for-Sale Financial A s se ts  — — (44) — (44) — (44)
Re-measurement G a in s o n x .

| defined benefit p lans (N o te  3 3 )  —  
Share of other C o m p reh en siv e

9.435 — — 9.435 30 9.465

Income o f A ssocia tes — 554 820 5.084 6.458 — 6.458
Total Comprehensive Incom e/(Loss) — 44,487 776 - 5,084 50,347 (868) 49,479
Transfer to Federal G o v e rn m e n t -

ofNigeria (Note 3 4 a ) — — • ■ — — — —
At 31st December, 2 0 1 4  5 ,000 535,545 1,727 907 543,179 6,490 49,479-

For the y ear ended  3 1 s t  D e c e m b e r, 2013
A ttr ib u ta b le  to the E quity  holders o f  the Bank

S h a re Retained Available Foreign Non- Total
C a p ita l Earnings for-Sale Currency • Total Con trol­ Equity

reserve transla­ ling
tion Interests

Reserve
A  ’m illion A  'million A  'million A ’million A 'million A 'million A 'million

As at 1st Ja n u a ry , 2 0 1 3  5,000 420,342 571 (1,441) 424,472 7,317 431,789
Net (Loss)/ Income fo r  th e  y e a r — 213.512 — — 213.512 50 213,562
Other C om prehensive I n c o m e :
Change in fair value o f  A vailable-

for-Sale financial A sse ts  — — (85) — (85) — (85)
Re-measurement g a in s  on
defined benefit p lan s  (N o te  3 3 ) — 9.545 — —- 9.545 (9) 9.536

Share o f o ther C o m p reh e n siv e •
income/ (loss) of A sso c ia te s 13 465 (2.736) (2.258) — (2,258)

Total Comprehensive Incom e/(L oss) — 223,070 380 (2,736) 220,714 41 220,755
Transfer to Federal G o v e rn m e n t
ofNigeria (N ote 3 4 a )  ~ (152.354) — — (152.354) — (152,354)

At 31st D ecem ber, 2 0 1 3  5,000 491,058 951 (4,177) 492,832 7,358 500,190

The acco m p an y in g  n o te s  on pages 20 to 130 form an integral part o f  these consolidated and separate 
financial statem ents. . n



CEN TRA L BANK 0FN1GERIA
Consolidated  and  S eparate S tatements of C hanges in Equity

for th e  Y ear  E nded  3 1 st D ecember, 2 0 14— continued
/■<-— ’
jink Share Retained Avail- Total

Capital Earnings able-for-
Sale

Reserve

Equity

£  ’million A-’ ‘million A 'million A 'million

jsit 1st January, 2014 5,000 447,433 (58) 452,375
ft income for the year — 35,422 — 35,422
(tocomprehensive in c o m e :
(Singe in fair value o f avail a b le -fo r-sa le  F in ancia l A ssets — — (44) (44)
Measurement gains on d e fin e d  b en efit p lan s (N ote 33) — 9,198 — 9.198
fritl Comprehensive In c o m e /(L o ss ) — 44,620 (44) 44,576
Infer to Federal G o v ern m en t o f  N ig e ria  (N ote  33a) — — — —
ilJlst December, 2014 5,000 492,053 (102) 496,951

fortheyear ended 31st D e ce m b er. 2 0 1 3 Share Retained Avail- Total
Capital Earnings able-for- 

Sale 
R e s e n t

Equity

& 'million X 'm illion & 'million A-’’million

Int 1st January, 2013 5,000 380,552 27 385,579
to Income for the vear — 209,621 — 209,621
^Comprehensive Incom e :
^ge in fair value o fA vailab le-fo r-S ale  Financial Assets — — (85) (85)
•̂ measurement Gains on d e fin ed  benefit plans (Note 33) — 9,614 — 9,614
foil Comprehensive In c o m e  (L o ss) " — 219,235 (85) 219,150
transfer to Federal G ov ern m en t o f  N ig eria  (N ote  34a) — (152,354) — (152,354)
Mist December, 2012 5,000 447,433 (58) 452,375

^accom panying no tes o n  p ag es  20  to  130 form  an integral part o f  these consolidated and separate 
^cial statements.
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CENTRAL BANK OF NIGERIA
Consolidated and Separate Statements of Cash Flows 

for the Year Ended 3 1st December. 2014

Group Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013

S'otes A”million A' 'million iV’ 'million A' 'million

Cash flows from  O p e r a t in g  A c tiv itie s 35 (961,592) (459,037) (980,027) (460,753)
Income Tax Paid (100) (473) — —

Employee defined ben efit pa id (10.074) (8,162) (10.068) (8,149)
Net Cash Flow s used  in O p e r a t in g  A c tiv itie s  
Cash flows from  in v e s tin g  a c tiv it ie s

(971,766) (467,672) (990,095) (468,902)

Proceeds from redem ption  o f  Investm en t Securities (8.248) 244,582 (8.248) 244,582
Addition to Equity' In te re s t in A sso c ia ted  Entities — (4,947) (100) (4,947)
Addition to Equity In te re s t in S u bsid iary — — (2,013) —

Purchase o f Property. P la n t and  E qu ipm en t 28 (74.649) (55,831) (49,732) • (52,877)
Proceeds from Sale o f  P ro perty ; P lan t and E quipm ent 28 2.522 18 v 2.810 3
Purchase o f In tangible  A sse ts 27 (317) (3,489) (317) (3,489)
Net Cash F low s (u sed  in ) /f ro m  in v es tin g  A ctiv ities (80,692) 180,333 (57,600) 183,272

Cash Flows from  F in a n c in g  A c tiv itie s
Surplus paid to the F ed e ra l G overnm en t o f  N igeria 33a . - (30.195) — (30,195)

Net Cash flows used in F in a n c in g  A c tiv itie s — (30,195) — (30,195)
Net Change in Cash and  C ash  E q u iv a len ts (1.052,458) (317,534) (1,047,695) (315,825)
Net Foreign Exchange d iffe ren ce 9 182,482 17,119 182,310 17,145
Cash and Cash E q u iv a len ts  at 1st January I9e 5.456,309 5,756,724 5,448,417 5,747,097
Cash and C ash  E q u iv a le n ts  a t  3 1 s t D ecem b er 19e 4,586,333 5,456,309 4,583,032 5,448,417

Operational C ash flo w s fro m  In te re s t  a n d  D ividends
Interest Paid 223,675 539,723 201,518 539,688'
Interest R eceived 423,755 450,606 263.437 450,512
Dividend Received 3.006 2,761 3,006 2,761

The accom panying  n o te s  on pages 20  to 130 form an integral part o f  these consolidated and separate 
financial statem ents.
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CENTRAL BANK OF NIGERIA
N o t e s  t o .t h e  C o n s o l i d a t e d  F i n a n c i a l  S t a t e m e n t s  f o r  t h e  Y e a r  E n d e d  3  1 s t  D e c e m b e r .  2 0 1 4

{AH Am ounts are in millions o f  Xaira. unless otherwise stated)

j General Information

||ie Central Bank o f  N ig e ria  ("CBN '* o r "the Bank”) is the apex regulatory authority o f  the banking 
astern in Nigeria. It was e s tab lish e d  by the Central Bank o f N igeria Act o f  1958. a$ repealed by the Central 
jjiit of Nigeria Act No. 7 o f  2 0 0 7 . It com m enced operation on 1 July 1959.

The consolidated and se p a ra te  financia l statem ents o f the Group for the year ended 31 st December. 2014 
uprises the Bank, its su b sid ia ry ' and associates (together referred to as the "Group").

The Bank is wholly o w n ed  by  the  Federal Governm ent o f  Nigeria. The Group is a Government Business 
&iiiiy(GBE). The principal o b jec tiv e s  o f  the Group are to :

-Issue legal tender c u rre n c y  in N ig e r ia ;
-Maintain external re se rv e s  to safeguard  the international value o f  the legal tender cu rrency ;
-Promote monetary' an d  p r ic e  stability ' and a sound financial system in N ig e ria ; and K 
-Act as banker and p ro v id e  eco n o m ic  and financial advice to the Federal Governm ent ofNigeria. 
-Production o f  N ig erian  b a n k  n o tes  and coins together with security documents and products for other 

business .
-Manufacture and im p o rta tio n  o f  p rin ting  ink and the provision o f  technical sendees.

The Bank is incorporated  and  dom ic iled  in Nigeria. Its head office is at Plot 33; Abubakar Tafawa Balewa 
%  Central Business D istric t. A b u ja .

The Bank holds 88 .73%  o f  th e  share  capital ofN igerian Security Printing and M inting Pic. The subsidiary 
învolved in the p roduction  o fN ig e ria n  bank notes and coins together with security documents and products 

Mother businesses.

The consolidated an d  s e p a ra te  financia l statem ents o f  Central Bank o fN ig e ria  and its subsidiary' 
(collectively, the G roup) fo r  th e  y e a r  ended  31 D ecem ber 2014 were authorised for issue in accordance with a 
ŝolution of the B oard o f  D ire c to rs  on 2 1 May; 2015.

i Significant A ccounting Policies .

The principal a cco u n tin g  p o lic ie s  applied  in the preparation o f  these consolidated separate financial 
dements are set ou t below . T h ese  p o lic ies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless 
^envise stated.

^  Basis of Preparation 

Statement o f  C om pliance

The consolidated  se p a ra te  f in a n c ia l  sta tem en ts  o f  the G roup have been prepared in accordance with 
^national F in an c ia l R e p o r t in g  S ta n d a rd s  (IFR S ) as issued by the In ternational A ccounting  Standards
^rd(IASB).

The consolidated and se p a ra te  financia l statem ents have been prepared on a historical cost basis,, except 
^available—for— sale (A FS) financial assets, held for trading financial assets and derivative financial instruments 
âthave been m easured at fa ir value. T he consolidated financial statements are presented in naira and all values 
rounded to the nearest m illio n  (N 'm ). except when otherwise indicated.

The preparation o f  th e  co n so lid a ted  and separate financial sta tem entsln  conform ity with IFRS requires 
^  use of certain critical a c c o u n tin g  estim ates and judgem ents. It also requires managem ent to exercise its 
%ment in the p ro c e sso f  ap p ly in g  IFR S  accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree o f  judgem ent 
Complexity, or areas w here  assu m p tio n s and estim ates are significant to the consolidated financial statem ents 
disclosed* in note 2 .26.
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CENTRAL BANK OF NIGERIA
N o t e s  t o  t h e  C o n s o l i d a t e d  F i n a n c i a l  S t a t e m e n t s  f o r  t h e  Y e a r  E n d e d  3  1 s t  D e c e m b e r .  2 0 1 4

{All Amounts are in millions o f Saira. unless otherwise stated)

2.2. Basis of C onsolidation

The consolidated and sep ara te  financial statem ents comprise the financial statements of the Bank and its 
subsidiary as at 31 st D ecem ber. 2014. C ontrol is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable 
returns from its invo lvem en t w ith  the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over 
the investee.

Specifically, (he G ro u p  co n tro ls  an investee i f  and only i f  the Group has :
—Power over the in v es tee  (i.e. ex isting  rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities 

of the in v e s te e ) ;
—Exposure, or rig h ts , to  variab le  re tu rns from its involvement with the investee : and 
—The ability  to use its p o w er over the investee to affect its returns.

When the G roup has less than  a m ajority  o f  the voting or similar rights o f  an investee,xthe Group considers 
all relevant facts and c ircu m stan ces  in assessing  whether it has power over an investee, includ ing :

—The contractual a rran g em en t with the o ther vote holders o f the in v estee ;
—Rights arising  from  o th e r  con tractual a rrangem en ts; and 
—The G ro u p 's  v o tin g  rig h ts  and po tential voting rights.

The G roup re -assesses w h e th er o r not it contro ls an investee i f  facts and circumstances indicate that there 
are changes to  one o r  m o re  o f  the  th ree  elem ents o f  control. Consolidation o f  a subsidiary begins when the 
Group obtains con tro l o v e r the subsid iary  and ceases when the Group loses control o f  the subsidiary. Assets, 
liabilities, incom e and ex p en ses  o f  a subsid iary  acquired or disposed o f during the year are included in the 
statement o f  co m p reh en siv e  incom e from  the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to 
control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each  com ponen t o f  o th er comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity 
holders o f  the p a ren t o f  th e  G ro u p  and to the non-controlling interests, even if  this results in the non­
controlling interests h av in g  a  defic it balance. W hen necessary, adjustm ents are made to the financial statements 
of subsidiary to b ring  i t 's  a cco u n tin g  po lic ies into line with the G roup’s accounting policies. All intra-group 
assets and liabilities, equity’, incom e, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members o f  the 
Group are e lim inated  in full on conso lidation .

A change-in the  o w n ersh ip  in terest o f  a subsidiary, without a loss o f  control, is accounted for as an equity’ 
transaction. I f  the  G roup  loses con tro l over a subsidiary, i t :

—D erecognises th e  a sse ts  (in clud ing  goodw ill) and liabilities o f  the su b sid ia ry ;
—D erecognises the  c a rry in g  am ount o f  any non-controlling in te res ts:
—D erecognises th e  cum u la tiv e  transla tion  differences recorded in equity’ ;
—Recognises the fa ir value  o f  the consideration  received ;
—R ecognises the  fa ir  va lue  o f  any  investm ent re ta in ed ;
—Recognises any su rp lu s  o r defic it in p ro fit o r lo s s ; and
—R eclassifies the p a re n t’s share  o f  com ponents previously recognised in OCI to income statem ent o r 

retained earn ings, as appropria te , as w ould be required i f  the Group had directly disposed o f the related 
assets o r  liab ilities.

Presentation o f  f in a n c ia l  s ta te m e n ts

The G roup  p re sen ts  its sta tem en t o f  financial position broadly in order o f  liquidity'. An analysis regarding 
recovery or se ttlem en t w ith in  12 m on ths a fter the  statement o f  financial position date (current) and m ore than  
•2 months a fte r th e  sta tem en t o f  financia l position  date (non-current) are presented in the respective no tes fo r 
assets and liab ilitie s.
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financial assets and f in an c ia l liab ilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement o f financial 
^ion only when there is a  leg a lly  enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention 
psrttle on a net basis, or to  rea lise  the .asse ts and settle the liability simultaneously. Income and expenses are 
ôffset in the incom e s ta te m en t u n less required or permitted by an}’ accounting standard or interpretation, 

pj as specifically d isc losed  in th e  accoun ting  policies o f  the Group;

y, Investment in A ssociates

An associate is an entity  o v e r  w hich the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power 
ijarticipate in the financial and  operating  policy decisions o f the investee, but is not in control or joint control 
utrthose policies.

The considerations m ade in de term in ing  significant influence o rjo in t control are similar to those necessary 
Ddeterminecontrol over su b s id ia rie s .

The Group's investm en ts in its associates are accounted for using the equity method. v

Under the equ ity  m eth o d , th e  investm ent in an associate is initially recognised at cost. The carrying 
mount of the investm ent is a d ju s te d  to recognise changes in the G roup 's share o f net assets o f  the associate 
aocethe acquisition date. G o o d w ill re la ting  to the associate is included in the earn in g  amount o f  the investment 
ml is neither amortised n o r  in d iv id u a lly  tested for impairment.

The income statem ent re fle c ts  the  G ro u p 's  share o f  the results o f  operations o f  the associate . Any change 
bOCI of those investees is p re sen te d  as part o f  the G roup's OCI. In addition, when there has been a change 
recognised directly in the  e q u ity  o f  the associate., the Group recognises its share o f  any changes, when 
ipplicable. in the sta tem ent o f  ch an g es  in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions 
been the Group and the  a sso c ia te  are  elim inated to the extent o f  the interest in the associate.

The aggregate o f  the G ro u p 's  sh a re  o f  profit or loss o f  an associate is shown on the face o f the income 
fflement outside operating  p ro fit and represents profit or loss after tax and non-controlling interests in the 
subsidiaries o f the associate.

The financial sta tem en ts o f  the  associate  are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group. When 
Ktssary. adjustm ents are m ad e  to  b ring  the accounting policies in line with those o f the Group.

After application o f  th e  e q u ity  m ethod, the Group determ ines whether it is necessary to recognise an 
impairment loss on its in v es tm en t in its associate. At each reporting date, the Group determines whether there 
5objective evidence that the  in v estm en t in the associate is impaired. If  there is such evidence, the Group 
calculates the am ount o f  im p a irm e n t as the  difference between the recoverable amount o f  the associate and its 
snying value, then reco g n ises  th e  loss as 'Share  o f  profit o f  an associate and a jo in t venture ' in the income 
saiement.

Upon loss o f  sig n ifican t in flu en ce  over the associate, the G roup m easures and recognises any retained 
investment at its fa ir v a lu e . A n y  d iffe ren ce  betw een the carrying am ount o f  the associate upon loss o f  
significant influence and th e  fa ir  v a lu e  o f  the  retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in 
■Koine statement.

^•Recognition of Income and E xpenses

Revenue is recognised  to  th e  ex ten t that it is probable that the econom ic benefits will flow to the G roup 
*ndihe revenue can be re liab ly  m easu red , regardless o f  when the payment is being made. Revenue is m easured 
atlhe fair value o f  the c o n sid e ra tio n  received  o r receivable, taking into account contractually defined term s o f  
foment and exclud ing  tax es o r  duty.
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{a) Interest a n d  S im ila r  Incom e a n d  Expense

For all financial in s tru m en ts  m easured at amortised cost and interest bearing financial-assets classified as 
available-for-sale in te res t incom e o r expense is recorded using the Effective Interest rate (E1R). which is the 
rate that exactly d isco u n ts  e stim ated  future cash payments or receipts through the expected life o f the financial 
instrument or a sho rte r p e rio d , w here  appropriate, to the net carrying amount o f the financial asset or financial 
liability. The calcu la tio n  tak es  into account all contractual terms o f the financial instrument (for example, 
prepayment options) an d  in c lu d es  any fees or incremental costs that are directly attributable to the instrument 
and are an integral p a rt o f  th e  E ffective Interest Rate (EIR)r but not future credit losses.

The carrying am o u n t o f  the  financial asset or financial liability is adjusted if the Group revises its 
estimates o f  paym ents o r rece ip ts. T he adjusted e a rn in g  amount is calculated based on the original EIR and the 
change in cariying a m o u n t is recorded  as in te re s t  and similar incom e' for financial assets and in te res t and 
similar expenses' for fin an c ia l liabilities. v.

Once the reco rded  v a lu e  o f  a financial asset or a group o f similar financial assets has been reduced due to 
an impairment loss, in te re s t incom e continues to be recognised using the rate o f interest used to discount the 
future cash flow s for th e  p u rp o se  o f  m easuring  the impairment loss.

(b) Fees a n d  C o m m iss io n  Incom e

Fees and c o m m iss io n s  rep resen t incom e from processing currency. Bureau de change application and 
registration, com m ission  o n  fund transfers and other banks and financial institutions application and licensing 
fees. It also includes in co m e  from  buying and selling foreign currency and other related transactions.

[c] Dividend Incom e

This is recognised  w hen  the  G ro u p 's  right to receive the payment is established, which is generally when 
the shareholders app ro v e  th e  d iv idend .

(</) Ket Trading In co m e

This com prises o f  g a in s  and losses related to trading financial assets and includes all realised and unrealised 
fair value changes and fo re ig n  exchange differences.

( e ) A gency Incom e

Agency com m ission  is recognised  w hen such income is earned by the Group. Agency income is recognised 
within ‘other o p era tin g  in co m e ' in the  incom e statement.

(f) Intervention A c tiv it ie s

Intervention ac tiv itie s  a re  those  carried  out by the Group in the construction o f  infrastructure in various 
tertiary' and secondary  sc h o o ls  around  the  country.

The G roup also  c a rr ie s  o u t in te rven tion  activities by providing below market interest rate loans to  
financial institu tions in p u rsu it o f  its objective  o f  ensuring financial system stability. These below m arket 
interest rate loans are fa ir  va lu ed  at inception, using the prevailing market interest rate and the fair value 
adjustments are reco g n ised  a s  p repaid  intervention  expenses which are amortised over the tenor o f  the below  
market interest ra te  loans. A ll expenses related to intervention activities-are recognised in the income statem ent 
in the period it is in cu rred .
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jj. Taxes

Current Incom e Tax

Current incom e tax asse ts  and liab ilities for the current period are measured at the amount expected to be 
covered from or paid to the  tax a tio n  authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are 
those that are enacted or su b s tan tiv e ly  enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Group operates 
uidgenerates taxable incom e.

Current incom e tax re la tin g  to  item s recognised directly in equity is recognised in equity and not in the 
i n c o m e  statement. M anagem en t p e rio d ica lly  evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to 
s i t u a t i o n s  in w hich app licab le  tax  regu la tions are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where 
ippropriate.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is prov ided  using  the liability method on temporary differences betweemthe tax bases o f  
a s s e t s  a n d  liabilities and th e ir  carry in g  am ounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liab ilities are  recogn ised  for all taxable temporary differences., ex cep t:
* When the deferred  tax  liab ility  a rises from  the initial recognition o f  goodwill or an asset or liability in a 

transaction th at is no t a  b u sin ess  com bination and. at the time o f the transaction, affects neither the 
accounting pro fit n o r tax ab le  p ro fit or loss.

1 In respect o f  taxab le  tem p o ra ry  differences associated with investments in subsidiary and associates 
when the tim in g  o f  th e  reversa l o f  th e  tem porary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the 
temporary d ifferences w ill n o t reverse  in the foreseeable fu tu re :

Deferred tax assets are  reco g n ised  fo r all deductible temporary differences, the ea rn 1 forward o f unused 
credits and any unused tax  losses. D eferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that 

taxable profit w ill be availab le  ag a in st w hich the deductible tem porary differences, and the earn* forward o f 
unused tax credits and u n used  tax  losses can be utilised, ex ce p t:
‘ When the deferred tax asset re la ting  to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition 

of an asset o r liab ility  in a tran sac tio n  that is not a business combination and. at the time o f the transaction, 
affects ne ither the  acc o u n tin g  p ro fit nor taxable profit or lo s s ;

1 In respect o f  d eductib le  te m p o ra ry  differences associated with investm ents in subsidiary and associates, 
deferred tax  assets are  reco g n ised  on ly  to the extent that it is probable that the tem porary differences will 
reverse in the  foreseeable fu tu re  and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences 
can be u tilised.

The carrying am ount o f  d eferred  tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that 
flisno longer p robab le  th at su ffic ien t taxable profit will be available to allow all or part o f  the deferred tax asset 
10 be utilised. U n recogn ised  d e ferred  tax  assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the 
^tent that it has becom e p ro b ab le  th a t fu ture  taxable profits will allow  the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax  re la ting  to  item s recognised  outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss. 
Deferred tax item s are  recogn ised  in corre lation  to the underlying transaction either in OC1 or directly in equity.
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I Deferred tax asse ts  an d  d e fe rred  tax liabilities are offset if a legal!}' enforceable right exists to set o ff  
I current tax assets ag ainst c u rre n t incom e tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity 

and the same taxation a u th o r in ’.

Deferred tax assets and  deferred  tax liabilities are derived from the Group's subsidiary (Nigerian Securities. 
Printing and M inting  C o m p an y ).

Value A d d e d  Tax

Expenses and asse ts  are  reco gn ised  net o f  the amount o f  value added tax. ex cep t:
♦ When the value ad d ed  tax incurred  on a purchase o f assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation 

authorin', in w hich case , th e  value added tax is recognised as part o f the cost o f acquisition of the asset or 
as part o f  the e x p en se  item , ^s applicable.

* When receivab les a n d  p a y ab les  are stated with the amount o f value added tax included.

The net am ount o f  v a lu e  ad d ed  ^ax recoverable from, or payable to. the taxation authorin' is included as 
part of receivables o r  p a y a b le s  in the  statem ent o f  financial position.

2.6. Foreign Currency Translation

(a) F unctional a n d  p re s e n ta tio n  C urrency

Items included in th e  f in an c ia l statem ents are measured using the currency o f the primary economic 
environment in w hich  th e  G ro u p  operates ("the functional currency” ). The financial statements of the Group 
are presented in N ig e rian  n a ira , w hich  is the functional currency o f the Group.

(b) Transactions a n d  B a la n c e s

Transactions in fo re ig n  c u rren c ie s  are initially recorded at the functional currency spot rates at the date 
the transaction first q u a lif ie s  fo r  recognition.

Monetary assets and  lia b ilitie s  denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency 
spot rate o f  exchange at th e  rep o rtin g  date. Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items 
are recognized in the in co m e  sta tem en t.

N on-m onetary item s th a t are  m easured in term s o f  historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using 
the exchange rates at th e  d a te s  o f  the  initial transactions. Non-m onetary items measured at fair value in a . 
foreign currency are t ran s la ted  u s in g  the  exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. The gain 
or loss arising on tran s la tio n  o f  non-m onetary  items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition 
of gain or loss on ch ange  in fa ir  v a lu e  o f  the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or 
loss is recognized in o th er com prehensive  income or income statement are also recognized in other comprehensive 
income or incom e s ta te m en t, respectively).

2.7. Financial Instruments— Initial Recognition and Subsequent Measurement

A financial in s tru m e n t is an y  contract that gives rise to a financial asset o f one entity and a financial 
liability' or equ ity  in s tru m e n t o f  ano ther entity.

[a) F inancia l A sse ts

Initial R ecogn ition  a n d  M easurem en t

Financial A sse ts a re  c la ss if ied  at initial recognition, as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
(including those  d e s ig n a ted  as at fa ir value through profit or loss and those held for trading), loans and 
receivables, h e ld -to -m atu ritv  investm ents, available-for-sale financial assets. All financial assets are recognized
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i n i t i a l l y  at fair value plus, in the  case  o f  financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, 
paction costs that are a ttr ib u ta b le  to  the acquisition o f the financial asset. Purchases or sales o f  financial 
jjsctsthat require delivery  o f  a sse ts  w ith in  a time frame established by regulation or convention™  the market 
place (regular way trad es) are  recogn ised  on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase 
or s e l l  the asset.

Subsequent M ea su rem en t

For purposes o f  su b seq u en t m easurement., financial assets are classified into four categories:
•Financial assets at fa ir v a lu e  th rough  profit o r loss.
•Loans and receivables.
• Held-to-maturity in v estm en ts .
•Available-for-sale fin ancia l investm ents.

(/) Financial a sse ts  a t f a i r  va lue  th rough  pro fit or loss

Financial assets at fair v a lu e  through profit o r loss include financial assets held for trading. Financial assets 
^classified as held fo r trad in g  i f  they  are acquired for the purpose o f selling or repurchasing in the near term. 
Derivatives, includ ing  se p a ra ted  em bedded  derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are 
designated as effective h e d g in g  instrum ents as defined by IAS 39. Financial assets held for trading are recorded 
indie statement o f  fin an c ia l p o s itio n  at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognised in Net trading income.

Included in th is c la ss if ica tio n  are debt securities that have been acquired principally for the purpose of 
selling or repurchasing in th e  n ea r term . The externally managed investment falls within this categoiy as it has 
been classified as held  fo r  trad in g . H ow ever, this is presented as part o f  external reserves in the statement of 
financial position.

(//) Loans a n d  R e c e iv a b le s

Loans and rece ivab les a re  non-deriva tive  financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not 
quoted in an active m arket. A fte r  in itial m easurem ent, such financial assets are subsequently measured at 
amortised cost u sin g  th e  e ffec tiv e  in te res t rate  (EIR) method. Jess impairment. Am ortised cost is calculated by 
t t g  into account any  d isc o u n t o r p rem ium  on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part o f the 
filR. The EIR am o rtisa tio n  is in c lu d ed  in interest and sim ilar income in income statement. The losses arising 
from impairment are  reco g n ise d  in incom e statem ent in loan impairment charge.

The Group’s loans and rece iv ab les com prise overdraft balances and short term advances, staff loans, loans 
10 Deposit M oney B an k s on C o m m ercia l A gricultural Credit Scheme, advances to Federal Mortgage Bank of 
% ria, long term  loans, B a n k  o f  In d u stry  Debenture and 6% Perpetual Debentures in Nigerian Export Import 
^  Asset M an ag em en t C o rp o ra tio n  o f  N igeria  (AM CON) Note and bonds, Nigerian treasury bonds, trade 
Mother receivable and  cash  and  cash equivalents.

(Hi) H e ld -to -M aturity  In ves tm en ts

Non-derivative fin an c ia l asse ts  w ith  fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities are classified as 
tod to maturity w hen  the  G ro u p  has the  positive intention and ability to hold them to maturity. After initial 
^asurement, held  to m a tu rity  investm en ts are measured at amortised cost using the EIR, less impairment. 
Amortised cost is c a lcu la ted  b y  tak ing  into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees o r costs 
ftatarean integral part o f  th e  E IR . The EIR amortisation is included as interest and sim ilar income in the 
fricome statem ent. T he  lo sse s  a ris in g  from  im pairm ent are recognised in incom e statem ent as Joan im pairm ent 
hpense. The h e ld -to -m a tu rit) ' in v estm en ts  o f  the  G roup include the Nigerian treasury bills, FGN bonds and 
k internally m an ag ed  in v es tm e n ts  w ith in  the external reserves.
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ifthe G roup w ere  to  se ll o r reclassify  more than an insignificant amount o f  held—to—maturity investments 
before maturity (o th e r th an  in ce rta in  specific circumstances), the entire category would be tainted and Avould 
have to be reclassified  as av a ilab le-fo r-sa le . Furthermore, the Group would be prohibited from classifying any 
financial asset as he ld  to m a tu rity  during  the following two years.

(/v) Available-for-sale (A F S ) F in a n c ia l Investments

AFS investm ents in c lu d e  eq u ity  and debt securities. Equity investments classified as AFS are those which 
arc neither c lassified  as h e ld —for—trading nor designated at fa ir value through profit or loss. Debt securities in 
this category are th o se  w h ich  are  intended to be held for an indefinite period o f time and which may be sold in 
response to needs fo r  l iq u id ity  o r  in response to changes in the market conditions.

The G roup has n o t d e s ig n a ted  any loans or receivables as AFS. Available-for-sale financial investments o f  
the Group include in v es tm e n ts  in equity  (unquoted), investments in treasury bills and investment in debt 
securities (bonds) issu ed  lo ca lly  and foreign.

After initial m easurem ent. A FS financial investments are subsequently measured at fair value with unrealized 
gains or losses reco g n ised  in O th e r  Com prehensive Income (OCI) and credited in the AFS reserve until the 
investment is d e rec o g n ised , at w h ich  tim e the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in other operating income, 
or the investm ent is d e te rm in e d  to  be impaired, when the cumulative loss is reclassified from the AFS reserve 
to income sta tem ent in im p a irm en t loss on financial investment. Interest earned whilst holding AFS financial 
investments is rep o rted  a s  in te res t and sim ilar income using the EIR method. Unquoted equity securities 
whose fair value c a n n o t be  reliably ' m easured are carried at cost. All other available-for-sale investments are 
carried at fair value.

The G roup e v a lu a te s  w h e th e r  the ability and intention to sell its AFS financial assets in the near term is 
still appropriate. W h en , in ra re  circum stances, the Group is unable to trade these financial assets due to 
inactive m arkets, the  G ro u p  m ay  elect to reclassify these financial assets ifth e  management has the ability and 
intention to hold  the  a sse ts  fo r foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financia l a sse t rec lassified  from the AFS category, the fair value earn in g  amount at the date o f 
reclassification b eco m es its n e w  am ortised cost and any previous gain or loss on the asset that has been 
recognised in eq u ity  is a m o rtise d  to  profit or loss over the rem aining life o f  the investment using the EIR. Any 
difference betw een th e  n e w  am o rtised  cost and the m aturin ' am ount is also amortised over the remaining life o f 
the asset using  the  E IR . I f  th e  a sse t is subsequently determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded in 
equity is reclassified  to p ro f it  o r  loss. R efer to the information below under reclassification.

"D ay  1" P ro fit o r  L o ss

W hen the  tran sac tio n  p rice  d iffers from the fair value o f  other observable current market transactions in 
the same in strum en t o r based  on  a valuation technique whose variables include only data from observable 
markets, the G roup  im m e d ia te ly  recognises the difference between the transaction price and fair value (a ‘Day 
F  profit or loss) in ‘N e t trad in g  incom e'. In cases where fair value is determined using data which is not 
observable, the  d iffe ren ce  be tw een  the transaction price and model value is only recognised in the profit or loss 
when the in p u ts  b eco m e  o b se rv ab le , or when the instrument is derecognised.

R eclassifica tion  o f  F in a n c ia l A ssets

R eclassifica tion  is at the  e lection  o f  management, and is determined on an instrument by instrument basis. 
The G roup d o es  n o t reclassify ' any  financial instrument into the fair value through profit or loss category after 
initial recognition .
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For a financial asset rec la s s if ie d  out o f  the 'A vailable-for-sale'category, any previous gain or loss on that 
jsset that has been reco g n ised  in eq u ity  is amortised to income statement over the remaining life o f  the 
investment using the  EIR. A n y  d ifference  between the new amortised cost and the expected cash flows is also 
amortised over the rem a in in g  life o f  the asset using the EIR. If the asset is subsequently determined to be 
impaired then the am ount reco rd e d  in equity  is reclassified to income statement.

The Group m ay rec lassify  a n o n -d e riv a tiv e  trading asset out o f the 'held-for—trading' category and into 
tie loans and rece iv ab les ' c a teg o ry  i f  it meets the definition o f  loans and receivables and the Group has the 
intention and ability  to h o ld  th e  financia l asset for the foreseeable future or until maturity. If a financial asset 
is reclassified, and i f  the  G ro u p  subsequently  increases its estimates o f future cash receipts as a result o f  
increased recoverability' o f  th o se  cash  receipts, the effect o f  that increase is recognised as an adjustment to the 
EIR from the date o f  the c h a n g e  in estim ate.

Derecognition o f  F in a n c ia l A sse ts

A financial asset (or, w h e re  app licab le  a part o f  a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial 
assets) is primarily d e reco g n ised  (i.e . rem oved from the Group's statement o f financial position) w hen:

(/)the rights to rece ive  cash  flow s from  the asset have ex p ired ; or *
(//) the G roup has tran s fe rre d  its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation 

lo pay the received cash  f lo w s  in full w ithout material delay to a third party under a ;pass-through' 
arrangement; and e i th e r :

(fl)the Group has tran s fe rre d  substan tia lly  all the risks and rewards o f  the asset, or
(6) the Group has n e ith e r tran sferred  nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset but 

has transferred con tro l o f  th e  asset.

When the G roup  has tra n s fe rre d  its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass­
through arrangement, it e v a lu a te s  i f  and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. 
When it has ne ither tra n s fe rre d  n o r retained substantially  all o f  the risks and rewards o f the asset, nor 
transferred control o f  the a sse t, th e  G roup continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent o f the 
Group's continuing inv o lv em en t. In  that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability'. The transferred 
aset and the associated liab ility ' are  m easured  on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group 
has retained.

Continuing in v o lv em en t th a t tak es the  form o f  a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the 
lower of the original c a rry in g  a m o u n t o f  the asset and the maximum amount o f  consideration that the Group 
could be required to  repay.

Impairment o f  F in a n c ia l A  s s e ts

The Group assesses at e ac h  rep o rtin g  date, whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset 
°tagroup o f financial asse ts is im p a ired . An impairment exists if one or more events that has occurred since the 
filial recognition o f  the  asse t (an  incurred  Moss event'), has an impact on the estimated future cashflows o f the 
financial asset or the  g ro u p  o f  fin an c ia l assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may 
include indications th at the b o rro w e r o r  a group o f  borrowers is experiencing significant financial difficulty; the 
Potability that they  w ill e n te r  b a n k ru p tc y  or other financial reorganisation, default or delinquency in interest 
^principal paym ents and  w h e re  o b se rv ab le  data indicates that there is measurable decrease in the estimated 
fotorecash flows, su ch  as c h a n g e s  in arrears or econom ic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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In the case o f  deb t in s tru m en ts  classified as AFS, the Group assesses individually whether there is 
objective evidence o f  im p a irm en t based on the same criteria as financial assets carried at amortised cost. 
However, the am ount reco rd ed  fo r im pairm ent is the cumulative loss measured as the difference between the 
jjuoftised cost and the cu rren t fa ir value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in 
income statement.

For unquoted equ ity  in s tru m en t m easures at cost, the Group-assesses individually whether and objective 
evidence of im pairm ent loss has been incurred on such an asset. The amount o f  the impairment loss is measured 
isthe difference betw een th e  carry in g  am ount o f  the financial asset and the present value o f estimated future 
cashflows, d iscounted  at th e  cu rren t market rate o f return for a similar financial asset.

Future interest incom e co n tin u es  to be accrued based on the reduced carrying amount o f  the asset, using 
the rate of interest used to d isco u n t the future cash flows for the purpose o f measuring the impairment loss. 
Hie interest incom e is reco rd ed  as part o f 'in te re s t and similar incom e'. If. in a subsequent period, the fair, value 
ofadebt instrument in creases and the increase can be objectively related to a credit event occurring after the 
impairment loss w as reco g n ised  in incom e statement, the impairment loss is reversed through the income 
statement.

Renegotiated L o a n s

Where possib le , th e  G ro u p  seeks to  restructure loans rather than to take possession o f collateral. This 
m ay  involve ex tend ing  th e  p ay m en t arrangem ents and the agreement o f  new  loan conditions. Ohce the terms 
have been renegotiated an y  im pairm en t is measured using the original EIR as calculated before the modification 
of terms and the loan is no lo n g er considered  past due. M anagement continually reviews renegotiated loans to 
flisure that all c rite ria  are m et and that future payments are likely to occur. The loans continue to be subject to 
windividual o r co llec tiv e  im p a irm en t assessm ent, calculated using the loan 's original EIR.

Collateral J a lu a tio n

The Group seeks to  use  co lla te ra l, w here possible, to mitigate its risks on financial assets. The collateral 
comes in various fo rm s su ch  as cash , securities and credit enhancem ents such as netting agreements. The fair

Irclue of col lateral is g en era lly  assessed , at a minimum, at inception and based on the Group quarterly reporting 
schedule, however, som e col lateral, fo r example, cash or securities relating to margining requirements, is valued

daily.

To the extent p o ss ib le , the  G roup  uses active market data for valuing financial assets, held as collateral. 
Other financial a sse ts  w h ich  do  not have a readily determinable market value are valued using models. The 
collateral that is req u ired  by  th e  G roup  is treasury bills, FGN Bonds and AM CON Bonds and other financial 
assets (See N ote  3 .2 .2  fo r  fu rth e r analysis o f  collateral).

Collateral Repossessed
The G roup 's p o lic y  is  to  de te rm in e  w hether a repossessed asset is best used for its internal operations or 

should be sold. A sse ts  d e te rm in ed  to  be useful for the internal operations are transferred to their relevant asset 
category at the lo w er o f  th e ir  repossessed  value or the carrying value o f  the original secured asset. Assets that 
are determined b e tte r  to  be so ld  are  im m ediately transferred to assets held for sale at their fair value at the 
repossession date in line w ith  the  G roup 's policy.

[b) F inancial L ia b ilitie s  

Initial Recognition a n d  M ea su rem en t

Financial liab ilitie s  are  c lassified  at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or 
toss and other fin an c ia l liab ilitie s.
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All financial liab ilitie s  a re  recogn ised  initially at fair value and., in the case o f  other financial liabilities., n e t . 
of directly attributable t ra n s a c tio n  costs.

The Group's f in a n c ia l  l ia b ilitie s  include deposit accounts. Central Bank o f Nigeria' instruments. IMF 
r e l a t e d  liabilities, f in an c ia l g u a ran tee  contracts, derivative financial instruments, borrowings and trade and 
o t h e r  payables.

Subsequent M e a su re m e n t

The m easurem ent o f  f in an c ia l liab ilities depends on their classification, as described below :
(/) Financial L ia b ili t ie s  a t F a ir  value through Profit or Loss

Financial liab ilitie s  at fa ir  v a lue  through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and 
financial liabilities d e s ig n a te d  u p o n  initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liab ilities a re  c la ss ified  as held for trading if  they are incurred forthe purpose of repurchasing in 
the near term. This c a te g o ry  a lso  includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that are 
not designated as h e d g in g  in stru m en ts  in hedge relationships as defined by IAS 39. Separated embedded 
derivatives are also c la s s if ie d  as held  for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on  l ia b ili t ie s  held for trading are recognised in income statement.

Financial liab ilities d e s ig n a ted  upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at 
the initial date o f  re c o g n itio n , and  on ly  i f  the criteria in IAS 39 are satisfied. The Group has not designated any 
financial liability as at fa ir  v a lu e  th rough  profit or loss.

(ii) F inancial L ia b ili t ie s  a t A m o r tise d  Cost

Financial in s tru m en ts  issu ed  by the Group, that are not designated at fair value through profit or loss but 
are classified as fin an c ia l l ia b ilitie s  at am ortised cost, where the substance o f the contractual arrangement 
results in the G roup h a v in g  an  o b liga tion  either to deliver cash or another financial asset to the holder, or to 
satisfy’ the obligation  o th e r  th an  by the exchange o f a fixed amount o f cash or another financial asset for a fixed 
number o f own eq u ity  sh a re s .

After initial m e a su re m e n t, financia l liabilities at amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised 
cost using the EIR . A m o rtis e d  co st is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on the issue 
and costs that are an in te g ra l p a r t o f  the EIR.

(ill) Deposits

The G roup 's d e p o s its  a re  categorized  into Government deposits and Financial institution deposits. 

Government D e p o s its

These are cu rre n t a c c o u n ts  m aintained by Government parastatal and ministries. They are measured at 
amortised cost (a m o u n t p la c e d )  and are interest free.

Finnacial In s titu tio n  D e p o s its  are c lassified  in to :
Current A c c o u n t D e p o s its

These are  d e p o s its  h e ld  by  th e  G roup on b ehalf o f  Deposit M oney Banks. They are m easured at 
amortised cost and a re  in te re s t  free.

Reserve A cco u n t D e p o s its

These are  s ta tu to ry  d e p o s its  m ade by Deposit Money Banks to the Group. They are m easured at 
amortised cost and are  in te re s t  free.
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▼

^/ing Deposit Facility

These are short term  p lacem en ts m ade by Deposit Money Banks. They are measured at amortised cost 
A(hinterest accruing on an effective  interest rate basis.

(/V) Financial G uarantee C  on tracts

Financial guarantee c o n trac ts  issued by the Group are those contracts that require a payment to be made 
sjitimburse the ho lder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in 
tcordance with the term s o f  a deb t instrum ent. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a 
ability at fair value, adjusted for transaction  costs that are directly attributable to the issuance o f the guarantee. 
Subsequently, the liability is m easured  at the higher o f  the best estimate o f  the expenditure required to settle the 
j?sent obligation at the rep o rtin g  date and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

(vj Derecognition
x

A financial liab ility  is d e recogn ised  w hen the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or 
npires. When an existing Financial liability  is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially 
f e n t  terms, o r the term s o f  an ex isting  liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification 
streated as the derecognition  o f  the  original liability and the recognition o f  a new liability. The difference in the 
ispective carrying am ounts is recognised  in incom e statement.

(c)Derivative F in a n c ia l In s tru m en ts '

Initial R ecognition a n d  S u b seq u en t M easurem ent

The Group ho lds financial instrum ents, such as futures and forward currency contracts and interest rate 
Mps. Such derivative  financia l instrum ents are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a 
Native contract is en tered  into and are subsequently  re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried'as 
foancial assets w hen the fa ir  v a lue  is positive  and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.

The purchase con tracts that m eet the definition o f  a derivative under IAS 39 are recognised in the income 
Element as N et trad ing  incom e. Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value o f derivatives are 
ton directly to incom e sta tem en t. T he derivative financial instrum ents o f  the Group include the currency 
fawd swap and the  future and forw ard  contracts within the externally managed investment. The derivatives 
"ifon the externally  m anaged investm ent are preaented as pan o f  external reserves while the currency forward 
^ c o n tra c t is presented  as financia l assets at fair value through profit or loss.

U Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower o f  cost and net realisable value. Cost includes all the expenses that were 
'’ttessarily incurred., based on the norm al level o f  activity; to bring the items to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is d efined  as the p roceeds less any costs and taxes directly incurred in the disposal o f  
to item.

Raw m aterial costs are recogn ised  on a first in first out basis. Finished goods and work in progress costs 
^computed using the average  cost o f  m aterials and labour plus an appropriate proportion o f  overheads, 

on norm al leve ls o f  activity .

^  Cash and Cash Equivalents -  ' }■

^ h a n d  cash eq u iva len ts as referred  to in the statem ent o f  cash flows comprise, deposit held at call w ith 
talks, other sh o rt term  h ig h ly  liqu id  investm ent, bank overdraft, cash portion o f  investm ents in foreign 
Purities, bank balances w ith  foreign  banks, sundry currencies balances and time deposits which are readily  
Avertible into cash  with a m atu rity  o f  three m onths or less.
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2.10. Property. P lant and E quipment

Property, plant an d  e q u ip m e n t is staled at cost, net o f  accumulated depreciation.and accumulated 
impairment losses, i f  any. Su ch  cost includes the cost o f replacing part o f the property, plant and equipment 
jfthe recognition c rite ria  are m et. W hen significant parts o f  property, plant and equipment are required to be 
replaced at intervals, th e  G ro u p  recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and 
depreciates them  acco rd in g ly . A ll o th er repair and maintenance costs are recognised in income statement as 
incurred.

Depreciation is c a lcu la te d  on straight-line base on the following depreciation r a te :
Subsequent costs a re  included in the asset's earn ing  amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, 

only when it is p ro b ab le  th a t fu tu re  econom ic benefits associated with the item will flow to the group and the 
cost of the item can be m easu red  reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

Asset Category Depreciation rate (%)

Land and B u ild in g s :
•Central A ir C o n d itio n e rs  4
- Lifts 4
-Buildings - 2

.1 iotor I e l u d e s :
•B uses j2 /3
-Cars 16.7-20
•Lorries 10

Plant and E q u ip m e n t :
•A ir C ond itioners. G en era to rs  and W ater Pum ps 15
• Currency P ro c e ss in g  M ach in es 10

Plant and M achinery ' 5
Furnitures and  F ittin g s  10-20
Computer E q u ip m en t 33'A
Laboratory E q u ip m en t 5

The G roup co m m en ces dep recia tion  when the asset is available for use. Land is not depreciated.

Capital w o rk -in -p ro g ress  is n o t depreciated as these assets are not yet available for use.

An item o f  property ; p lan t and  equipm ent and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized 
upon disposal o r  when n o  fu tu re  econom ic benefits are expected from its use disposal. Any gain or loss arising . 
on derecognition o f  th e  a sse t (calcu la ted  as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the earn ing  
amount o f  the asset) is in c lu d ed  in incom e statem ent when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, usefu l lives  and m ethods o f  depreciation o f  property, plant and equipm ent are 
reviewed at each  fin a n cia l y e a r  end and  adjusted prospectively, i f  appropriate.

H i .  I v r . w G i B L E A s s e t s

Intangible assets a cqu ired  separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition. 
'tangible a sse ts  are carried  at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated im pairment losses, i f  
any Internally gen era ted  in tang ib les . excluding  capitalised development costs. are not capitalised and the  
Mated expend iture  is re fle c te d  in incom e statem ent in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.
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The useful lives o f intangible assets are assessed as finite.

Intangible assets w ith  f in ite  lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment 
wiienever there is an in d ica tio n  that, the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the 
jmortisation m ethod for an in tan g ib le  asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end o f  each 
reporting period. C hanges in th e  expected useful life o rtheexpectedpattern  o f  consumption of future economic 
benefits embodied in the asse t are  considered to modify the amortisation period or m ethod, as appropriate, and 
iff treated as changes in a c c o u n tin g  estim ates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives 
isrecognised in incom e s ta te m en t in am ortisation o f intangible assets.

Gains or losses aris ing  from  de-recognition  o f  an intangible asset are measured as the difference between 
the net disposal proceeds and th e  carry ing  am ount o f  the asset and are recognised in income statement when the 
asset is derecognised.

Research a n d  D eve lo p m en t C osts  v
/

Research costs are expensed  as incurred. Development expenditures on an individual project are recognized 
asan intangible asset w hen the  G roup can d em o n stra te :
/’•The technical feasibility* o f  com pleting  the intangible asset so that the asset will be available for use or sa le ; 

/ 'Its intention to com ple te  and  its ab ility  to use or sell the a s s e t ;
• How the asset will g e n e ra te  fu ture  econom ic b en efits ;
• The availability' o f  re so u rce s  to com plete the a s s e t ;
•The ability to  m easure  re liab ly  the expenditure during developm ent:
•The ability to  use the  in tan g ib le  asset generated.

Following initial reco g n itio n  o f  the developm ent expenditure as an asset, the asset is carried at cost less 
any accumulated am o rtisa tion  and accum ulated impairment losses. Am ortisation o f  the asset begins when 
development is com plete  and  the  asset is available for use. It is amortised over the period o f expected future 
befit. A m ortisation is reco rd ed  in incom e statement. During the period o f  developm ent, the asset is tested for 
impairment annually.

The annual am o rtisa tio n  ra te  generally  in use for the current and comparative year is as fo llo w s:
• Computer softw are  2 5 -33V,

212. Impairment of N on- fjnancial A ssets

The Group assesses., a t each  reporting  date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired, 
ifany indication exists, o r  w h en  annual im pairm ent testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the 
W s  recoverable am ount. A n a sse t 's  recoverable amount is the higher o f  an asset's or cash-generating unit's 

! T O )  fair value less costs o f  d isposa l and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual 
^ t .  unless the asset does n o t g en era te  cash inflows that are largely independent o f  those from other assets or 
groups o f assets. W hen th e  carry in g  am ount o f  an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is 
con$idered im paired  and is w ritte n  dow n to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, th e  estim ated  future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre- 
lax discount rate th at re flects cu rre n t m arket assessm ents o f  the time value o f  money and the risks specific to 
^  asset/1n determ in ing  fa ir v a lu e  less costs o f  disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If  
|°such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated 
f.'Taluatioil m ultiples, quo ted  sh a re  prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

! . ■ 1 ’ :
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The G roup bases its im pairm ent calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are 
prepared separately  fo r  each  o f  the G ro u p 's  CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets 
and forecast ca lcu la tio n s g en era lly  cover a period o f five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is 
calculated and applied  to p ro jec t future cash flows after the fifth year.

For assets ex c lud ing  goodw ill, an assessm ent is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is 
an indication th at p rev io u sly  recognised impairment losses nodonger exist or have decreased. If  such indication 
exists, the G roup e stim a tes the  asse t's  or C G IF s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss 
is reversed on ly  if  th e re  has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount 
since the last im pairm ent loss w as recognised. The reversal is limited so that the earn  ing amount o f the asset 
does not exceed its reco v e rab le  am ount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net 
of depreciation, had no im pairm ent loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized 
in the income sta tem ent.

v
2.13. External Reserves

The G roup m ain ta ins a reserve o f  external assets consisting o f Gold. Convertible currencies. Other foreign 
securities and In tern a tio n a l M onetary ' Fund (IMF) reserve tranche.

Gold

Gold reserves are  held fo r long-term  purposes and are not being traded. It is carried at the lower of cost or 
net realisable value.

Convertible C u rren cies

These are tim e d e p o s its  and balances with foreign banks and other foreign securities where the currency 
is freely convertib le  and  in such  currency, notes, coins and m oney at call.

Other F oreign  S e c u r itie s

These are secu rities  o f  an y  country  outside Nigeria whose currency is freely convertible and the securities 
shall mature in a period  n o t exceeding five years from the date o f  acquisition.

These secu rities are fu rth e r analysed into internally managed fund and externally managed fund. Internally 
managed fund is c lass ified  as held-to -m aturity  due to the intention o f  the Group to hold them to maturity while 
the externally m an ag ed  fund is classified as held for trading investm ent. The externally managed fund also 
includes deriva tive  in stru m en ts . (R efer to policy on financial instrum ents in Note 2.7 on how it is being 
measured).

All external reserve balances at year end are converted into Naira in accordance with the policy in Note 2.6. 

2.14. Fair V alle  M easurement

The G ro u p  m easu res financia l instrum ents, such as derivatives, investm ent in financial instrum ents 
classified as av a ilab le -fo rsa les  and investm ents in financial instrum ents classified as held for trading at fair 
value at each s ta tem en t o f  financia l position  date. Fair value related disclosures for financial instruments and 
non-flnancial asse ts th a t are  m easured at fair.value or where fair values are disclosed are. summarised in the 
following n o te s :

• D isc losu res fo r  v a lu a tio n  m ethods, significant estimates and assum ptions N otes 3.5 and 2.27
• Q uantita tive  d isc lo su re s  o f  fair value measurement hierarchy N ote 3.5
• F inancia l in stru m en ts  (includ ing  those carried at amortised cost) N ote  3.5
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Fair value is the price th a t w ould  be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
action between m arket p a rtic ip an ts  at the measurement date. The fair value m easurement is based on the 
gumption that the tran sac tio n  to  sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place e ith e r : _

• In the principal m arket fo r  the asset or liability, or
• In the absence o f  a p rin c ip a l m arket, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the m o st advantageous m arket must be accessible to by the Group.

The fair value o f  an a sse t o r  a liab ility  is measured using the assum ptions that market participants would 
gcivhen pricing the asset o r  liab ility , assum ing that market participants act in their economic best interest.

The Group uses v a lu a tio n  techn iques that are appropriate in the circum stances and for which sufficient 
2iaare available to m easure fa ir value., m aximising the use o f  relevant observable inputs and minimising the use 
{/unobservable inputs.

All assets and liab ilitie s  fo r  which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial 'statements are 
stfgorised within the  fa ir  v a lu e  h ierarch); described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is 
significant to the fa ir value  m easu rem en t as a whole :
‘  4

• level 1— Q uoted (u n a d ju s te d )  m arket prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
• level 2— V aluation tec h n iq u es  for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

m easurem en t is d irectly  or indirectly observable.
•Level 3— V aluation tec h n iq u es  for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 

m easu rem en t is unobservable.

For assets and liab ilitie s  th a t are recognised in the financial statem ents on a recurring basis., the Group 
ra t in e s  whether tran sfe rs  h av e  occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation 
f a  on the low est level in p u t th a t is significant to the fair value m easurem ent as a whole) at the end o f each 

[ f a n g  period.

I The Group's m anagem ent determ ines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, 
pchasavailable-for-sale fin an c ia l assets.

For the purpose o f  fa ir  v a lu e  disclosures, the Group has determined classes o f  assets and liabilities on the 
p is  of the nature, c h a ra c te ris tic s  and risks o f  the asset or liability and the level o f  the fair value hierarchy as 
J gained above.

[ t o  Other Assets

I Other assets are gen era lly  defined  as claim s held against other entities for the future receipt o f  money. The 
pier assets in the c o n so lid a ted  and  separate financial statem ents include the follow ing :

I [a) Prepayments

I Prepayments are p ay m en ts  m ade in advance for services to be enjoyed in future. The am ount is initially 
Vitalized in the reporting  p e rio d  in which the payment is made and subsequently  am ortised over the period 

P 't ic h  the.service is to be en joyed .

{b) Other R ece ivab les

Other receivables are reco g n ized  upon the occurrence o f  event or transaction as they arise and cancelled 
"tan payment is rece ived .

N o t e s  t o  t h e  C o n s o l i d a t e d  F i n a n c i a l  S t a t e m e n t s  f o r  t h e  Y e a r  E n d e d  3 1  s t  D e c e m b e r ,  2 0 1 4
(A ll Amounts are in millions o fS a ira . unless otherwise stated)
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2.16. Employee Benefits

The G roup operates v a rio u s post-em ploym ent schemes, including both defined benefit and defined 
contribution pension  p lan s and post employm ent benefits.

Pensions a n d  o ilier p o s h  em ploym ent benefits

(o) D efined C o n tribu tion  Pension Plan

The g roup  operates a defined  contribution pension plan in accordance with the Pension Reform Act. 
Under the plan, the em ployee  con tribu tes 7.5%  o f  basic salary, housing and transport allowances and CBN 
contributes 15% on th e  sam e basis. Pension remittances are made to various PFAs on behalf o f the Bank's staff 
on a monthly basis. C B N  has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. Contribution 
payable is recorded as an expense u n d e r ‘personnel expenses'. Unpaid contributions are recorded as a liability.

(6) D efined  B enefit Schem es

The G roup also o p e ra tes  defined benefit plans which include pension scheme (for pensioners who 
resigned before 30th Ju n e . 2011 and those who had not reached pensionable age), gratuity scheme and post­
retirement m edical b en efits . T he defined benefit pension scheme is funded which requires contributions to be 
made to a separa tely  ad m in istered  fund. O ther benefits are unfunded.

The G roup  p rov id es post-re tirem en t healthcare benefits to j t s  retirees. The entitlem ent to these benefits 
is usually cond itional on th e  em ployee rem aining in service up to retirem ent age and the completion o f  a 
minimum sen d e e  period.

CENTRAL BANK OF NIGERIA
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Re-m easurem ents, co m p ris in g  o f  actuarial gains and losses, the effect o f  the asset ceiling, excluding net 
interest (not ap p licab le  to  th e  G roup) and the return on plan assets (excluding net interest), are recognized 
immediately in the s ta tem en t o f  financial position with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings 
through O Ci in the period  in w hich they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to income statement in 
subsequent periods.

Past se n d e e  costs are  recognised  in income statement on the earlier o f :
• The date o f  th e  p lan  am endm ent or cu rta ilm en t; and
• The date  that the  G ro u p  recognises restructuring-related costs.

Net in terest is ca lcu la ted  by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The 
Group recognises th e  fo llo w in g  changes in the net defined benefit obligation under 'personnel cost' in income 
statement :

• S e rv icf costs co m p ris in g  current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and
non -ro u tin e  se ttlem en ts  ! < vi‘

• Net in terest ex p en se  o r incom e.

(c) Other L o n g  Term E m p lo ym en t B enefits
N

These are  all em p lo y ee  benefits o ther than post employment benefits and term ination benefits which 
includes long  serv ice  aw ards.

The am o u n t recogn ised  as the liability  is the net total at the end o f  the reporting period o f  the present 
value o f the defined b en efit ob ligation . The net total o f the service cost, net interest and remeasurem ent o f  the 
defined benefit liab ility  a r e c o g n i s e d  in the income statement.
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N otes to the C onsolidated Financial Statements for the Y ear Ended 3 1st December, 2014 
{AM Amounts are In millions o f Xaira. jinless otherwise stated)

rfX*— ' ' '
l \ l  Provisions -

(a) General

Provisions are recognised  w hen the  Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result o f  a 
just event, it is p robable  that an ou tflow  o f resources embodying econom ic benefits will be required to settle 
& obligation and a re liab le  estim ate  can be made o f  the amount o f  the obligation. When the Group expects 
some or all o f  a p rov ision  to  be reim bursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is 
recognized as a separate  asse t, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a 
provision is presen ted  in incom e statem ent net o f  any reimbursement.

Ifthe effect o f  the  lim e value o f  m oney is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate 
&3ireflects, when ap p ropria te , the  risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the 
provision due to the  passage o f  tim e is recognised as other operating expenses.

(b) Leave P a y  A ccru a l  K ■
Leave pay accrual at the reporting  date represents the present obligation to employees as a result of 

{oiployees' serv ices p rov ided  up to  the reporting date. The accrual is measured as the amount that is expected 
iobepaid as a re su lt o f  the  leave entitlem ent that has accumulated at the reporting date.

118. International Monetary Fund (IM F) Related Transactions

The Group, on b eh a lf o f  th e  Federal Governm ent o f  Nigeria, m anages assets and liabilities in respect of 
Special Drawing R ights (S D R s) with the International M onetary Fund (IM F). Exchange gains and losses 
tfislng from transla tion  o f  SD R s at period ends are treated in accordance with note 2.6 above.

The Group p resen ts  th e  h o ld in g s  and allocations o f  the IMF SDR as an asset and liability' respectively on 
^statement o f  financia l p o sitio n . These have been accounted for as financial instrum ents in accordance with 
IAS 39. The h o ld ings o f  th e  IM F  SD R are classified as financial asset m easured at amortised cost while the 
allocations o f  SD R  are  c lassified  as financial liabilities at amortised cost.

(ff) Holdings o f  S p ec ia l D ra w in g  R ights {SDRs)

The value o f  ho ld in g s from  the  IM F changes on the basis o f  foreign exchange transactions between the 
fonibercountries. In ad d ition , its value  is affected by interests earned and paid as well as remuneration on the 
Croup claims in the  IMF. SD R  are  presented at their nominal value plus interest accruing on SDR holdings and 
itineration receivab le, m in u s assessm ent fees and charges.

[b) A llocations o f  S p ec ia l D ra w in g  R ights (SDRs)

The allocation o f  SD R s takes the form o f  a counter account to IMF claim s which are'recorded based, on 
foir nominal v a lu e  and p resen ted  in the statem ent o f  financial position as a liability.

(f) IMF R e la ted  L iab ilities

IMF related liab ilitie s  rep resen t o ther payables owed by the Group to the General Resources Account o f  
^F. These are reco g n ised  in itia lly  at fair value and subsequently m easured at am ortised cost using the 
Active interest m ethod.

[d] Quota in  IM F

The quota in In tern a tio n a l M onetary  Fund (IM F) is the reserve tranche held w ith the  IM F by mem ber 
% s. The quota  is treated  as n on-in terest bearing instrument with no stated maturity. These are recognised 
,l!itially at fair v a lu e  and su b seq u e n tly  m easured at amortised cost.
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2.19. Bank notes and coins in circulation*

Notes and coins issu ed  are m easured at cost as this liability does not have a fixed maturity date. The Bank 
notes and coins in c irc u la tio n  represent the nominal value of all bank notes held by the public  and banks, 
including recalled, still exch an g eab le  bank notes from previous series.

2.20. Statutory Transfer to the Federal Government of Nigeria

In accordance w ith  S ec tio n  22( 1) and (2) o f  the Fiscal Responsibility Act (FRA) 2 0 0 1  the Group makes 
an annual statutory tra n s fe r  rep resen ting  eighty percent o f the operating surplus o f the Bank for the year to the 
Federal Governm ent o f  N ig e ria  not later than one (1) month following the deadline for the publication o f the 
financial statem ents o f  th e  G roup . The operating surplus o f the Bank is the remaining sum from its income and 
other receipts after m ee tin g  all expenditures as approved by the Board o f  Directors. The transfer is presented 
in (he statement o f  c h an g e s  in equ ity  o f  the Bank.

2.21. Government Grants k .
Government g ran ts  are  recognised w here there is reasonable assurance that the gram will be received and 

all attached co n d itions w ill be com plied w ith. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as 
income on a system atic  b a sis  over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are 
expensed. W hen the g ran t re la tes to an asset, it is recognised as income in equal amounts over the expected 
useful life o f  the re la ted  a sse t.

When the G roup rece iv es  grants o f  non-m onetary assets, the asset and the gram are recorded at nominal 
amounts and released  to incom e statem ent over the expected useful life in a pattern o f  consumption of the 
benefit o f  the und erly in g  asse t by equal annual instalments.

2.22. Leasing

The determ ination  o f  w he th er an arrangem ent is a lease, or contains a lease, is based on the substance o f 
the arrangement and re q u ire s  an assessm ent o f  whether the fulfilment o f  the arrangement is dependent on the 
use of a specific  asset o r a sse ts  and the arrangem ent conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if  that right 
■is not explicitly sta ted  in an arrangem ent.

Group as a L essee

le a se s  w hich do  n o t tran sfe r  to the G roup substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership 
of the leased item s are  o p e ra tin g  leases. O perating lease payments are recognised as other operating expenses 
in income sta tem ent on a s tra ig h t-lin e  basis over the lease term.

Group as a L esso r
n

Leases w here th e  G ro u p  does not transfer substantially all the risk and benefits o f  ownership o f  the asset 
are classified as o p e ra tin g  leases, initial d irect costs incurred in negotiating operating leases are added to the 
carrying am ount o f  th e  leased  asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. The 
Group leases fo u r o ffice  sp aces  w ithin its head office building and earns rentals which is recognised as income 
in the period to  w hich  it re la tes.

C ontingent rents are  recognised  as incom e in the period in which they are earned.

2.23. Non-current Assets Held for Sale
Non-current assets (o r  d isp o sa l groups) are classified as held for sale -if the e a rn in g  am ount will be recovered 
principally th rough  sa le  ra th e r  than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the 
sale is h ighly  p ro b ab le , the  asse ts (o r d isposal groups) are available for im m ediate sale in its present condition 
and m anagem ent is co m m itte d  to the sale which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a com pleted 
sale within o n e  year from  th e  date o f  the classification.

CENTRAL BANK OF NIGERIA
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Prior to being  c lassified  as held for sale, the carrying amount o f  assets and liabilities are measured in 
jccordance with the ap p licab le  standard. After classification as held for sale, it is measured at the lower o f the 
earning amount and fair va lue  less costs to sell. An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss for any 
initial and subsequent w rite-dow n  o f  the asset and disposal group to fair value less costs to sell. Again for any 
subsequent increase in fa ir  value  less costs to sell is recognised in profit or loss to the extent that it is not in 
ccess of the cum ulative  im pairm ent loss previously recognised.

U4. Dividend D istribution

Dividend d istribu tion  to th e  shareholders is recognised as a liability in the Group's financial statements in 
ilcperiod in w hich  the d iv id en d s  are approved by the shareholders.

135. Sta n d a r d s  I s s u e d  b i t  n o t  v e t  E f f e c t iv e

The International F inancia l R eporting Standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, 
cpto the date o f  issuance o f  the G ro u p 's  financial statem ents are disclosed below. The Group Intends to adopt 
these standards, i f  ap p licab le , w hen they becom e effective.

IFRS 9 F in a n c ia l In s tru m en ts  <-
In July 2014. the IASB issued the final version ofIFR S  9 Financial Instruments which reflects all phases 

ofthe financial in strum en ts p ro jec t and replaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement 
slid all previous v e rs io n s  o f  IFR S  9. The standard introduces new requirem ents for classification and 
measurement. im pairm ent, and hedge accounting. IFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after l 
January 2018r w ith  early  a p p lica tio n  perm itted. R etrospective application is required, but comparative 
information is not com pulsory . Early application o f  previous versions o fIF R S  9 (2009. 2010 and 2013) is 
{emitted ifth e  da te  o f  initial app lication  is before I February 2015. The adoption ofIFR S 9 will have an effect 
on the classification and m easu rem en t o f  the G roup 's financial assets, but no impact on the classification and 
measurement o f  the  G ro u p 's  financia l liabilities.

IFRS 15 R evenue  fr o m  C o n tra c ts  w ith C ustom ers

IFRS 15 w as issued in M ay  2014 and establishes a new five-step model that will apply to revenue arising 
from contracts w ith  custom ers.’ U n d er IFRS 15 revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration 
io which an en tity  ex pects to  be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or sendees to a customer. The 
principles in IFRS 15 p ro v id e  a m ore structured approach to measuring and recognising revenue.

The new revenue  s tandard  is applicable to all entities and will supersede all current revenue recognition 
requirements u n d er IFR S. E ith e r a full or m odified retrospective application is required for annual periods 
leginning on or a fte r  1st Jan u ary . 2017 with early adoption permitted. The Group is currently assessing the 
impact of IFRS 15 and  p lan s to adop t the  new  standard on the required effective date.

Amendments to IA S  19 D e fin e d  B enefit P la n s : Employee Contributions

IAS 19 req u ires  an en tity  to  consider contributions from employees o r third parties when accounting for 
defined benefit p lan s . W here th e  con tribu tions are linked to service, they should be attributed to periods o f  
service as a negative  benefit. T hese  am endm ents clarify* that, if  the amount o f th e  contributions is independent 
ofthe number o f  y ea rs  o f  se rv ice , an entity  is permitted to recognise such contributions as a reduction in the 
service cost in the  period  in w h ich  the service is rendered, instead o f  allocating the contributions to the periods 
ofservice. This am endm en t is e ffective  for annual periods beginning on or After I Ju ly  2 0 14. It is not expected 
fat this am endm ent w ould  be re levan t to the Group, since the Group does not have defined benefit plans with 
contributions from  em p loyees o r  third parties.
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.■intendments to IA S  32— O ffse tting  F inancial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Effective fo r annual p e rio d s beginning on or after 1st January, 2014, the amendments must be applied 
retrospectively. T he am e n d m en ts  to IAS 32 Financial Instruments : Presentation clarify .the meaning o f  
'currently has a legally  en fo rceab le  right to set o ff '.  The amendments also clarify the application o f the IAS 
32 offsetting criteria  to  se ttlem en t system s (such as central clearing house systems), which apply gross 

: settlement m echanism s that are  not sim ultaneous. The amendments clarify that rights o f  set off must not only 
lie legally enforceable in the  norm al course o f  business, but m usralso be enforceable in the event o f  default and 
the event of bankruptcy  o r  in so lvency  o f  all o f  the counterparties to the contract, including the reporting entity 
iiseif. The am endm ents a lso  c larify  that rights o f  se t-o ff must not be contingent on a future event. The 
amendments c larify  that o n ly  g ross settlem ent m echanism s with features that eliminate or result in insignificant 
credit and liquidity* risk and th a t p rocess receivables and payables in a single settlement process or cycle would 
be. in effect, equ ivalen t to  net settlem ent and. therefore, meet the net settlement criterion. These amendments 
do not have any im pact on  th e  curren t G roup 's financial statements.

Amendments to  IA S  1 - IA S  I D isclosure Initiative

Effective fo r annual p e rio d s beginning on or after 1st January. 2016. early application is permitted and 
entities do not need to d isc lo se  that fact because the Board.considers these amendments to be clarifications that 
do not affect an en tity 's  acco u n tin g  policies o r accounting estimates. The amendments to IAS 1 Presentation 
ofFinancial S ta tem ents clarify , ra ther than significantly change, existing IASI requirements.The amendments
clarify':

. • The m ate ria lity  req u irem en ts  in IAS I.
• That specific  line  item s in the statem ent(s) o f  profit or loss and OCI and the statement o f  financial 

position m ay be d isaggregated .
• That en titie s hav e  flex ib ility  as to the order in which they present the notes to financial statements.
• That the  share  o f  O C I o f  associates and jo in t ventures accounted for using the equity method must be 

presented in ag g reg a te  as a single line item, and classified between those items that will o r will not be 
subsequently  rec lassified  to statem ent o f  com prehensive income.

Furthermore, the am en d m en ts  c larify  the requirem ents that apply when additional subtotals are presented 
! in the statem ent o f  fin an c ia l p osition  and the statem ent o f  profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

These am endm ents w ill im pact the  G roup 's financial statements presentation and disclosure requirements 
in IFRS, and do n o t a ffec t reco g n itio n  and m easurement.

Amendm ents to  IA S  27  : Equity- M eth o d  in Separate F inancial Statements

The am endm ents w ill a llo w  en tities to use the equity method to account for investments in subsidiaries, 
joint ventures and a sso c ia tes  in th e ir separate financial statements. Entities already applying IFRS and electing 
to change to the equ ity  m ethod  in its separate financial statements will have to apply that change retrospectively 
for first-time ad o p te rs  o f  IF R S  e lecting  to use the equity method in its separate financial statements, they will 
h  required to  ap p ly  th is  m ethod  from  the date o f  transition to IFRS. The amendm ents are effective for annual 
periods beg inn ing  on o r a fte r  1 January  2016, w ith early adoption permitted. These am endm ents w ill not have 
any impact on th e  G ro u p 's  financia l statem ents.

Annual Im p ro vem en ts  2 0 1 0 -2 0 1 2  C ycle

These im p ro v em en ts  are  effective  for annual periods beginning on or after 1 Ju ly  2014 and are not 
expected to h ave  a m ateria l im pact on the Group. They include :
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(JS16 Property, P la n t a n d  E quipm ent and  IAS  38 Intangible Assets

The am endm ent is app lied  retrospectively and clarifies in IAS 16 and IAS 38 that.the  asset may be 
revalued by reference  to  observable  data on either the gross or the net carrying amount. In addition, the 
accumulated d ep rec ia tio n  o r am ortisation is the difference between the gross and carrying amounts of the asset.

IAS 24 R e la ted  P a r ty  D isclosure

The am endm ent is app lied  re trospectively and clarifies that a management entity (an entity that provides 
key m anagem ent p e rsonnel services) is a related party subject to the related party disclosures. In addition, an 
entity that u ses a m anagem en t en tity  is required to disclose the expenses incurred for m anagement services.

Annual Im p ro vem en ts  2011-2013 Cycle

These im p ro v em en ts  are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014 and are not 
expected to h ave  a m ateria l im pact on the Group. They include : v

IFRS 13 F a ir  Value M easurem ent

The am endm en t is app lied  prospectively  and clarifies that the portfolio exception in IFRS. 13 can be 
applied not o n ly  to  financia l assets and financial liabilities, but also to other contracts within the scope o f IFRS 
9(or IAS 39. a s  ap p licab le).

A m endm ents to IA S  16 a n d  IA S  38 : Clarification o f  Acceptable Methods o f  Depreciation and Amortisation

The am en d m en ts clarify' the p rincip le in IAS 16 and IAS 38 that revenue reflects a pattern o f  economic 
benefits that a re  g en era ted  from  operating  a business (o f which the asset is. part) rather than the economic 
benefits that a re  co n su m ed  through use o f  the asset. As a result, a revenue-based method cannot be used to 
depreciate property', p lan t and equipm ent and may only be used in very limited circumstances to amortise 
intangible assets.

The am en d m en ts a re  effective p rospectiveiy for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January-’ 2016. with 
early adoption p e rm itted . T hese am endm ents are not expected to have any impact to the Group given that the 
Group has n o t used  a rev en u e  based m ethod to depreciate its non-current assets.

Annual Im p ro vem en ts  2 0 1 2 -2 0 14 Cycle  

■ D iscount R a t e R eg io n a l M arket I s s u e :
•• The am en d m en t c la rifies that m arket depth o f  high quality corporate bonds is assessed based on the 

cu rrency  in w hich  th e  obligation is denom inated, rather than the Country' where the obligation is located. 
W hen th e re  is n o  d e ep  m arket for high quality corporate bonds in that currency, government bond rates 
m ust be used. •

•• The am en d m en t m ust be applied prospectively.

2.26. S ig n if ic a n t  a c c o u n t in g  ju d g m e n t s , e st im a t e s  a n d  a s su m pt io n s

The p rep ara tio n  o f  th e  G ro u p 's  financial statem ents requires managem ent to make judgements., estimates 
a ssu m p tio n s th a t a ffe c t the  reported  am ount o f  revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the 

accompanying d isc losures, as well as the disclosure o f  contingent liabilities. Uncertainty'about these assumptions 
and estim ates c o u ld  re su lt in  outcom es that require a material adjustment to the carrying am ount o f  assets or 
labilities a ffec ted  in fu tu re  periods.

O ther d isc lo su res  re la tin g  to  the  G roup 's exposure to risks and uncertainties in c lu d e :
• C apital m an ag em en t Note 4
• F inancia l risk  m anagem en t and policies Note 3
• S en sitiv ity  an a ly se s  d isc losures Notes 3.4.3 and 33
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Judgements

In the process o f  applying th e  G roup’s accounting policies., management has made the following judgements, 
fliich have the m ost sig n ifican t effect on the am ounts recognised in the financial statem ents :>

Operating Lease C o m m itm en ts— G roup as Lessee

The Group has entered  in to  com m ercial property leases. The Group has determined, based on an evaluation 
ofthe terms and co n d itio n s o f  the  arrangem ents, such as the lease term not constituting a substantial portion 
ofihe economic life o f th e  com m ercial property, that it does not retain all the significant risks and rewards o f  
ownership o f these  p ro p e rties  and accounts for the contracts as operating leases.

Estimates a n d  A ssu m p tio n s

The key assum ptions co ncern ing  the future and other key sources o f  estimation at the reporting date, that 
have a significant risk o f  cau sin g  a m aterial adjustm ent to the carrying amounts o f  assets and liabilities within 
tKnext financial year, are  described  below. The Group based its assum ptions and estimates on parameters 
available when th e  financia l s ta tem en ts were prepared. Existing circumstances and assum ptions about future 
developments, how ever, m ay change  due to market changes or circumstances beyond the control o f the Group. 
Such changes are reflected  in th e  assum ptions when they occur. - .

Fair Value M ea su rem en t o f  F inancia l Instrum ents

When the fa ir values o f  financia l assets and financial liabilities recorded in the statement o f  financial 
position cannot be  m easured  based on quoted prices .in active markets., their fair value is measured using 
valuation techniques in c lu d in g  th e  D iscounted Cash Flow  (DCF) model. The inputs to these models are taken 
from observable m arkets w h ere  possib le, but where this is not feasible, a degree o f  judgem ent is required in 
establishing fa ir values. Jud g em en ts  include considerations o f  inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and 
volatility. Changes in assum ptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value o f financial instruments. 
See Note 3.5 fo r fu rth e r d isc lo su res .

Impairment L o sses on L o a n s  a n d  Receivables

The Group rev iew s its ind iv idually  significant loans and receivable at each reporting date to assess 
whether an im pairm ent loss shou ld  be recorded in income statement. In particular, management judgem ent is 
^uired in the estim ation  o f  th e  am ount and timing o f  future cash flows when determining the impairment loss.’ 
These estimates are  based on assum ptions about a num ber o f  factors and actual results may differ, resulting in 
ftturechanges to  the  a llo w an ce .

Loans and receivables th a t have been assessed individually and found not to be impaired and all individually 
insignificant lo an s  and re ce iv a b le s  are then assessed collectively, in groups o f  assets with sim ilar risk - 
characteristics, to  d e te rm in e  w h e th er provision should be made due to incurred loss events for which there is 
objective evidence but w h o se  e ffec ts are no t yet evident. The collective assessment takes account o f  data from 
ibeloan portfolio  (such as leve ls o f  arrears,, credit utilisation, loan to collateral ratios, etc.), and judgm ents to 
Jbeeffect o f  co n cen tra tio n s o f  risks and econom ic data (including countiy risk and the performance o f  different 
individual g roups). ;

Impairment o f  A va ila b le -fo r-S a le  F inancia l A ssets

hie Group rev iew s its a v a ila b le -fo r-s a le  debt and equity* securities for impairment at each statem ent o f. 
financial position  date to  assess  w hether they are impaired, t h i s  requires sim ilar judgm ent ,as applied to the 
'ndividual assessm ent o f  lo an s and receivables.
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Defined B enefit P lans

The cost o f  th e  defined  benefit pension plan, long service awards, gratuity scheme and post-employm ent 
medical benefits and the  p resen t value o f  these defined benefit obligations are determined using actuarial 
valuations. An actuarial valuation involves m aking various assumptions that may differ from actual developments 
in the future. T h ese  include th e  determ ination o f  the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and 
future pension increases. D ue to  the com plexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined 
benefit obligation is h igh ly  sensitive  to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each 
reporting date.

The param ete r m ost sub ject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate, 
management a ssum ption  w ith  reference to the y ields on N igerian Government bonds, as compiled by the Debt 
Management O ffice  w ere used  since there is no deep market in corporate bonds in Nigeria. The underlying 
bonds are fu rther review ed for quality. Those having excessive credit spreads are excluded from the analysis o f 
bonds on w hich th e  d iscount rate is based, on the basis that they do not represent high quality corporate bonds.

The m o rta lity  rate is based on pre-retirem ent m ortality: A 49/52 ultimate tables and post-retirement 
mortality: A55 ultim ate  tab les. Future salary increases is based on expected future inflation rates. “

Further d e ta ils  abou t defined  benefit obligations are given in Note 33.

Financial A sse ts  a n d  L iab ilities Classification

The G ro u p 's  a cco u n tin g  policies provide scope for assets and liabilities to be designated on inception into 
different acco u n tin g  categories in certain c ircu m stan ces:

Detail's o f  th e  G ro u p 's  classification  o f  financial assets and liabilities are given under the accounting 
policies in re la tin g  to  fin ancia l instrum ents.

Investment in S u b sid ia r ie s  a n d  A ssocia tes C lassification

The G roup h as a nu m b er o f  equity  investm ents. It assessed the extent to which it has control or significant 
influence over th o se  investees. The process o f  determ ining the existence o f  control or significant influence over 
tiie investees is a n  area th a t required  the exercise o f  judgem ent. Some o f  the investees were set up by specific 
legislation hence, w hich requ ired  judgem ent to be exercised in determ ining whether the Group had control or 
significant in flu en ce  over th e  investee entities.

Depreciation a n d  C a rry in g  Value o f  Property:, P lant an d  Equipm ent

The estim ation  o f  the usefu l lives o f  assets is based on m anagem ent's judgem ent. Any material adjustment 
to the estimated usefu l liv es o f  item s o f  property and equipm ent w ill have an.impact on the carrying-value o f 
these items.

Impairment o f  S o n - f in a n c ia l A ssets

Impairment ex is ts  w h en  the carrying value o f  an asset o r cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable 
^ount. which is th e  h ig h er o f  its fa ir value less costs o f  disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs 
°fdisposal calcu la tio n  is based  on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm 's length, for 
similar assets o r  o b se rv ab le  m arket prices less increm ental costs for disposing o f the asset. The value in use 
ab la tio n  is b ased  on a D C F  m odel. The cash flow s are derived from the budget for the next five years and do 
^ in c lu d e  re s tru c tu rin g  ac tiv ities  that the G roup is not yet com m ittedTo or significant future investm ents 
^1 will enhance th e  a sse t 's  perform ance o f  the CGU being tested. The recoverable am ount is sensitive to the 
discount rate u sed  fo r the D iscounted  Cash Flow  m odel as well as the expected future cash-inflow s and the 
®°«th rate u sed  fo r  ex trapo la tion  purposes.

CENTRAL BANK OF NIGERIA
N o t e s  t o  t h e  C o n s o l i d a t e d  F i n a n c i a l  S t a t e m e n t s  f o r  t h e  Y e a r  E n d e d  3 1  s r  D e c e m b e r ,  2 0 1 4

{All Amounts are in millions o fS a ita . unless otherwise stated)

44



CENTRAL BANK OF NIGERIA
N otes to  th e  C onsolidated F i n a n c i a l  Statements for the Y e a r  Ended 3 1  s t  D ecember. 2 0 1 4

(AH Amounts are in millions o f Xaira. unless otherwise stated)

Taxes

Uncertainties e x is t w ith  respect to the interpretation o f complex tax regulations, changes in tax laws, and 
the amount and tim in g  o f  fu tu re  taxable income. Given the wide range of international business relationships 
and the long-term  n a tu re  an d  com plex ity  o f  existing contractual agreements, differences arising between the 
actual results and th e  a ssu m p tio n s  made, or future changes to such assumptions, could necessitate future 
adjustments to tax in co m e and  expense already recorded. The Group establishes provisions, based on reasonable 
estimates, for poss ib le  co n seq u en ces  o f  audits by the tax authorities of the respective counties in which it 
operates. The am o u n t o f  su c h  p ro v isions is based on various factors, such as experience o f previous tax audits 
and differing in te rp re ta tio n s  o f  tax regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible tax authority. Such 
differences in in te rp re ta tio n  m ay arise for a wide variety' o f issues depending on the conditions prevailing in the 
respective dom icile  o f  th e  G ro u p  com panies.

Deferred tax a sse ts  a re  recogn ised  for unused-tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit 
will be available ag a in s t w h ich  the  losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to 
determine the am o u n t o f  d e fe rred  tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level 
offliture taxable p ro f its  to g e th e r  w ith future tax planning strategies.

Development c o s ts

The G roup c a p ita lis e s  dev elo p m en t costs for a project in accordance with the accounting policy. Initial 
capitalisation o f  c o s ts  is based  on m anagem ent's judgem ent that technological and economic feasibility' is 
confirmed, usually  w h en  a p ro d u c t developm ent project has reached a defined milestone according to an 
established p ro jec t m an a g em e n t m odel. In determining the amounts to be capitalised, management makes 
assumptions reg ard in g  th e  ex p ec ted  future cash generation o f  the project, discount rates to be applied and the 
expected period o f  b e n e fits .

The developm en t c o s ts  th a t w ere capitalised by the Group relates to those arising from the development 
of computer softw are.

3. Financial Risk Management and Financlal Instruments Classification

In carrying o u t a c tiv it ie s  re la ted  to  its mandate, the Bank is exposed to a broad range o f risks including 
operational, credit, m a rk e t (in c lu d in g  currency risk, fair value interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and 
equity and comm odity' p rice  risks), liquidity, policy and reputational risks. The Bank is committed to maintaining 
these risks at a level th a t d o e s  n o t constrain  it from achieving its set objectives.

In line w ith the  above., th e  B an k  has adopted an Enterprise wide approach to Risk Management. Enterprise 
Risk M anagem ent (E R M ) p ro v id es  an integrated platform for managing risk acrosstall its operations. This 
approach ensures u n ifo rm ity  and  consistency  o f  risk m anagement processes and the ability to aggregate risks 
across the B ank.

An ERM  fram ew o rk  w h ic h  defines the  B ank's methodologies for risk identification, assessment and risk 
response stra tegies in l in e  w ith  the  B ank 's risk appetite is under review. The framework is based on the 
following key p rin c ip les .

• Risk m an ag em en t is o w n ed  and driven by the CBN Board o f  D irectors;
• Risk c o n s id e ra tio n s  sh o u ld  be a key factor in decisions m ak in g ; and
• Risk m an ag em en t is e v e ry o n e 's  business.
• Risk g o v ern an ce  s tru c tu re .

The C B N  B oard  o f  D ire c to rs  has overall responsibility for Risk Management in the Bank. A number o f  
tay risk m anagem en t fu n c tio n s  h ave  been delegated to the Investment Committee and Board Audit and Risk 
Committee (B A R C ).
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flic Committee o f  G overnors (C O G ) has overall executive responsibility for risk management and is 

stable to the B oard  for en su rin g  adequate risk managem ent structures and processes are in place.
•Bank's Risk G overnance S truc tu re  is as show n b e lo w :

• CENTRAL BANK OF NIGERIA

/
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The risk  m anagem ent function  o f  the Bank is co-ordinated by the Risk Management Departm ent which 
has the follow ing m a n d a te s :

(1) im plem ents risk  m anagem ent framework for identifying, managing, monitoring and controlling the 
risks that could  im pede the  fu lfilm ent o f  the Bank's m andate; and

(2) prom ote  a strong  corporate  governance, risk culture and expertise across the Bank.
The d ep artm en t’s O rganisational Structure is as shown below :

The E R M  g o v ern an ce  s tru c tu re  defines the ownership, accountability and responsibilities fo r each 
component o f  the B a n k ’s risk  m anagem ent approach. Below are the key roles and responsibilities as defined in 
the ERM  fram ew ork  :

The B o a rd

(a) A pproves the  risk  s tra tegy  for the Bank based on recommendations o f the B A R C ;
(b) Sets the B an k ’s risk  appetite  i.e. risk parameters and tolerances within which the Bank conducts its 

activities, and ap p ro v es risk  system s for management and monitoring o f the Bank’s risks p ro file :
(c) D eterm ines and periodical!} ' reviews key Bank policies and processes to ensure that they are appropriate 

for the ach ievem en t o f  the  B a n k ’s m andate and strategic objectives.
(d) M on ito rs th e  en te rp rise  risk  profile, risk exposures, risk management initiatives, reviews risk reports 

and in stitu tes ap p ro p ria te  risk  rew ard systems in line with the Bank’s risk appetite.

/ *
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jhe Board A u d it a n d  R isk  C om m ittee  {BARC)

(0) Reviews and reco m m en d s the risk  strategy, appetite and reports to the Board for approval on an 
innoal basis or as m ay be req u ired .
[b) Assists the B oard in fu lfillin g  its oversight responsibilities with respect to risk management and 

ensures that roles and re sp o n sib ilitie s  for risk management are clearly defined.
(c, Monitors en terprise  risk  p ro file , risk exposures, and risk management initiatives and recommends to 

the Board risk system s and so lu tio n s to facilitate the management and m onitoring o f risks bank-wide.

Committee o f  G overnors [C O G )

(a) Ensures that su ffic ien t re sources are deployed for the management o f risk across the Bank.
(J) Considers risk  reports and approves remedial actions, or recommends risk treatment options to the 

Board as appropriate  su p erv ises  the  im plem entation o f  risk treatment plans.
(c) Monitors the risk p ro file  to  ensure that it is within the B ank's risk appetite.

Risk.Management E xecu tive  C om m ittee [R M E xco)

(a) Recommends risk s tra teg y  and appetite for Board Audit & Risk Committee (BARC) consideration.
(b) Promotes the  im p lem en tation  o f  risk m anagem ent strategies, initiatives and policies.
(f)Reviews and recom m ends risk  lim its.
(<0 Reviews the  assessm en t o f  risk  exposures and makes appropriate recommendations.

Risk M anagem ent D ep a rtm en t (R M D )
(a) Coordinates th e  im p lem en ta tio n  o f  risk m anagem ent strategies, initiatives and policies.
(A) Monitors risk  lim its and  m akes recom m endations as appropriate.
(c) Facilitates risk  assessm en ts and m akes recom m endations as appropriate.
(d) Recommends ap p ro p ria te  risk  reward system.
(e) Manages th e  E n te rp rise  R isk  Register.
if) Facilitates risk  data ga th e rin g , verification and aggregation.

Risk M anagem ent C ore P ro cesse s

Strategy P olicy  and R ep u ta tio n a l R isk  • Policy Gap/Impact Analysis
• Strategic Risk Assessment
• Conduct Risk Surveys
• M onitor Key Risk Indicators
• Reputational Risk Assessment
• Coordinate C h ief Risk Officers (CRO) Forum
• C oordinate Key Risk Indicator reporting

Credit R isk • Profile Sovereign and Counterpart)’ risk
• Review  Strategic Asset A llocation
• Evaluate B ank's Credit Risk exposure
• Develop and Review Credit Risk Fram ew ork
• Review  Investment Policy and Lim its
• Provide R isk A dvisory to Investm ent C om m ittee
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Market and L iq u id ity  R isk  • CBN Balance Sheet Analysis
• Macroeconomic Risk Analysis
• Income Analysis
• New Instruments/Products Analysis
• Provide Risk Advisory Input into Monetary Policy 

Technical Committee (MPTC)

N otes to the C onsolidated F inancial Statements for the Y ear Ended 3 1  st D ecember. 2 0 1 4

(A ll Amounts are in millions o f Xaira, unless otherwise staled)

IT and Paym ent S ystem s R isk

O perational R isk  and  B usiness Continuity

3.1. Financial Instruments by Category

• IT Vulnerability Analysis
• Monitor IT Risk Indicators
• New Systems Analysis
• Information Security Certification
• Payment System Risk Assessment
• IT and Payment System Incidents Resolution

• Risk Control Self Assessments v
• Coordinate Risk Control Network (RCN)
• Maintain Enterprise Risk Register
• Coordinate Implementation o f  Enterprise Risk

Manag ement (ERM) Framework and policies
• Coordinate Business Continuin’ Management

Financial assets a re  c lassified  betw een four measurement categories: held at fair value through profit or 
loss (com prising trad in g  and  designated)., available-for-sale. loans and receivables and held-to-maturify.

Financial liab ilities are  c lassified  into two measurement categories: held at fair value through profit or loss 
(comprising trad ing  and  desig n ated ) and other liabilities at amortised cost.

Financial in stru m en ts  a re  classified in the statement o f  financial position in accordance with their legal 
form, except fo r in stru m en ts  that are held for trading purposes and those that the Bank has designated to hold 
at fair value th rough  th e  p ro fit and loss account. The latter are combined on the face o f the statement of 
financial position  and  d isc lo sed  as financial assets o r liabilities held at fair value through profit or loss.

The B an k ’s c lass ifica tio n  o f  its principal financial assets and liabilities is summarised in the table below.
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fcyNCiAL A s s e t s  

Group

JlstDecember. 2014 
External R eserv e s  :

Current Accounts w ith  Foreign  B anks 
Time Deposits and M oney placem ents 
Domiciliary A ccounts
Sundry'Currencies and  T rav e lle rs ' C heques 
Short Term D eposits
Hi Securities:
■ Held For T rad ing  
• Held to M aturity

Dirivanves
•Fonvard C o n trac ts

Derivatives from In terna l Sw ap A rrangem ents 
M F  Holdings o f  S p e c ia l  D r a w in g  R ig h t s  : 
Holdings of Special D raw ing  R ights 
Quota in IMF
loans and R eceivables 
Deposit for Shares
Available for Sale E q u ity  Investm ents 
Cash and Bank B a lan ces in Subsidiary'
local Debt Ins tru m en ts

•Nigerian T reasury  B ills 
FGN Bonds

A t fa ir  value Available- Held to Loans and Total
through  
profit or

for-Sale Maturin’ receivables

loss
A-' ’million X  'million ■V 'million X- 'million & 'million

. _ _ 1.045.436 1.045.436
_ — — 2.168.548 2.168.548
_ — — 570.401 570.401
. _ — 42.845 42.845

— — — 349.399 349.399

1.338.014 _ — 1.338.014
— 302.052 — - 302.052

21,099 _ — — 2.1.099

2,404 — — — 2.404

. 406.403 406,403
_ 421.713 421.713

5.005.685 5.005.685
- 2.500 2.500

— 1.380 —
3.301

1.380
3.301

—

1.361.517

3.122
128

~~ 4,630

60.180
117,462
479,694 10,016,231

63,302
117,590

H ,862,072
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Financial L ia b il it ie s  

Group

31st Decem ber. 2014 
D eposits :

Government D eposits  
Other A ccounts
Financial Institu tions— C u rren t and Settlement Accounts 
Financial In stitu tions— B an k s ' Reserve Accounts
IMF R e l a t e d  L ia b il it ie s  :
IMF Related L iab ilitie s
IMF A llocation o f  S p ecia l D raw ing  R ights
Central  B a n k  o f  N ig e r ia  I n s t r u m e n t s  :
Open M arket O pera tio n s— C entral Bank o f  Nigeria Bills 
Bank N otes and C o in s in C ircu la tion
Derivatives

-D e riv a tiv e sa ris in g  from  Forw ard Exchange Contracts 
- D erivatives in E x te rn a l R eserves

Ollier lia b ilit ie s :
Accrued C harges
Surplus Payable  to F e d e ra l G overnm ent o fN igeria  
Sundry Payables 
Trade Payables
Bank B orrow ings and O verd raft

Other Liabilities Total
Financial at fa ir  value
Liabilities through

at Amortised Profit and
Cost Loss

& 'million A-' ’million A' ’million

1.432.462 _ l .432.462
1.199.238 — 1.199.238

564.179 — 564.179
3.583.636 — 3.583.636

421.727. V _ __ 421.727
406.458 — 406.458

2.755.61 1 _ 2.755.611
1.797.832 — 1.797.832

24.704 24.704
— 176 176

17.784
151654
717.960

2.920

-- - 11784
152.654
717.960

1920
20.49320.493

13,072,954 24,880 13,097,834

v
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{All Amounts are in millions o f Saira. unless otherwise stated)

fjoseut A ss e t s  

Group

list December. 2013  
External Reserves :
Current Accounts w ith  F oreign  B anks 
Time Deposits and  M oney  placem ents 
Domiciliary A ccounts
Sundry*Currencies and T rav e lle rs ' C heques 
Short Term D eposits
Drbi Securities:
•Held for T rading 
•Held to M aturity

IkrivQtives
•Futures C ontract 
•Forward C o n trac ts

WF Holdings o f  S p e c ia l  D r a w in g  R ig h t s  : 
Holdings o f Special D raw ing  R ights
Quota in I M F
Loans and R eceivables 
Accounts Receivable
Ctshand Bank B a lan ces in Subsidiary '
Deposit for Shares
Available for Sale Equity' Investm en ts 
too/ Debt Instrum en ts  

•Nigerian T reasu ry  B ills 
•FGN Bonds

A t fa ir  value Available- Held to Loans and Total
through for-Sale M aturift receivables 
profit or 

loss
million A-”,million million A?’million million

* -
641.975 641.975

— — — 3.785.567 3.785.567
_ — — 506.949 506.949
_ — — 58.375 58,375
— — — 55.200 55.200

1.507.540 _ — 1.507.540
— — 77.996 — 77,996

941 _ — — 941
8.228 — 8,228

- 400.351 400,351
r — — — 411015 412.015

_ — 4.392.773 4.391773
— — 3.247 3r247

_ 7.892 7.892
* _ 2.100 1 100

— 1.380 . 1.380

3.027 57.503 — 60,530

— 133 i 11.891 
ion in 766 1AA

111024
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CENTRAL BANK. OF NIGERIA
N otes to toe C onsolidated Financial Statements for the Y ear Ended 3 1 st D ecember. 2014

(A ft Amounts are in millions o f Saira. unless otherwise stated)

Oilier Liabilities Total
Financial L ia b il it ie s Financial at fa i r  value

Liabilities through
Group at Am ortised Profit and

Cost Loss
31st December. 2013 million ■£'million £ ' million
Dewsits :
Government D eposits 1.584.437 — 1.584.437
Other Accounts 1.099.950 — 1.099.950
Financial Institu tions— C u rren t and Settlem ent Accounts 1.227.870 — 1.227.870
Financial Institu tions— B a n k s ' R eserve A ccounts 
IMF Related L ia b il it ie s  :

2.216.552 — 2216.552

IMF Related L iab ilities 412.028
V  . 412.028

IMF Allocation o f  Specia l D raw ing  R ights 
Central B a n k  o f  N ig e r ia  In s t r u m e n t s  :

400.402 — 400.402

Central Bank o f  N ig eria  P ro m isso ry  N otes 461 — 461
fyen Market O p e ra tio n s— C en tra l B an k  o f  N igeria Bills -3.738.632 — 3.738.632
Bank Notes and C o in s in C ircu la tio n 1.776.302 — 1.776.302

Other liabilities :
Accrued Charges 23.685 — 23.685
Surplus Payable to  Federal G overnm en t o f  N igeria 152.654 — 152.654
Sundry Payables 746.123 — 746.123
trade Payables 1.145 — 1.145
Bank Borrowings and O v erd raft — —

13,380,241 — 13 ^8 0 ^4 1
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CENTRAL BANK OF NIGERIA
N o t e s  t o  the C o n s o l i d a t e d  F i n a n c i a l  S t a t e m e n t s  for the Y e a r  E n d e d  3  1 s t  D e c e m b e r ,  2 0 1 4

{All Amounts are in millions o f Saira. unless otherwise stated) ‘

Financial A ssets At fair value Available- Held to Loans and

Bank
through 
profit or 

loss

for-Sale . Maturity• receivables

31st December. 2014 
External R eserves :

A-’ 'million A 'million A” ’million A ’million

Current A ccounts with Foreign  B anks — — — 1,045.436
Time Deposits and M oney placem ents — — 2.168,548
Domiciliary A ccounts — — — 570.401
Sundry'Currencies and T rav e lle rs ' C heques — — — 42.845
Short Term D eposits 
Debt Securities:

349.399

-Held for T rad ing 1.338.014 — K —
- Held to M aturity

Derivatives
— 303.052

• Forward C ontracts
IMF Holdings of Spec ial D raw ing  R igkts :

21.099

Holdings o f  Special D raw ing R ights — . — —  - 406,403
Quota in IM F — •— 421,713

Loans and R eceivables — — — 5.002.834
Accounts R eceivable — ■— 29.163

n .r AA
Deposit.for Shares — — ~-* 2.O00

Derivatives aris ing  from  sw ap and Forw ard Exchange Contracts 2.404 — —
Available for Sale E quity  Investm ents 
local Debt. Instruments

1.380

■Nigerian T reasury  B ills — 3.122
128

60.180.
117.462

—

• FGN B onds "
1,361,517 4,630 479,694 10,039,242
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CENTRAL BANK OF NIGERIA
N o t e s  t o  t h e  C o n s o l i d a t e d  Financial Statements for t h e  Y e a r  E n d e d  3  1 s t  D e c e m b e r .  2 0 1 4

[All Amounts are in millions o f Saira. unless otherwise stated)

Fin a n c ia l  L ia b il it ie s

Other
Financial

Liabilities 
at fair 1 blue

Bank
Liabilities . 
Amortised

through 
Profit and

31st December. 2014
Cost

A  'million
Loss

A  ’million
De p o s it s  :
Government Deposits 1.432.462 —
Other Accounts 1.199.238 —
financial Institutions— Current and Settlement Accounts 564.179 —
f i n a n c i a l  Institutions— Banks' Reserve Accounts 3.583.636 —

IMF Related L ia b il it ie s  :
IMF Related Liabilities 421.72J —

IMF Allocation o f Special Drawing Rights 406.458

Derivatives
• Futures Contract in External Reserves — 176

• Internal Swap and Forward Exchange Contracts — 24.704

Ce n t r a l  Bank  of N ig eria  Instrum ents  :

Open Market Operations— Central Bank o f Nigeria Bills 2.755.611

Bank Notes and Coins in Circulation 1.797.842

Other Liabilities:
Accrued Charges 17.515

Surplus payable to Federal Government o f Nigeria 
Sundry* Payables

152.654
717.659

24.704
Derivatives arising from Swap and Forward Exchange Contracts

13,048,981 SW M
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CENTRAL BANK OF NIGERIA
N o t e s  t o  t h e  C o n s o l i d a t e d  F i n a n c i a l  S t a t e m e n t s  f o r  t h e  Y e a r  E n d e d  3 1  st D e c e m b e r .  2 0 1 4

(A ll Amounts are in millions ofXuira, unless otherwise staled)

Financial A s s e t s  

Bank

}|$t December. 2013 
External R e s e r v e s  :

Current A ccounts w ith F o re ig n  B anks 
lime Deposits and  M oney  p lacem en ts
Domiciliary A ccounts
Sundry Currencies and T ra v e lle rs ' C heques 
Short Term D eposits
Debt Securities:

•Held for T rad in g
• Held to M atu rity

Dirivqtives
• Futures con tract
• Fopvard C on trac ts

IMF Ho l d in g s  o f  S p e c ia l  D r a w in g  R ig h t s  : 
Holdings o f  Special D raw ing  R igh ts 
Quota in IMF
Loans and R eceivables 
Accounts R eceivable 
Deposit for Shares
Available-for-Sale Equity' Inv estm en ts  
local Debt Instruments

•Nigerian T reasu ry  B ills
• FGN Bonds

.♦h fa ir  value Available- H eld to Loans ai\d
through 
profit or

for-Sale M aturin’ receivables

loss
X 'm illion X ’million X ’million X 'm illion

641.975
— — 3.785.567
_ L _ __ 506.949
_ _ — 58.375
— — — 55.200

1.507.540 _ X —

— — 77.996 —

941 _ _ 4 _

8.228 — — mmmm

~
400,351

— — — 412,015
_ _ 4.392,324-

_ 1,533
- _ 2,100
— ; 1.380 —

3.027 57,503 —
— 133 111,891

1,516,709 A M  0 247,390 10,256,389
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CENTRAL BANK OF NIGERIA
N o t e s  t o  t h e  C o n s o l i d a t e d  F i n a n c i a l  S t a t e m e n t s  f o r  t h e  Y e a r  E n d e d  3  1 s t  D e c e m b e r ,  2 0 1 4

{AH Amounts are in millions o f Xaira. unless otherwise stated)

Other Liabilities
Financial L ia b il it ie s Financial at fa i r  1 blue

Liabilities ' through
Bank Amortised Profit and

Cost Loss
j 31st December. 2013 

Deposits :
A"million X  'million

Government D ep o sits 1.584.437 —

Other A ccounts 1.099.950 —

Financial In stitu tions— C u rren t and Settlem ent A ccounts 1.227.870 —

Financial In stitu tions— B a n k s ' R eserve Accounts 2.216.552 —•
IMF R ela te d  L ia b il it ie s  : •
IMF Related L iab ilities 412.028 —

IMF Allocation o f  Specia l D raw ing Rights 400.402 —
Central B a n k  o f  N ig e r ia  I n s t r u m e n t s  : ■ .
Central Bank o f  N igeria  P ro m isso ry  N otes 461 —

Open M arket O p era tio n s— C entra l B ank o f  N igeria Bills 3.738.632 —
Bank Notes and  C oins in C ircu la tio n 1..776,305 —

Derivatives a ris ing  from  Forw ard  Exchange Contracts — —
Other L ia b ili tie s :
Accrued C harges 22.390 —
Surplus payable to F ed era l G overnm ent o f  Nigeria 152.654 —
Sundry P ayables . 742.956 ■ —

13,374,637 —
Risk M a n a g em en t P o lic ie s  

3.2 C r e d it  R is k

Credit risk  is th e  p ro b a b ility  th at a counterparty  o f  the Group will not meet its obligations in accordance 
with agreed term s and co n d itio n s  w hich may lead to financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk due to 
activities such a s  in v estm en t o f  external reserves, granting o f intervention funds as well as advances and loans 
to staff, federal g o v e rn m en t and financial institutions.

The G roup  ad op ts a  co n se rv a tiv e  approach to credit risk. Where appropriate, the Group intervenes in the 
economy and p ro v id es g u aran tees in the financial system to prevent systemic risk. Investment decisions are 
guided by the p re fe ren ce  fo r  capital preservation and liquidity over returns.

3.2.1. M a n a g e m e n t  o f  C r e d i t  R is k

The G ro u p 's  c red it risk  m anagem ent is guided by its credit risk policy. Investment Policy & Guidelines, 
as well as o ther gu idelines fo r developm ental initiatives. These policies are complemented by detailed procedures 
at the S trategic B usiness U nits (SB U s) level. The Guidelines define credit exposure limits to ensure that the 
investments are  w ith in  th e  risk appetite  o f  the Group. The credit exposure limits are reviewed periodically in 
line with m arket dev elo p m en ts .

The G ro u p  c o n d u c ts  D iscoun t W indow  Operations to provide liquidity to deposit m oney banks and 
discount h o u ses  th at are  u n ab le  to access funds from the interbank market. Credit risk exposures from these 
transactions are  m itig a ted  by  th e  N igerian  M aster Repurchase Agreement and acceptance o f  elig ib le collateral 
(including N ig erian  T reasu ry  Bills.. FG N  Bonds. CBN Bills and AMCON Bonds).

57



CENTRAL BANK. OF NIGERIA
N otes to the  C onsolidated F inancial Statements for the Y ear Ended 3 1  st D ecember, 2 0 1 4

{All Amounts are in millions o f S'aira. unless otherw ise stated)

Credit R isk  D isclosure  ( includ ing  Credit Risk Mode!)

No specific credit ra tin g  m odel is adopted for guarantees, interventions and loans issued by the Group, as 
tfiese are borne ou t o f  its developm ental roles. These credits are usually governed by the guidelines and 
frameworks se tting  out the  various schem es creating the credits.

External reserves are invested  in the fo llo w in g :
(/)Time deposits in co u n tries  with convertible currenc ies; •
(ii) United States o f  A m erica  Governm ent secu rities;
{Hi) M arketable sovereign  bonds from Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development (OECD) 

countries w hich are g u aran teed  unconditionally  by the Sovereign Governments o f  these C oun tries; and 
(iv) M arketable secu rities  o f  m ultilateral organisations denominated in eligible currencies from OECD 

countries or as m ay be d irec ted  by the Board o f  the Central Bank o f  Nigeria.

These are largely m anaged  by  External and Internal Fund Managers. External Assets a r t  measured for 
performance u sin g  the M errill Lynch G lobal Governm ent Bond G-7 1 to 3 Years Index (W 1G7) (The 
■Benchmark"). 100%  hedged  into US D ollars ("U SD”).

The m ax im u m  e x p o s u r e  to  an y  one s in g le  issu e r, w ith  the  ex cep tio n  o f .th e  c o u n trie s  that 
comprise the  B e n c h m a rk , is lim ite d  to five  (5) per cen t o f  the  m arket value  o f the  M anaged A ssets. 
The Bank's m ax im u m  ta k e - u p  is tw e n ty  (2 0 ) p er cent o f  any s in g le  issue and no investm en t is m ade 
insecurities b e lo w  U S D 5 0 0  m illio n .

Credit R a tings

The m inim um  credit ra tin g s for different issuer groups by the rating agencies are indicated b e lo w :

Issuer Croup Up to 1 Year Over I Year Rating Description

Sovereign G overnm ents
M aturities

A -l/P -l/F -1
M aturities

A/A+ Investment Grade (Minimum Acceptable-

Multilateral and Supra-national A - l /P - l /F - I Aar/AA/AA-
Upper Medium Grade)

Investment Grade (Minimum Acceptable-
Organizations

US. Government G uaran teed A -l/P - l/F -1 Aar/AA/AA
Upper Medium Grade)

Investment Grade (Minimum Acceptable-
Issues and A gencies 

OECDNon-U.S. G overnm ent . A -l/P - l/F -1 Aar/AA/AA
Upper Medium Grade)

Investment Grade (Minimum Acceptable-
Guaranteed A gencies Upper Medium Grade)

OECD Non-U.S. G overnm ent BB-/B+ Non Investment Grade Speculative
Guaranteed A gencies 

Banks A -l/P - l/F -1 Not allowed Investment Grade (Minimum Acceptable-
Upper Medium Grade)

A -l/P-l/F -1  A  short o b lig a tio n  rated in the highest categoiy indicates that the ob ligor’s capacity' to meet 
^financial com m itm ent on  th e  ob ligation  is extremely strong.

FGN B onds, T reasury  B ills. N igerian  Treasury Bonds are sovereignjnstrum ents, but are not rated.

In line with its m andate o f  ensuring financial stability; the Group also provides credits to banks in distress and 
towards catalysing econom ic developm ent. For this category o f obligors, credits are granted regardless o f  the credit 
'tfngsof the affected institutions but with the overall objective o f  ensuring a safe and sound financial system.
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3.2.2. Maximum E xposure to C redit R isk before C ollateral H eld or O ther C redit E nhancements

The G ro u p ’s m axim um  exposure to credit risk at 31st December. 2014. 31st December. 2013 and 1st 
January, 2013 respectively , is represented by the net carrying amounts in the statement o f financial position.

The m axim um  ex p o su re  is show n gross, before the effect o f  the above mitigation factors. The credit risk 
exposures at the  end o f  each  reporting  period is representative o f  the average exposure during the years.

Group Bank

CENTRAL BANK OF NIGERIA
N o t e s  t o  t h e  C o n s o l i d a t e d  F i n a n c i a l  S t a t e m e n t s  f o r  t h e  Y e a r  E n d e d  3 1 s t  D e c e m b e r .  2 0 1 4

(All Amounts are in millions o f Saira. unless otherwise stated)

External R e s e r v e s — C o n v e r t ib l e  C u r r e n c ie s

Current A ccounts w ith F ore ign  B anks 
Time D eposits and M o n ey  Em ployed 
Domicil iarv A ccoun ts
Sundry C urrencies and T rav e lle rs’ C heques
External R e s e r v e s — O t h e r  F o r e ig n  S e c u r it ie s  
Cash and C ash E q u iv a len ts
Debt Securities:

•Held for T rad ing
• Held to M atu rity

Foreign Derivatives 
■ - Futures C on trac t 

- Forward C o n tra c ts .
Local Derivatives

• Forward E xchange  C o n trac ts
IMF Holdings of Special Drawing Rights:  
Holdings o f  Special D raw in g  R ig h ts -16a 
Quota in IM F -166
Loans and A dvances
Cash and B ank B alances in Subsid iary
Other Assets:
Accounts R eceivab le  
Deposit for Shares
Local Debt Securities 
Available-for-sale Investments 
Nigerian T reasu ry  B ills  
FGN B onds
Held to Maturity Investments 
Nigerian T reasu ry  B ills  
FGN B onds
Financial Guarantee Contracts 
Financial G uaran tee  C o n trac ts
Total

31s/ 3j st 31s/ 31s/
December December December December

2014 2013 2014 2013
A: 'million A 1 ’million A-' ‘million A-’ 'million

1..045.436 641.975 1.045.436 641,975
2.168.548 3.785.567 2.168,548 3.785.567

570.401. 506.949 570.401 506,949
42.845 58.375 42.845 58.375

349.399 55.200 349.399 55,200

1.338.014
302.052

1.507.540 ‘ 
77.996

1.338.014
302.052

1.507.540
77.996

21..099
941

8.228 21.099
941

8,228

2.404 — 2,404 —

406.403
421.713

5.005.685

400.351 
412.015'

4.392.773

406.403
421,713

5.002.834

400,351
412,015

4,392,324

3.301 7.892

5.957
2.500

3.247
2 J0 0

29,163
2,500

1,533
2,100

3 J  22 
128

3.027
133

3.122
128

3.027
133

60.180 
. 117.462.

57.503 
* 111.891

60,180
117,462

57.503
111,891

A RSft 5.120 4.850 5.120

11,871,499 _ 12,038,823 11,888,553 12,028,768
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CENTRAL BANK OF NIGERIA
N o t e s  t o  t h e  C o n s o l i d a t e d  F i n a n c i a l  S t a t e m e n t s  f o r  t h e  Y e a r  E n d e d  3 1  s t  D e c e m b e r .  2 0 1 4

(A ll Amounts are in millions o f Saira. unless otherw ise stated)

.biolysis o f  C redit E xposure  by  C lass : Group Bank

3 \st 31s/ 31 st 31s/
jltosured at F a ir  1 'ahie December December December D ecember
it Fair Value through  P ro fit or Loss  ■ 2014 2013 2014 2013

X ’million ^ ’million A’ ’million A’’million

Foreign Debt Securities 1,338,014 1,507,540 1,338,014 1,507,540
Dirivatives

■ Derivatives from  E xternal Reserves 21.099 9,169 21,099 9,169
■Derivatives from  Local Sw aps and Forw ards 2.404 — 2.404 —

1,361,517 1,516,709 1,361,517 1,516,709
bailablefor Sale D ebt S ecurities

•Nigerian T reasu ry  B ills 3.122 3,027 3,122 3,027
• FGN Bonds 128 133 128 133

3,250 3,160 3,250 3,160
\lmured a t A m o rtised  C o st
Feld to Maturity> Inves tm en ts  
Foreign Debt Securities 3 0 1 0 5 2 77,996 302,052 77,996
local Debt Securities 177,642 . 169,394 177,642 169,394

■ 479,694 247,390 479,694 247,390

Group Bank

31 st ■ 31s/ 31 st 31s/
December December December December

2014 2013 2014 2013
Loan and R e c e iv a b l e s A ’million A-' ’million A ’million A-*’million

Current Accounts w ith F o re ig n  B anks • i .045,436 641,975 1,045,436 641,975
rime Deposits and M oney  E m ployed 
Domiciliary' A cco u n ts

1168 ,548
570.401

3.785.567
506,949

2.168.548
570,401

3.785,567
506,949

S u n d ry 'C urrencies and T rav e lle rs ' C heques 42,845 58.375 42,845 58,375
Short Term D eposits 349,399 55,200 349,399 55,200
H o ld in g s  o f Special D raw ing  R igh ts-19a 
Q uota i n  IM F -19b

406,403
421,713

400,351
412,015

406,403
421,713

400.351
412,015

Doans and A dvances 
D e p o s it  for Shares

5.005,685
2,500

4.392,773
2,100

5.002,834
2,500

4.392.324
2,100

Mer A sse ts :
^ c o u n t s  R eceivable
Cash and Bank B alances in Subsidiary*

5.957
3,301

3,247
7,892

29,163 1,533

10,022,188 10,266,444 10,039,242 10,256,389

QfStatement o f  F in a n c ia l P o sition  
financial G uarantee C on trac ts  
T otal

4,850 -  5,120 4,850 5,120

11,871,499 12,038,822.69 11,888,553 12,028,768
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N o t e s  t o  t h e  C o n s o l i d a t e d  F i n a n c l a l  S t a t e m e n t s  f o r  t h e  Y e a r  E n d e d  3 1 s t  D e c e m b e r ,  2 0 1 4

{Ail Amounts are in millions o f Xaira. unless otherwise stated)

Group Bank

31 st 31s/ 31 st 31s/
Credit q u a lity  o f  d e b t  s e c u rit ie s December December December December

2014 2013 2014 2013
External R e s e r \-e s— F o r e i g n  D e b t  S e c u r it ie s X  ’million A”million X'million X  ’million

A 1.281.013 1.133.837 1,281,013 1,133,837
A- ' — 21.013 — 21,013
A+ 2.423,946 1.729.426 2,423,946 1,729,426
AA- 216.478 746.760 216,478 746,760
BB- 220.860 108.519 220.860 108,519
BBB+ — — — —
B+ 94.319 — 94,319 —

Not rated 1.601.178 2.903.216 1,601,178 2,903,216
5,837,794 6,642,771 5,837,794 6,642,771

Group Bank.

31 st 31s/ 31 st 31s/
Credit quality' o f  C ash  arid C ash  Equivalents December December December December

2014 ‘ 2013 2014 2013
External R e s e r v e s — F o r e i g n  D e b t  S e c u r it ie s .-V ‘million X  ’million X  'million A' ’million

AAA 78 5 2.348 — —
AA 2.516 4.326 — —

A 10 1,221 — —
3,311 7,895 — —

3.2.3 C r e d it  C o n c e n t r a t io n s

The m onito ring  o f  th e  B a n k 's  credit risk exposure focuses on two key areas, namely; geographical and 
sectorial. C o n cen tra tio n  risk  based on geography is categorized by four locations— Africa. Europe. Asia. 
America and o thers w h ile  sectorial concentration is based on the Government (Federal Government o f  Nigeria). 
Financial.. A gricu ltu re . E nergy. Pow er. Aviation and Manufacturing Sectors.

Group Bank

C oncentration  by S e c to r

Debt S e c u r it ie s

31s/
December 

2014 
A-' million

31s/
December

2013
X  ’million

31s/
December

2014
A' ’million

31s/
D ecem ber

2013
A-' ’million

Federal G overnm ent o f  N ig e ria  
Financial Services S ec to r— Foreign

180.892
1,640.066

172,554
1,585,536

180,892
1,640,066

172,554
1,585,536

Total D eb t S e c u r i t ie s 1,820,958 1,758,090 1,820,958 1,758,090

61



CENTRAL BANK OF NIGERIA
N otes to the Consolidated F inancial Statements for the Y ear Ended 3 1  st D ecember. 2 0 1 4

{All Amounts are in millions o f Saira. unless otherwise stated)

lo a n s and R eceivables
F in a n c ia l  Services Sector— Foreign 5.004.745 5.860.432 5.004.745 5.860.432
Federal G overnm ent o fN ig e ria 805.730 482.972 805.730 482.972
A g r i c u l t u r e 210.842 161596 210.842 165.496

! financial Services Sector o fN ig eria 2.435.531 3.220.444 2.435.531 2.703.123
1 Power and A viation Sec tor o fN ig e ria 300.000 • 300.000 300.000 300.000
Manufacturing 235.000 235.000 235.000 235.000
Other Loans 1.030.340 — l..041394 509.366
Total Loans a n d  R ece iv ab les 10,022,188 10,266,444 10,039,242 10,256,389
Derivatives
financial Services Sector o fN ig e ria 2.404 2.404
financial Services Sector— Foreign .21.099 9.169 21.099• V

9.169
23.503 9.169 23.503 9.169

0[[Statement o f  F in a n c ia l P osition
Financial G uaran tee  C o n trac ts . * 4.850 • 5.120 4.850 ■ 5,120
Total ' - 11,871,499 12,038,823 11,888,553 12,028,768

The financia l guaran tee  con tracts arose from  guarantees that were issued by the Central Bank o f Nigeria 
lo financial in stitu tio n s that loaned funds to players in the Small and Medium Enterprises (SM Es) category 
a n d  Agricultural Sector. T he am ount o f  the guarantees advanced were N 1.7 billion and N3.1 billion to the SMEs 
a n d  Agricultural S ec to rs respec tive ly  (31st December. 2012: N3.7 billion and N 1.4 billion)

Group Bank

3 h r 3 1st 3 \st 3 h r
Concentration b y  L o ca tio n December D ecember D ecember December

2014 2013 2014 2013
Debt Securities A’ ’million A’ 1million A’ 'million A ’million

Rest of Africa — — . — —

Asia 366.614 346.660 366.614 346.660
Europe 3.381.614 4.913.181 3381 .614 4.913.181
USA 1.967.287 1.382.931 1.967.287 1.382.931

Others ■- 121279 — 122.279 —

Nigeria 6.033.705 5 .396.051 6.050.759 5:385.996

11,871,499 12,038,823 11,888,553 12,028,768
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3.2.4. C r e d it  Q u a l it y
Group Bonk

Loans a n d  R e c e iv a b l e s  a n d  D e b t  S e c u r it ie s

315/
December 

2014 
A '1million

3 \st
December

2013
£  'million

31 st
December 

2014 
A1 ‘million

31 st
December

2013
A  'million

Seither p a s t Due n o r  Im p a ired  
- Local D ebt S ecurities 180.892 172.554 180.892 171554
- External R eserves 5.837.794 6.642.771 5.837.794 6.642.771
- Other L oans and R eceivab les 5.019.847 4.406.0.12 5.036.901 4.395.957
- IMF R eceivab les 828.116 811366 828.116 812366

Past D ue  but n o t Im paired — — — —

Impaired 155.066 178.491 154.242 177.768
Individually’ Im paired — — — —
Collectively Im paired — — — —
Gross 12,021,715 12,212,194 12,037,945 ‘ 12,201,416
Impairment A llo w a n c e :
Specific Im pairm ent (155.066) (178.491) (154.242) (177.768)
Collective Im pairm en t — — — —
Net 11,866,649 12,033,703 11,883,703 12,023,648

The loans and receivab les analysed above are made up o f long term loans extended to the Asset Management 
Corporation o f  N igeria  (A M C O N ) and banks by the Central Bank o f Nigeria in discharging its mandate of 
ensuring financial system  stability. These loans in a d d it io n s  IMF receivables are not rated as they are not 
advanced for g enerating  com m ercial returns. Investment in local quoted debt securities represents investment in 
Nigerian G overnm ent D eb t (B +  rating) which are backed by the full faith and credit o f  theNigerian Government.

Debt securities in c lu d e  investm ents in high quality debt instruments that constitute external reserves.

Individually  im paired  loans are loans that were provided to liquidated banks. The counterparties are under 
liquidation hence the reco v erab ility  o f  the loans is doubtful.

{a) L o a n s an d  R e c e iva b le s  neither p a s t Due nor Im paired

The loans and adv an ces th at were neither due nor impaired comprises loans and cash and cash equivalents. 
The credit qua lity  o f  th e  cash  and cash equivalents as provided in .Vote 3.2.2. The loans and other receivables 
are not rated.

[b) F in a n cia l A sse ts  in d iv id u a lly  im paired

The c red it qu a lity  o f  cash  and cash equivalents, short-term investments and investments in government 
securities that w ere n e ith e r  p ast due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to rating agency designation at 
31 st Decem ber. 2014  an d  31 st D ecem ber. 2013 provided for financial assets classified under external reserves 
in Kote 3 .2 .2  under C red it Q u a lity  o f  loans and receivables and cash and cash equivalents.

Local deb t secu rities  a re  not rated.

3.3. L iq u id it y  R isk

. L iquidity  risk re fe rs  to  the  potential that Group to close the gap between demand and supply o f  financial 
resources requ ired  to  h o n o u r  its obligations and ensure monetary, price and financial system stability*.
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The main goal of liquidity management of the Group is to ensure that funding is available as and when 
paired to meet its maturing obligations while promoting economic growth and a sound financial system.

0.1. Ma n a g e m e n t  o f  L iq u id it y  R is k

The Central Bank of Nigeria Act 2007 empowers the Group to create the required settlement balances. 
Consequently, operations are not expected to be constrained by cash flow. However. Annual Budgets are made 
frthe Group's activities including monetary policy operations. In addition, to ensure effective liquidity 
panagement. the Group has set liquidity thresholds and approved criteria for selecting eligible securities and 
Kiier investments in its Strategic Asset Allocation framework.

IJ.2. Maturity Analysis
.V .

The table below analyses the Group's financial liabilities into relevant maturin' groupings based on the 
gaining period at the reporting date to the contractual maturin' date. The balances in this table do not 
correspond to the balances in theStatement of financial position. since the table presents all contractual cash 
few on an undiscounted basis.’
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( A l l  A m o u n ts  a re  in  m il lio n s  o f  S a iro . unless o therw  ise s ta ted )

3.4 M a r k e t  R isk

M arket risk  is th e  p o ten tia l loss from  adverse movements in market indices such asinterest rates, foreign 
exchange rates., equ ity  p rices and com m odity prices which could adversely affect the Bank’s earnings and 
capital, thereby  in h ib itin g  its ability' to achieve its mandate and strategic objectives.

The G roup  ad op ts a  conservative approach to risk taking in view o f the potential impact o f  losses to the 
economy and there fo re  does not ordinarily  engage in active trading. However, it is exposed to losses in its 
holdings o f  fixed incom e debt and developmental securities. The potential loss from these instruments is 
mitigated by u sin g  ap p ro p ria te  lim its and the engagement o f  fund managers with specific mandates.

Key co m p o n en ts  o f  the G roup’s market risk include the fo llow ing :
In terest R a te  R isk

In terest rate risk  is the  risk that the  fair value or future cash flows o f a financial ihstrument will fluctuate 
because o f  changes in m arket interest rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk o f changes in market interest rates 
relates p rim arily  to fix ed  rate financial assets and financial liabilities that are re-measured to fair value.

The G ro u p ’s in v es tm en t portfo lio  is comprised o f bills, bonds, notes and cash deposits in multilateral., 
sovereign, and  su p ran atio n al institu tions spread across Europe. Asia and the United States o f America. The 
Group is ex p osed  to th e  risk  o f  m ovem ents in interest rates in these jurisdictions.

C o m m o d ity  P rice  R is k

C om m odity  risk  is th e  uncertainty' in future income and value o f a portfolio caused by fluctuation in the 
price o f  co m m o d itie s  su ch  as crude oil and agricultural products. Volatility' in the price o f crude oil affects 
accretion to  external reserves managed by the Group. The Group continues to collaborate with other stakeholders 
to prom ote and  ad v o ca te  fo r  the  diversification o f the economy from status quo. Oil exports is the main foreign 
revenue earn er for th e  country .

E quity  P rice  R isk

E quity  p rice  risk  is th e  risk  that the fair value o f equities decreases as the result o f changes in the level o f  
equity' ind ices and in d iv id u a l stocks.

F oreign  E xch a n g e  R isk

Foreign  cu rren cy  r isk  is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows o f  an exposure will fluctuate 
because o f  changes in fo reig n  exchange rates. Foreign exchange risk management is important given the Group’s 
mandate to m ain tain  th e  external reserves in order to safeguard the international'value o f  the Naira. The 
Group’s fo reig n  e x ch an g e  risk  exposure is significant due to the high proportion o f the Group’s resources held 
as foreign financia l a sse ts . . v . ^

3.4.1 M a n a g e m e n t  o f  M a r k e t  R is k

The G ro u p  a d o p ts  a  conservative  approach to risk taking in view o f  the potential impact o f  losses to the 
economy and  th ere fo re  d o e s  n o t ord inarily  engage in active trading. However, it is exposed to losses in its 
holdings o f  fixed  incom e deb t and developm ental securities. The potential loss from these instruments is 
mitigated by  using  a p p ro p ria te  lim its and the engagement o f  fund managers with specific mandates.

F oreign  E xch a n g e  R isk

The G ro u p ’s fo reign  exchange  risk exposure is mitigated primarily by diversification o f  foreign exchange 
income, in te rven tion  in th e  local foreign exchange market and limits on foreign exchange holdings by financial 
institutions.
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{Al[ A m o u n ts  are  in m illions o f  X aira. unless otherw ise sta ted )

Interest R a te  R isk

To mitigate the  interest ra te  r i s k . the Group diversifies its portfolio and adopts appropriate guidelines 
îch detail the  types, teno r and lim its o f  its investments.

Commodity P rice  R isk

Volatility in the  price o f  crude oil affects accretion to external reserves managed by the Group. The Group 
continues to co llabora te  with o ther stakeholders to promote and advocate for the diversification o f the economy 
fom status quo.

Equit)’P rice  R isk

The G roup m anages the equit}' p rice risk through diversification and by placing limits on individual and 
total equit}’ instrum ents. The G ro u p 's  equit}1 investments are carried at cost as fair values were not determinable. 
Consequently no eq u ity  price risk  sensitivity is presented. v

j.4,2. M e a s u r e m e n t  o f  M a r k e t  R isk

Market risk  is m onitored  by the risk m anagem ent department on regularly  to identify’ any adverse 
tiovement in th e  underly ing  variables.

R3. Interest Rate Rjsk • • •

Interest R a te  Sensitiv ity

Sensitivity to  changes in in te rest rates is relevant to financial assets o r financial liabilities bearing floating 
interest rates d u e  to  the  risk th at future cash flows will fluctuate. However, sensitivity will also be relevant to 
feed rate financia l assets and financia l liabilities that are re-measured to fair value.

The im pact o f  a  0 .1%  increase/decrease in market yield on financial assets classified as held for trading, 
"ith all other v ariab les held constant, will reduce/increase the group 's profit before tax by N5.843 million (31 st . 
December. 2013 :N 6 ,5 2 2  m illion).

Equity P rice  R isk

The equit}’ p rice  risk  a rises from  changes in the prices o f  the equit}’ investm ents that are carried at fair
value.

| The equit}’ investm ents th a t the  Bank holds are unlisted and carried at cost less provision for impairment 
; 2sfair value cou ld  n o t be re liab ly  determ ined for reasons explained in Note 2 2 a . Consequently no equit}' price 
| sensitivity- is. p resen ted .

Foreign E xch a n g e  R isk  S en sitiv ity  A nalysis

The tab le  b e lo w  ind icates the  financial instrum ents and foreign currencies to  which the Group had 
significant ex p osure  at each reporting  date. The analysis calculates the effect o f  a 5%  movement o f  the Naira 
against the fo reign  currencies (all o th er variables being held constant) on the incom e statem ent (due to  the fair 
yaiue o f cu rren cy  sensitive  m onetary  assets and liabilities). A negative am ount in the table reflects a potential 
net reduction in incom e sta tem en t o r  equity, while a  positive amount reflects a net potential increase.

The ex p o su re  to  foreign exchange risk  as at 31st December. 2014 is unrepresentative o f  the entity’s 
ttposure to risk  during  the y ea r as there was a significant decrease in external reserves during the year. As at 
^ D e c e m b e r .  2 0 13 . the exposure  to foreign exchange risk was representative o f  the average exposure during 
to year, as ev id en ced  by the  m arg inal m ovem ent in external reserves during the period.

C onsequently  the  foreign exchange risk sensitivity risk for the year the 2014 shows the highest, lowest 
and average ex p o su res during  the  vear.
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(A ll A m oun ts are in m illions o f  X a ira . un less o therw ise  staled)

T h e  exch an g e  rates used fo r converting foreign denominated balances as at the end o f  2014 was N  167.50 
to U SD  l (2 013  :N l5 5 .2 0 to U S D  1)

G ro u p - B a n k
31st December. 2014 C a rry in g E ffec t o f E ffe c t o f C a r d in g E ffe c t o f E ffe c t o f

A m o u n t a 5% a  5 % A m o u n t a  5% a  5 %
in  X a ira A p p re c ia ­ D e p re c ia ­ in  X a ira A p p re c ia ­ D e p re c ia ­

tio n  o f  the tio n  o f  the tio n  o f  the tio n  o f  the
X a ira X a ir a X a ira X a ir a

a g a in s t a g a in s t a g a in s t a g a in s t
F o re ig n F o re ig n F o re ig n F o re ig n

C u rre n c ie s  C u rre n c ie s C u rre n c ie s C u rre n c ie s
on In co m e on  In c o m e on In co m e on  In c o m e
S ta te m e n t S ta te m e n t S ta te m e n t S ta te m e n t

F o r e ig n  C u r r e n c y  D e n o m in a t e d A* "m ill io n X 'm i l l io n X 'm i l l io n X 'm i l l io n X 'm i l l io n X 'm i l l io n
F in a n c ia l  A s s e t s \  .

Current A ccount with Foreign Banks 1.045.436 (51272) 52,272 1,045.436 (52,272) 52,272
Time D ep o sits  and M oney 2.168.548 (108.427) 108,427 2,168.548 (108.427) 108,427

E m p lo y ed •

Dom icil iary  A ccoun ts 570.401 (28.520) 28,520 570,401 (28,520) 28,520
Other F o re ig n  Securiti.es 2.010.388 (100.519). 100,519 2,010,388 (100.519) 100,519
Sundry C u rren c ies  and T ravellers’ 42.845 (1142) —  2,142 42,845 (2,142) 2,142

C h eq u es  
IM F A sse ts 828.116 (41.406) 41,406 828,116 (41.406) 41.406
D erivative  F in an cia l A ssets 1404 (120) 120 1404 (120) 120
Cash and C ash  E quivalen ts in 

S u b sid ia ry
4.490 (224) 224 — —

6,672,628 (333,630) 333,630 6,668,138 (333,406) 333,406

Foreign C u rren cy  D enom inated  
F inancia l L iab ilities  

IMF L ia b ilitie s 828.185 41.409 (41,409) 828,185 41-409 (41,409)

D erivative F in ancia l L iabilities 24.704 1,233 (1-233) 24.704 1.235 (1,235)
851889 42,642 (42-642) 852-889 42,644 (42-644)

N et P o s i t io n 5,819,739 (290,988) 290,988 5,815,249 (290,762) 290,762
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The foreign cu rren cy  risk accord ing  to the various currencies in which the Group had balances in are is as
l&vvs:

C a r ry in g E ffec t o f E ffe c t o f C a r ry in g E ffec t o f E ffec t o f
A m o u n t a 5% a 5% A m o u n t a  5 % a  5%

stuL A sset s  A n a l y s e d in  X a ira A p p re c ia - D e p re c ia ­ in  X a ira A p p re c ia ­ D e p re c ia ­

(cording t o  C u r r e n c ie s lio n  o f  the tio n  o f  the tio n  o f  the tio n  o f  the
X a ir a X a ir a X a ira X a ira

a g a in s t a g a in s t a g a in s t a g a in s t
F o re ig n F o re ig n F o re ig n F o re ig n

C u rre n c ie s  C u rre n c ie s C u rre n c ie s C u rre n c ie s
o n  In co m e on  In co m e on In co m e on In co m e
S ta te m e n t S ta te m e n t S ta te m e n t S ta te m e n t

X  'm il l io n X  m il l io n X  m i l l io n X  m il l io n X  'm il l io n X  m il l io n

td States Dollar ,4.966.893 (248.345) 248.345 4.964.648 (248,232) v. 248,232
373.618 (18.681) 18.681 371.373 (18,568) 18,568

ishPounds Sterling 133.904 (6.695) 6.695 133.904 (6,695) 6,695
Kse Renminbi 368.499 (18.425) 18.425. 368.499 (18.425) 18.425
oese Yen 1.358 (68) 68 1.358 (68) 68
SDR 828.116 (41.404) 41.404 828.116 (41.406) 41,406
R 240 (12) 12 240 (12) 12

' 6,672,628 (333,630) 333,630 6,668,138 (333,406) 333,406

trial L ia b i l i t ie s  A n a ly s e d • 4V •

fording to  C u r r e r t c ie s
828.185

•
SDR 828.185 41.407 (41.407) 41,409 (41.409)
fdStates Dollar . ,24.704 .... 4.235- ' (1*235) 24.704 1,235 (1.235)

852.889 42.642r (42.642) 852,889 42,644 (42,644)

Position 5,819.739 (290,988) 290,988 5,815,249 (290,762) 290,762

. ‘ - - - -----

............... . ~)v;
' .. . .'..^1- • ... . —
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C a r ry in g E ffec t o f E ffe c t o f  C a rry in g E ffe c t o f E ffe c t o f
31st December. 2013 A m o u n t a 5% a  5%  .A m o u n t a  5% a  5%

in  X a ira A p p re c ia ­ D e p re c ia - in  X a ira A p p re c ia ­ D e p re c ia ­
tio n  o f  the tio n  o f  the tio n  o f  the tio n  o f  the

X a ira X a ira X a ira X a ir a
a g a in s t a g a in s t a g a in s t a g a in s t
F o re ig n F o re ig n F o re ig n F o re ig n

C u rre n c ie s  C u rre n c ie s C u rre n c ie s C u rre n c ie s
on In co m e o n  In co m e on In co m e on  In c o m e

F o r e ig n  C u r r e n c y  D e n o m in a t e d S ta te m e n t S ta te m e n t S ta te m e n t S ta te m e n t
F in a n c ia l  A s s e t s X  'm il l io n X  'm il l io n X  'm il l io n  X  'm il l io n X  'm il l io n X  'm il l io n

Current A ccount with Foreign Banks 641.975 (3 1 099) 32.099 641.975 (32.099) 32,099
Time D eposits and M oney Employed 3.785.567 (189.278) 189.278 3.785.567 (189.278) 189.278
D om iciliary  A ccounts 506.949 (25.347) 25347  506.949 (25347) 2 5347
Other F ore ign  Securities 1.649.905 (8 1 495) 82.495 1.649.905 v'(82.495) 82,495
Sundry C urrencies and T ravellers ' 58.375 (1 9 1 9 ) 1 919  58.375 (2.919) 2,919

C h eq u es *
IM F A sse ts 8113 6 6 (40.618) 40.618 811366 (40.6.18) 40,618
Cash and Cash Equivalents from Subsidiary 475. (24) 24 — —

7.455.612 (372.780) 372.780 7.455.137 (372.756) 372,756

Foreign D enom ina ted  F inancial
L iab ilities

IM F L iab ilitie s 8 1 1 4 3 0 40.622 (40.622) 812,430 40.622 (40,622)

8114 3 0 40.622 (40,622) 812,430 40.622 (40.622)

N et P o sitio n 6,643,182 (332,158) 332,158 6,642,707 (332,134) 332,134
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The foreign  currency risk according to the various currencies in which the Group had balances in are as
follows;

financial A ssets A n a ly s e d  
a cco rd in g  to  C u rre n c ie s

C a r ry in g  
A m o u n t  
in  X a ira

E ffec t o f  
a 5%  

A p p re c ia ­
tio n  o f  the 

X a ira  
a g a in s t  
F o re ig n  

■ C u rre n c ie s  
on In co m e  
S ta te m e n t

E ffec t o f  
a  5% 

D e p re c ia ­
t io n  o f  the 

X a ira  
a g a in s t  
F o re ig n  

C u rre n c ie s  
o n  In co m e  
S ta te m e n t

C a rry in g  
A m o u n t  
in  X a ira

E ffec t o f  
a 5%  

A p p re c ia ­
tio n  o f  the 

X a ira  
a g a in s t  
F o re ig n  

C u rre n c ie s  
on In co m e  
S ta te m e n t

E ffe c t o f  
a  5%  

D e p re c ia ­
tio n  o f  the 

X a ira  
a g a in s t  
F o re ig n  

C u rre n c ie s  
on In co m e  
S ta te m e n t

X  m il l io n X  m il l io n X  'm il l io n X  'm il l io n X  m il l io n X  m il l io n

United States D o llar 5.969.372 (298.468) 298,471 5.969.338 (298,466) 298,466
Euro 393.780 (19.688) 19.688 394,201 (19,710) 19.710
British P ounds Sterling 139.395 (6.969) 6.969 138,533 (6.927) " 6,927
Chinese R enm inbi 138.530 (6.926) 6.926 138,530 (6.927) 6,927
Japanese Yen 1.887 (94) 94 1,887 (94) 94
IMF SDR 8 1 1 3 6 6 (40,621) 40.618 812,366 (40,618) 40,618
Others 282 (14) 14 282 ‘T W 14

7,4'55'.6T2"" (T7T7HUJ "  37277815 7.455.137 (372.756)" "171756
Financial L ia b ilitie s  A na lysed  

according to  C urrencies
IMF SD R • " T O O T T ----- W & T j m w r W & N ----- 4 1 ^ 2 2 — PRT522)

- m ym — m&r -14 03227—sit ct— w m — prcrszTj
N e t  P o s i t i o n  T & U &  J55U&) " 1 3 1 , 1 5 4

O ther r isk s faced by the  G roup include the fo llow ing : !i •
{a) O p era tio n a l R isk

O perational R isk is the  po tential for loss resulting from failure or inadequacy o f  the Group's internal 
processes, people., system s and from  external events.

O perational risk  m anagem ent in the Group is aimed at ensuring that operational risks are identified and 
mitigated early  to  ensure the G roup is able to achieve its strategic objectives. .

The G ro u p 's  operational risk m anagem ent process involves risk identification, assessment, treatment, 
monitoring and reporting. The prim ary responsibilitvfor identifying risk events affecting the Group's operations, 
staff and In fo rm atio n  T echnology services resides with the B usiness Units. Tools such as the Risk Control 
Seif-Assessment (R C SA ), surveys and risk questionnaires are w idely used for risk identification.

The id en tif ie d  risks are  assessed  based on the likelihood-of their occurrence and impact on the Group's 
operations. T h e  evaluated  risks are classified as ‘High'.. ‘M e d iu m 'o r ‘L ow 'depending on their severity. The 
Group's re sp o n se  to  risk even ts includes  ‘accep t', ‘reduce ', ‘transfer/share 'o r ‘avoid'.

The G ro u p  has institu ted  appropriate  Business Continuity M anagement (BCM) processes to ensure its 
rcsi/ien ce to th rea ts  that m ay im pede the continuity o f  mandate critical operations and allow business operations
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return to p re-determ ined levels follow ing a disruption.

R isk events are m onitored by respective Business Units and repons made to the Risk Management 
Department (R M D ) fo r c o n so lid a tio n . The reports highlight key operational risks, excep tions and 
recommendations to the Board and M anagement.

(b ) R epu ta tiona l R isk

The G ro u p 's  reputation and credibility are critical to achieving its key policy objectives o f  monetary, 
price and financial system stability. Reputational risk can arise from negative publicity arising from the action 
or inaction o f  the  G roup and its em ployees etc.

The B oard o f  the B ank has approved a reputational risk management framework in addition to other 
policies to identify, assess and mitigate stakeholders'perception issues. The implementation of the reputational 
risk framework is assisting the Group to maintain its credibility, build.local and international investor confidence 
and enhance its accountability’.

3.5. F a ir  V a l u e  M e a s u r e m e n t  v

IFRS 13 requires an entity  to classify* measured or disclosed fair values according to a hierarchy that 
reflects the significance o f  observable inputs.

All assets and liab ilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are 
categorised w ith in  the fa ir value hierarchy, which comprises o f three levels as described below, based on the 
lowest level inpu t that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole.

(a) F in a n c ia l Instrum ents m easured at Fair Value and fo r  which Fair Value is disclosed

IFR S 13 specifies a h ierarchy o f  valuation techniques based on whether the inputs to those valuation 
techniques are observable  or unobservable. Observable input reflect market data obtained from independent 
sources; unobservab le  inputs reflect the B ank's market assumptions.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are 
categorised w ith in  the fa ir value hierarchy, described as follows., based on the lowest level input that is 
significant to  the fa ir value m easurem ent as a whole.

* L evel 1 : Inputs that are quoted market prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or 
liabilities.

* L evel 2 : Inputs o ther than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or 
liability’, e ither d irectly  (i.e. as prices) o r indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) .This category includes instruments 
valued using: quoted  m arket prices in active markets for sim ilar instruments; quoted prices for identical or 
similar instrum ents in m arkets that are considered less than active, or other valuation technique in \\frich all 
significant inpu ts are d irectly  o r indirectly observable from market data.

In conclusion , th is category is for valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant 
to the fa ir v a lu e  m easurem ent is directly o r indirectly observable.

* Level 3 : Inputs fo r the asset o r liability* that are not based on observable market data (unobservable 
inputs). This category’ includes all assets and liabilities for which the valuation technique includes inputs not 
based on observab le  data and the unobservable inputs have a significant effect on the asset or liability 's 
valuation. T h is  category* includes instrum ents that are valued based on quoted prices for similar instruments 
for which sign ifican t unobservab le  adjustm ents o r assumptions are required to reflect differences between the 
instruments.
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This h ierarchy  requires the use o f  observable market data when available. CBN considers relevant and 
observable m arket prices in its valuations where possible. There have been no transfers between levels in the year. 

There w ere no  m ovem ents between Level 1 to Level 3 Categories Financial Instruments during the year.

list December. 2014 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Group A-' ’million A1 'million A-’ 'million A: 'million

Financial A ssets m easured at Fair Value 
External R e s e r v e s  
Debt S ecu ritie s :

■ Held for T rad in g 1.338.014 1.338.014
Derivatives :

• Forward C o n trac ts ____ 21.099 — 21.099

Local D erivative F inancia l A ssets
Derivatives a ris in g  from Forw ard Exchange C ontracts — 2.404

V.
2.404

Local S e c u r it ie s  
Listed Securities
Nigerian T reasury  B ills— Available-for-Sale 
FGN Bonds— A vailable for Sale 128

3.122 —

4

3.122
128

1,338,142 26,625 — 1,364,767
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L e v e l 1 L e v e l 2 L e v e l 3 T o ta l
X  'm i l l i o n iV 'm i l l i o n rV 'm i l / f o n U  'm i l l i o n

A s s e ts  f a r  w h ic h  F a i r  V a lu e ( 'a r r y in g F a i r C a r r y in g F a i r C a r r y in g F a i r ( 'a r r y i n g  L a i r
a r e  d is c lo s e d A m o u n t V a lu e A m o u n t V a lu e A m o u n t 1 d in e A m o u n t  V a lu e

L x'IUUnai. R isurvi'
D eb t S ecu r itie s 3 0 2 ,0 5 2 3 0 5 ,7 4 6 — —- — __ 3 0 2 ,0 5 2  3 0 5 .7 4 6
L oans and R ece iv a b le s — — 5 .0 0 5 .6 8 5 4 .2 6 3 .7 0 9 — — 5 .0 0 5 .6 8 5  4 .2 6 3 .7 0 9
L o c a l  l i s t e d  D e b t
S e c u r i t i e s
N igerian  T reasury B ills . — — 6 0 ,1 8 0 5 5 .3 0 6 _ _ 6 0 .1 8 0  5 5 .3 0 6

- K iN  B on d s 1 1 7 .4 6 2 1 0 3 .9 1 6 —  . . — __ 1 1 7 .4 6 2  1 0 3 .9 1 6
4 1 9 ,5 1 4 4 0 9 .6 6 2 5 ,0 6 5 ,8 6 5 4 3 1 9 .0  J 5 5 4 8 5  1 7 9  4  7 7 f t  6 7 7

L e v e !  / . L e v e l  2 L e v e l  3  T o ta l
‘ N  *m i l l i o n A* 'm i l l i o n H  'm i l l i o n  -N- ‘m i l l i o n

L i a b i l i t i e s  m e a s u r e d  a t  F a i r  V a lu e

F o r e ig n  D e r iv a t iv e s  :
-  I’u lures C ontract — 176 : —  . 176

L o c a l  D e r iv a t iv e  F i n a n c ia l  I n s t r u m e n ts , ' ■
- Derivatives arising from Forward 1 Exchange Contracts and Swaps X _ _  — 2 4 .7 0 4 —  2 4 .7 0 4

« — 24,880 —  24,880

L e v e l 1 L e v e l 2 L e v e l 3 T o ta l
Af'm i l l i o n X  m i l l i o n •v m il iu m K  m illion

Liabilities  fa r  which  Fair Value < ’a  Trying F a i r ( 'arrying F a i r ( 'a r r y m g Lair ( ‘arrying  Fair
a re  d is c lo s e d A m oun t 1 dlue A m o u n t . 1 dine A m o u n t l  d lu e A m oun t  V alue

CuNTttAt. B a n k  o i; N usukia . /
I n s it u im ix t s

O pen Market O perations - — 2.755.611 2 .7 4 2 .8 H — 2.755.611 2.742.X II
Central Bank o f  N igeria B ills

—p 2,755,611 2.742,811
----------- 2,755,611 2,742,811
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think
3 1 s t  D e ce m b er. 2 0 1 4

F in a n c ia l  A s s e ts  M e a s u r e d  a l F a ir  Value

L e v e l  1 L e v e l  2  L e v e l  3 T o ta l  
A1 *m i l l i o n  H  ‘m i l l i o n  U  'm i l l i o n  M  'm i l l i o n

\

l'/XTHRNAI. RlLSHItVI'S
D e h i S e c u r i t i e s :

- Meld For Trading, 1.338.014 — —  1.338.014

D e r iv a t i v e s  :
- I:ulurc Contract — — —  —
- Forward Contracts — 21.099 —  21.099

L o c a l  D e r i v a t i v e  F i n a n c i a l  A s s e ts
Dcrivalivcss arising From Forward Exchange Contracts 

L o c a l  S e c u r i t ie s

2.404 — 2.404

Nigerian Treasury Bills - Availablc-lbr-Salc 3.122 — —  3.122
FGN Bonds - Availablc-lbr-Salc 128 — 128

1,341,264 23,503 —  1,364,767

Level I Level 2 Level 3 ' T o to !
W 'million___________ _________M'ml III on______________ A* ‘m illion  ,____________ #  'million

A sse ts f o r  w h ic h  h a i r  V alue  
. a re  d is c lo s e d  .

• ( 'u r r y ln g  
A m o u n t

h a i r
V a lu e

C u r r y in g
A m o u n t

F a i r
V a lu e

C a r r y in g
A m o u n t

h 'a ir  C 'a r r y in g  F a i r  
V a lu e  A m o u n t  V a lue

UXTURNAI. UlSUIIVIt 
Debt Securities 
Loans and Receivables

302.052 305.746
5.002.834 4.261,486 _

—  302.052 305.746
— 5.002.834 4.261,486

L o c a l  S e c u r i t ie s  
L o c a l  L is t e d  D e b t  S e c u r i t ie s  
Nigerian Treasury Bills 

- FGN Bonds 117.462 103.916
60.180 55.306

/

— 60.180 ' 55.306
— 117.462 103.916

419,514 409,662 5,063,014 4,316,792 _ — 5,482,528 4,726,454
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Ihink Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
3 1 s t  D e ce m b er. 2 0 1 4 M 'million N- 'million H ‘million H 'million

F in a n c ia l  A s s e ts  M e a s u r e d  a! h a ir  Value

UXTHRNAI. RUKUKVIIS
l)eht S ecu ritie s:

- Held lor Trading 1 .3 3 8 .0 14 — — 1 .3 3 8 .0 1 4
Derivatives :

- Future Contract — — — —
- Forward Contracts — 2 1 .0 9 9 — ■ 2 1 .0 9 9

Local Derivative fin a n c ia l Assets
Derivutivess arising, from Forward Fxchange Contracts 

Local Securities
— 2.4 0 4 2 .404

Nigerian Treasury Dills - Available-Ibr-Sale 3 .122 — — 3.122
FCSN Bonds - Available-lor-Sale 128 — — 128

1,341 ,264 23 ,503 — 1,364 ,767

• i  A lV e i  I 

N  'm i l l i o n
L e v e l 2 

U 'm i l l lO n
L e v e l 3 

H  'm i l l io n
T o ta l  

H  'm i l l i o n
Assets far which hair Value • ( 'arrytng hair ( 'arrying /•'air C 'arryiiiff hair ( 'arryln# hair 5- m2  q
. are disclosed . 
UXTWINAI.Rl-SUllVl*

• Amount l at ue Amount Value Amount fcilue Amount 1 dine O
a w
ui y

Dcbl Securities 3 0 2 ,0 5 2 3 0 5 .7 4 6 — — — —  3 0 2 .0 5 2 3 0 5 .7 4 6 I  S’Loans and Receivables
Local Securities
Local Listed Debt Securities

5 .0 0 2 .8 3 4 4 ,2 6 1 .4 8 6 —  5 .0 0 2 ,8 3 4 4 .2 61 .486 jQ. o —- m ir
5m
P
O

Nigerian Treasury Bills — — 60 .180 55,306 — —  60.180 55.306 H
- FGN Bonds 117.462 103.916 — _— — —  II 7 .462 103.916

. . .« 419 ,514 409 ,662 5 ,0 63 ,014 4 ,316 ,792 — —  5 ,482 ,528  4 ,726 ,454

Z
i
o
a!m

* 9
i l
1 1

5‘ %s  2

& —>  rp
C  hCJ l/>

1  £
sT *< s  c



z
5
E

L e v e l  1 L e v e l  2 L e v e l  3 T o t a l

L i a b i l i t i e s  m e a s u r e d  a t  L  a i r  V a lu e  

F o r e i g n  D e r i v a t i v e s  :

X ‘million s:.05* X 'million X 'million

- Future C ontract 

l . o c a l  D e r i v a t i v e  F i n a n c ia l  A s s e ts

176 176

D criv a iiv ess  arising Prom.Forward Ivxchange C ontracts und S w ap s • t . ' — 2 4 .704 — 24.704

. 176 24,704 — 24,880

U 'v e l  I ■ I .a v a l 2 /.a v a l 3 ' T o ta l
X  'm i l  11 o n  X 'm l lH o o  X  ' .m il l io n  _____ X  'm i l l i o n

Liabilities fo r  which Fair Value 
are disclosed

( 'ariying  
A m ount

. Fair < *arrylng  
Value A m ount

Fair 
1 dlue

( 'urryfng  
A m oun t

Fair C 'arrying  
Value A m oun t

Fair 
1 dlue

Central Dank oP N igcria  
Instrum ents
Open Market O perations —  
Central Dank oP N igcria D ills

— — ' 2.755.611 2 .742 .8  I 1 — —  2.755.61 1 2.742.81 1

, — —  2,755 ,6  II 2,742,811 ~ —  2,755,611 2,742,811
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L e v e !  3 T o la !  
N  'm i l l i o n  N  'm i l l i o n

L i a b i l i t i e s  m e a s u r e d  a t  F a i r  V a lu e •

h 'o r e iy r i  D e r i v a t i v e s  \ 
-  V'ulurc C ontract 176 '— —  176

L o c a l  D e r i v a t i v e  h ’i n a n c i u l  A s s e ts
O erivativcss arising from .forw ard U xchange C ontracts und Sw aps •__ 2 4 .704 —  2 4 .704

. 176 2 4 ,7 0 4 —  24 ,880

U v e l  I • I ,a v a l 2 L a v a l 3 ' T o ta l
X  'm i l l i o n  *  'm i l l i o n  A-'.m i l l i o n _____________rV m i l l i o n

L ia b i l i t ie s  f o r  w h ic h  h a i r  Value  
a re  d is c lo s e d

( ' a n y  in n  
A m o u n t

. h 'u lr  ( 'a r r y ln g  
V a lu e  A m o u n t

h a i r  
1 d in e

( 'a r r y in y  
A m o u n t

l - 'a i r  ( 'a r r y in y  
V a lu e  A m o u n t

h a i r  
1 d in e

Central Wank o f  N igeria  
Instrum ents
Open Market O perations —  
Central Wunk o f  N igeria Wills

— ‘ 2.755.611 2.742.81 1 — —  2.755.61 1 2.742.81 1

— —  2,755,611 2,742,811 ~ —  2,755,611 2,742,811
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d r o o p
3 1 si December. 2013

Financial Assets M easured at Fair Value

IiXTHKNAt. RlvSKRVI-S 
D e b t  S e c u r i t i e s :

- I le ld  lor I rading  

D e r iv a t i v e s  :
- F u tu re  C o n lra c t
-  F o rw a rd  C o n tra c ts

L o c a l  S e c u r i t i e s :
N ig er ia n  T reasury D ills  - A vail able-Tor-Sale 
K iN  tren d s - A v a ilab le-lor-S a le

/ • * '» '« '/  * /«C*VC*/ ^  f . f v d  5  V iM C .1
A* 'm i l l i o n  X  ‘m i l l i o n  PJ- m i l l i o n  X  ‘m i l l i o n

1 .5 0 7 ,5 4 0 —  1 .5 0 7 .5 4 0

941 -- - —  941
— 8 .2 2 8 —  8 .2 2 8

_ 3 .0 2 7 —  3 .0 2 7
133 — —  133

1,508 ,614 11,255 —  1 ,5 1 9 ,8 6 9

Level 1 
Ar 'm illion

fjive l 2 
At 'm illion

Leve! 3 
A1 'm illion

Total 
X  m illion

Assets fo r  which hair 1 allies ( 'arrying h'uir ( 'arrying h a ir ( ' arrying h a ir C 'arrying h'air
are disclosed  

Uxtuiinai. R isurvi;
A m oun t Value A m o u n t Value A m o u n t Value A m o u n t Value

D ebt S ecurities 77 .996 7 7 .5 6 7 — — — — 7 7 ,9 9 6  77 .567
l .oans and R eceivab les  

Loca l L is te d  l)eh l S e cu r itie s
— — 4 ,3 9 2 .7 7 3 4 ,4 7 6 .1 0 2 — — 4 ,3 9 2 .7 7 3  4 .4 7 6 .1 0 2

N igerian Treasury R ills — — 57 ,503 58 ,147 — — 57.503 58 .147
- K IN  B onds 111.891 89 .558 — — — — 111,891 89.558

189,887 I6 7 ;I2 5 4 ,4 5 0 ,2 7 6 4 ,5 3 4 ,2 4 9 — — 4 ,6 4 0 ,1 6 3  4 ,7 0 1 ,3 7 4

l.eve! , D'vet 2 U v e l  3 Total
X  'million X  'million X  million X  million

Liabilities fo r  which hair lollies Carrying t'a ir ( 'arrying t'a ir ( 'urryidg h'air Carrying h’air
are disclosed  

Central Bank o f  N igeria

Am ount Value A m oun t Value A m ount 1 blue A m oun t Iblue

Open M arket O peralions- 
Central Bank o f  N igeria B ills

— — 3.7 3 8 .6 3 2 3 ,7 3 7 .4 3 9 — — 3 .7 3 8 .6 3 2  3 .7 3 7 .4 3 9

— — 3,738 ,632 3 ,737 .439 — 3 ,7 3 8 ,6 3 2  3 ,7 3 7 ,4 3 9
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Hunk L e v e l  1 L eve l 2 . I.e v e t  3 T o ta l ]
3 1st D e ce m b e r . 2 0 1 3 X  'm illio n X  'm illio n X  'm illio n  X  'm illio n

f i n a n c i a l  A s s e ts  M e a s u r e d  a t  h  a i r  Value *

Kxti-knai. RitSKRvns '

D e b t S e c u r i t i e s : Z©
. - Mold lor T rad in g 1,507,540 — —  1.507.540 Hrnet
D e r iv a tiv e s  : O

H
. - F u tu re  C o n trac t — 941 —  941 _ I

^  £
-  F orw ard  C ontracts; — 8.228 —  8.228 I-. o  ox. y.

L o c a l S e c u r it ie s  : -
~  </> i  o o C

N igerian  T reasury  B ills - Avui 1 uble-I'or-Sale 3.027 — —  3.027 1 1
sl-'CiN B o n d s -  A vailable-Ibr-Sale 133 • — —  133 07 rri

zs c

• .
1,510,700 9,169 —  1,519,869 5 ?  

5- £.» n

Level .) ■ Level 1 Level 3 Total I I
X  'm il lion • -Si-.’m illion X  'm illion X  'million 5 i5

Assets fa r  which hair lollies C ’arrying ha ir C urrying h’a ir ( 'arrying h'afr ( 'arrying ha ir
ore disclose J  , A m o u n t Value . A m oun t Value A m o u n t J blue A m oun t Value =:•

\ ■.x'lr.RN.w .Ri-si-iivt-, *• 5* i
D ebt Securities 7 7 .996 77 .567 i — — 77 .996  77.567 2. ^
l .oans and R eceiv a b les — — 4 .3 9 2 .3 2 4  4 .4 7 3 .8 7 8 — — 4 .3 9 2 .3 2 4  4 .4 7 3 .8 7 8 •••

L o ca l 1.is ted  D ebt S e cu r itie s
Ci 7
S- mr$ /

N igerian  Treasury B ills __ —- ' 57 .503  58 .147 — • — 57.503 58.147
- 1:< IN B onds 111.891 89 .558 —  - — — — III  .891 89.558 *+*

' ; y  . : T *-■’ v. v 189,887 167 ,125 4 ,4 4 9 ,8 2 7  4 ,5 3 2 ,0 2 5 — — 4 ,639 ,714  4 ,699 ,150 ;? c
• • • . ?,* ?

Ijevel 1 Level 2 f  Level 3 Total
S RS3  G 

5
v : y Ai ’m illion X  'million X  'million X  million rn

Liabilities fo r  which t ’air Values ( 'arrying Loir ... Carrying ha ir C 'arrying hair ( 'arrying L o ir
njo

are disclosed ' A m ount J blue A m ount '■ Value A m oun t 1 blue A m ount Value ■ti.

Central Bank o f  N igeria ■ ■ •: • ’ ' i;
()pen  Market O perations- 3 .738 .632  3 .737 ,439 s , ---- ■ — 3 ,738 .632  3 .737 .439
Central .Bank ol'N igeria B ills ■ v. •

’• • r  • A 3 ,738 ,632  3 ,737 ,439 — — 3 ,738 ,632  3 ,737 ,439



CENTRAL BANK OF NIGERIA
N otes to the C onsolidated Financial Statements for the Y ear Ended 3 1  st D ecember. 2 0 1 4

[A ll A m o u n ts  a re  in m illions o f  S'aira. unless o therw ise sta ted)

[a] F inancial Instrum ents in  Level I
The fair value  o f  financial instrum ents traded in active markets is based on quoted market.prices at the 

itement o f  financia l position date. A m arket is regarded as active if  quoted prices are readily and regularly 
liable from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those 
ices represent actual and regularly  occurring market transactions on an arm ’s length basis. The quoted market 

! |jces used for financia l assets held by the Bank are the bid prices.on the statem ent o f  financial position date.

The instrum ents included in  Level 1 comprise primarily o f  debt securities maintained as part o f the 
icmal reserves and local listed debt securities namely the Federal Governm ent ofN igeria  (FGN) bonds.

Foreign D ebts Securities

These are deb t securities into which the external fund managers invest in. These debt securities are held for 
Kimising returns on the funds invested.

Foreign deb t securities are valued at the ruling bid prices on each reporting date. The external fund 
magers perform  the  valuation based on ruling bid prices as obtained from various vendors such as Thomson 
Biters. S & P. P ric in g  Direct. ID C  and Bloomberg. The market recognised sources include official sources such 
GEMMA fo r U n ited  K ingdom  Gilts. iBoxx.. which is the primary source for UK and Euro corporate debt 
devaluated p rices  for US G overnm ent bonds. In addition Bloom berg generic may be used as a secondary 
orce where requ ired  and for validation. A lternate providers such as Market. iBoxx and index providers such 
Barclays m ay also  be used to supplem ent pricing on particular asset s groups. The debt security prices 

Hows market p rices on a clean basis, i.e. w ithout the inclusion o f  accrued income or similar payments.

Kigerian Treasury B ills

These are Federal G overnm ent o f  N igeria securities which are fair valued based on quoted yield-to- 
lurity and days to  m aturity rates. N igerian treasury bills are fair valued based on quoted -bid prices as 
Wished on the F M D Q  website. N igerian  Treasury' Bills are classified in Level 1 in the fair value hierarchy.

The FM DQ publishes the  m arket yields on a daily basis, and the unadjusted yields are used to determine 
5 prices.

Federal G overnm en t o f  N igeria  (FG Kj Bonds -
These are Federal G overnm ent o fN igeria  securities which are fair valued based on quoted bid prices. FGN 

Iprices are p u b lish ed  on the FM D Q  website.

The FM DQ pub lishes the bid prices on a daily basis, and the unadjusted prices reflect the market value. 

[b) F in a n cia l In s trum en ts in L eve l 2

The fair va lue  o f  financial instrum ents that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the­
ater derivatives) is determ ined by using valuation techniques.

These valuation  techniques m axim ise the use o f  observable market data where it is available and rely as 
We as possible on  en tity  specific  estim ates. If  all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are 
wvable. the instrum ent is included in level 2. If  one or more o f  the significant inputs is not based on 

pcrvable m arket da ta , the instrum ent is included in Level 3.

[ The financial instrum ents falling  into this category' includes derivatives*arising from forward exchange 
Jfacts and fu tu res  contracts entered  into by the Bank and also those entered into by the Fund managers on 
Wialf o f the B ank  (th a t fall under external reserves).

The financial asse ts  and financial liabilities that fall under this categoiyare N igerian treasury bonds. loans

82.



CENTRAL BANK OF NIGERIA
N otes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the Y ear Ended 3 1st December, 2014 

{ A l l  A m o u n ts  a re  in  m illio n s  o f  X a ira , unless o therw ise  stated)

and receivables, the  B a n k ’s instrum ents arising from its open market operations and derivative assets and 
liabilities a ris in g  from  o pen  forward exchange contracts.

Long Term L o a n s

The fa ir va lues o f  loans and receivables are based on cash flows discounted using a rate based on the 
market in terest rate o f  borrow ings rate o f  13% (31st December. 2013 and 1st January. 2013 : 12%). The 
discount rate eq u als  to  th e  ruling monetary policy rate as set by the Central Bank o f Nigeria at the reporting 
dates. The fa ir  va lu es are  w ith in  Level 2 o f  the fair value hierarchy.

C entra l B a n k  o f  N ig e r ia  Open M arket Operations {OXIO) Instruments

The fa ir  va lu es o f  the  OM O instruments is determined by reference to the quoted prices of similar 
instruments., nam ely  trea su ry  b ills issued by the Federal Government o f Nigeria. The OMO Bills are similar to 
treasury b ills  in th a t th ey  are short term  discounted instruments.

The fa ir value  o f  trea su ry  bills is determined by reference to quoted yield to maturities. The same quoted 
yield to m atu rities fo r  trea su iy  bi lls was utilised to determine the fair values for OMO Bills that fall within the 
same m aturity  p rofile .

D eriva tives in  E x te rn a l R esem es

The financia l in s tru m en ts  falling info this category' includes derivatives arising from forward exchange 
contracts and  fu tu re s  c o n trac ts  entered into by the Bank and also those entered into by the Fund managers on 
behalf o f  th e  B ank . D e riv a tiv e s  arising from forward arrangements fall in. Level; 2 whileifutures fall.in Level 1 
of the fair v a lue  h ie ra rch y .

D eriva tives a r is in g  fr o m  Loca l F orw ard Exchange Contracts

These d e riv a tiv e s  a ris in g  from local forward exchange rates are valued based on the ruling spot rates on the 
statement o f  f in an c ia l p o sitio n  dates compared to the contracted forward exchange rates; In performing th e ' 
valuation, th e  spo t e x ch a n g e  rates on the.reporting date is compared to the contracted forward exchange rates 
and d iscoun ting  th e  fu tu re  cash  flow s using quoted LIBOR rates as the discounting factor. These fall in Level 
2.in the fa ir, v a lu e  h ie ra rch y . —/ --- - - --

(c) C a rry in g  A m o u n ts  th a t approxim ate Fair I blues

T he carryinig am o u n t fo r deposits, p'romissoiy notes. IMF related liabilities notes and coins in circulation/ 
IM F'related a sse ts. D ep o sit, m oney p lacem ent current account with foreign banks, domiciliary' accounts. 
sundry.:currency. .trav e lle rs  cheques, cash and cash equivalents., other assets arid other-liabilities that are ' 
financial in s tru m e n ts  app ro x im ate  their fair values hence have not been disclosed. :J '

\ d )  T ra n sfers  b e tw e e n  the  F a ir  Value Hierarchy’Categories .'V
D u n h g  th e  re p o rt in g  periods covered by these annual financial statements, there were no movements 

betw eenjevelsas a re su lt o fsign ifican t, inputs to the fair valuation process becoming observable or unobservable.

4. Capital Management

T he'B ank  d o e s  n o t have any regulator that sets and monitors its capital requirements.There is no regulation 
forth'e B ank  to 'm a in ta in  a p rescribed  ratio o f  total capital to total risk-weighted assets. The CBN Act gave .. 
a p p ro v a ls  th e ’iri c rea se  in authorised  capital o f  the Bank from N5 bjllion toNJOO billion and also provides that . 
all the cap ita l o f  th e  B a n k 'sh a ll be subscribed and held only by the Federal Government o f  Nigeria.

. - The F ed era l G o  v e m m w u o f  N igeria  j s  the sole subscriber to the paid up capital o f the Bank and its holding 
is not transferablein; who/e’.OL in p a r tn o r is T t  subject to any encumbrance.
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N o t e s  t o  t h e  C o n s o l i d a t e d  F i n a n c i a l  S t a t e m e n t s  f o r  t h e  Y e a r  E n d e d  3 1  s t  D e c e m b e r .  2 0 1 4

(A ll  A m o u n ts  a re  in m illio n s o f  X aira. unless otherw ise sta ted)

The provisions o f  the Act seek to ensure that the Government o f Nigeria continues to own a hundred per 
Bit stake to bear all financial risks and rewards.

. t o m  a n d  S im il a r  I n c o m e Group Bank
Analysis by Type 2014 

V 'million
2013

A ’million
2014 

A 'million
2013 

A 'million

oans and R eceivables
deral Governm ent Securities
inc Deposits and M oney Placem ents
set Management C orpora tion  o f  N igeria (AM CON) Bonds
sset Management C orpora tion  o f  N igeria (AM CON) Notes

68.239
26.694
13.791
.1 1 0 0

323.949

58,761
.31,507
17,9.70

369,549

68.223
26.694
13,746
2,100

323,949

58,749
31,507
17,888

369,549

434,773 477,787 434,712 477,693
aim  by G eo graph ica l L oca tion  :
Jmestic
temational

420.982
13.791

459.817
17,970

420,966
13,746

459,805
17,888

f * • . .J. - * * . 434,773 477,787 434,712 477,693

Classification o f  in terest and sim ilar income arising from financial instruments is indicated be low :
G roup

2014 2013 
A”million A  'million

Bank
2014 2013 

A 'million A 'million

tome from Instru m en ts  m easured at Am ortised Cost 
»me from Instru m en ts  m easured  at Fair Value

433.964
809

476.532
1,255

433,903
809

476.438
1,255

434,773 477,787 434,712 477,693

Merest and. Similar E xpenses

. Group
. 2014 2013 
A 'million A  'million

Bank
. 2014 2013
A 'million A 'million

N  Bank o f  N ig e ria  Instrum ents
posits .
ttst on T reasury  B onds 
^Borrowings and O verdraft C harges

373,576
21379

336
30

.5 1 0 ,1 8 5  
.. .30,510 

404 
35

373,576
22.379*«y</

336

. 510,185 
30,510 

404

p- ' ;.*• v»* " •" ' * 1 ' ' 396,321 541,134 396,291 541,099

and Commission Income>„ i • » • •*' *■ **

Group
2014 2013 

A 'million A  'million

Bank
2014 2013 

A ’million A 'million

^E x ch an g e  E arnings . 
$ '
^ issioni ‘ .

137,110
4.945

619

106,408
4,613

414

137,110
4,945

619

106,408
4.613

414
...... *•. i 142,674 111,435 142,674 111,435

. ■>
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CENTRAL BANK OF NIGERIA

N otes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 st December, 2014 
{ A l l  A m o u n ts  a re  in  m il l io n s  o f  S 'aira. unless o th erw ise  s ta ted)

Fees and  co m m issio n s represent income from processing currency. Bureau de change application and 
registration, c o m m issio n  on fund transfers and other Banks and Financial institutions application and 
licensing fees.

Foreign exchange earnings represents commission income from the sale o f  foreign currency and other 
related transac tion .

Group Bank
8. N e t  T r a d i n g  Loss 2014 2013 2014 2013

jV’million million million million

Unrealised fair value gain on other Foreign Securities at FVTPL 3.583 2.034 3.583 1034
Net realised G ain /(L oss) on Financial Assets at FVTPL 1.683 (7.761) 1.683 (7.761)
Unrealised L o ss on  D erivative Instrum ents (22.300)_______ —  (22.300)_ _ _ _ _ _ —

(17,034) (5 J2 7 )  (17,034) (5,727)

The u n rea lised  fair value gain on other foreign securities at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
includes the im pact o f  fa ir value changes due to movement in the fair value o f  debt securities classified as held 
fortrading. N e t realised gain/(loss) on FVTPL instruments Includes the results o f  buying and selling o f financial 
assets and liab ilitie s  as well as the related interest income and expense. The results o f  the fair valuation of 
foreign exch an g e  sw aps and forward contracts are included in unrealised loss on derivative instruments.

G roup Bank
9. Foreign Exchange Revaluation Gains 2014 2013 2014 2013

A-’ ’million & ’million X ‘million million

Unrealised G a in s on Foreign Exchange Revaluation 182.482 17.119 182310 17.145
Realised G ains o n  Foreign Exchange Revaluation 78.715_______ — 78.715_ _ _ _ _ _ ^

261,197 17,119 261,025 17,145

The foreign  exchange revaluation gains represent foreign exchange differences arising on the translation o f 
debt instrum ents denom inated  in foreign currencies that are included in external reserves.

G roup Bank
10. Other O perating Income .2014 2013 2014 2013

A*’ ’million A-‘ 'million A-”million A-' ’million

Other Incom e • ; • " 1 4 3 5 1 11474 14.217 11419
Dividend Incom e 3. J 00 2.842 3.100 1842
Gain/(Loss) on  S a le  o f  Property. Plant and Equipm ent 1367 (1 8 4 3 ) 1362 (1 7 7 5 )
Gain on A M C O N  B onds — 29.560 29560
iank Notes an d  Security  D ocum ents Revenue 615 (1.616) — —

Agency Incom e 140 . 351 — —
19,573 40,768 18,679 42,046

Other incom e consist o f  sale o f  bank publications and foreign exchange forms, sendee charge for Banking 
°peration. P S S D  su p p lier m anagem ent fees, penalties account for iate/non-subm ission. museum souvenir 
^es. C om m ercia l A gricu ltu re  Credit penalty and surcharges. The gain on AM CON bonds relates to early 
redemption o f  S e ries  1-4 bonds.



CENTRAL BANK OF NIGERIA
N otes to the C onsolidated Financial Statements for the Y ear Ended 3 1st D ecember. 2014

(A l l  A m o u n ts  are  In m illions o /X a lr a . unless otherw ise sta ted )

Group Bank
II.N et  L o s s e s  o n  A y a il a b l e - f o r - S a l e  F in a n c ia l  A sset s 2014 2013 2014 2013

X  'million X  ’million X  ’million A-’ 'million

Net Loss on A vailable-for-Sale  Financial Assets (44) (85) (44) (85)
(44) (85) (44) (85)

Group Bank
12. Pe r s o n n e l  E x p e n s e s 2014 2013 2014 2013

A-''million X  ’million X  'million X  ‘million

Other S taff A llow ances 53.041 40.463 52,907 40,463
Defined B enefit plan E xpenses 11.697 11.410 11,675 11,976
Wages and Salaries 13.200 11.272 10,213 8,385
Other S ta ff  E xpenses 18.525 12.218 18.525 11,734
Pension C o sts  -  D efined C ontribu tion  Plan 4.943 3,472 3,671 3,197

101,406 78,835 96,991 * 75,755

Group Bank
13. F in a n c ia l  S e c t o r  In t e r v e n t io n  E x p e n s e s 2014 2013. 2014 2013

A-’ 'million A-’ 'million A-' ’million A-''million

Financial S e c to r In terven tion  E xpenses 136.968 42.774 136,968 42.774

i 136,968 42,774 136,968 42,774

The f in an c ia l sector in tervention  expenses represent the amortisation o f  prepaid intervention expenses 
arising fro m  th e  fa ir  valuation  o f  below  market interest rate loans to financial institutions for the purposes o f 
onward len d in g  to  the agricu ltu ra l sector, the AM CON notes and the long term loans to AMCON and other 
Banks. T hese loans are extended as part o f  the CBN activities in promoting economic growth and development 
and financial m arkets stability . T he loans are for periods ranging from 2 to 10 years.

Group Bank

14. C u r r e n c y  I s s u e  E x p e n s e s 2014 
A-' ’million

2013
A-”million

2014 
A-’ 'million

2013 
X  'million

Currency Issu e  E xpenses 5,509 18,699 22,791 40,057

. 5,509 18,699 22,791 40,057
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Group Bank
15. O t h e r  O p e r a t in g  E x p e n s e s 2014 2013 2014 2013

A’ 'million A-’ ’million A1 ’million A1 ’million

Intervention A ctiv ities (N ote 15b) 66.890 25,396 66.890 2 5 3 %
Banking S ec to r R esolution Sinking Cost Fund (Note 15a) 50.000 50,000 50.000 50.000
Administrative Expenses 30.872 45,476 29,843 43,612
Centres o f  E xcellence (N ote 15c) 6,675 15,641 6,675 15,641
Repairs and M ain tenance 3,155 6,168 2,777 5,775
Professional F ees 1,714 5,330 1,553 5,080
Donations 1,195 1,273 1,195 ll273
Directors' R elated  E xpenses 490 760 480 760
Bank C harges 293 223 293 223
Audit Fees 288 230 280 230
Cost o f  Sales 10,570 12.476 —

172,142 1 6 2 ,9 7 3 1 5 9 ,9 8 6 1 4 7 ,9 9 0

15.(tf) T h e  B an k in g  sec to r reso lu tion  sinking cost fund represents the annual contribution o f CBN to 
the B ank ing  S ec to r R eso lu tio n  S inking C ost Fund. A total o f  N500 billion has been committed by CBN to 
be c o n trib u ted  o ver a 10 y ea r period  to the Fund which is to be used for the stab ility  o f  the Nigerian 
financial sy s tem .

15.(6) In tervention  activities expense represent the activities carried out by CBN for construction o f  
structures in various tertian,* and secondary schools around the country, the construction o f an International 
Convention C en tre  in A buja and other activities carried out by CBN in other parts o f  the country.

15.(c) C en tres  o f  excellence represent expenditure incurred by CBN on various structures in universities 
across the  country ' know n as “Centre o f  Excellence”.

Group Bank
16. Loan Impairment R e v e r s a l  2 0 1 4  2 0 1 3  2 0 1 4  2 0 1 3

A""million million million A"'million

Loans and R eceivables -C h a rg e  for the Year (Xote  21 a) 125 15.348 24 I5 J4 8
Loans and R ece iv ab les - Reversal o f  Provision (.Vo/e 2 la )  (24.126) (157.716) (24.126) (157.329)

( 2 4 ,0 0 1 )  ( 1 4 2 ,3 6 8 )  ( 2 4 ,1 0 2 )  ( 1 4 1 ,9 8 1 )

T his re la tes to charge for the year and reversal on the impaired loans and receivables during the year.

Group Bank
17. Impairment R e \*e r s a i / ( C h a r g e )  o x  Financial I n v e s t m e n t s  2 0 1 4  2 0 1 3  2 0 1 4  2 0 1 3

A-’1million & ’million A-*’million A-*'million

Other A sse ts (A'ole 26b) 1 ,8 3 0  ( 2 8 3 ,6 4 7 )  1 ,8 3 0  ( 2 8 3 ,6 4 7 )
1 ,8 3 0  ( 2 8 3 ,6 4 7 )  1 ,8 3 0  ( 2 8 3 ,6 4 7 )

18 Taxation
(a) In co m e  Tax E xpense  
B ank
The B an k  is not sub ject to tax in respect o f  its functions under the Central Bank o f  Nigeria Act. CBN is 

exempted from  the  paym ent o f  incom e tax under the Companies Income Tax Act. 1 9 7 9 . The G roup 's t a x  
expense aro se  from  its subsidiary'.
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Group
The charge fo r the year can be reconciled to the profit or loss as follows :

G r o u p B a n k
C u r re n t  T a x 2014 2013 2014 2013

'm il l io n rV 'm i l l io n £  'm i l l io n A' ’m i l l io n

Current Tax on P rofit in the year • 297 393 — —
Adjustment in respect o f  p rior years — (49) — —
Additional Tax C harge 1471 — — —
Total C u r re n t  T ax 2,768 344 — —

Deferred Tax (A'o te  186) 1752 (190) — —
income Tax E x p en se 6,520 154 — —

V

The additional tax charee  arose from the tax audit conducted by the Federal Inland Revenue Sendee on
Nigerian Security  Printing and M inting Company Pic. (NSPMC) between 2001 to 2012. *

The tax  on the  G roup 's profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the
weighted average tax  rate applicable to profits as fo llo w s:

• G r o u p B a n k
R e c o n c i l ia t io n  o f  E f fe c t iv e  T a x R a te 2014 2013 2014 2013

A-’ ’m il l io n A’ ’m i l l io n A’ 'm il l io n A-' 'm il l io n

1 Net Incom e fo r th e  Year 40,120 213,716 — —

J Tax C alculated at 30% 12.036 64.. 115 — —
J A d ju s te d  f o r : 
I Education Tax 36 49 _ -
1 Under/(Over) p rov ision  in p rio r years — 49 — —
1 Effect o f  Perm anen t D ifferences 3.554 (151) — —
j Tax E xem pt Incom e (9 J0 6 ) (63.908) — —

Total In co m e  T ax E x p en se  in Incom e Statem ent 6,520 154 — —

J The m ovem ent in tax at the end o f the Year is as follows :

I  ' G ro u p B a n k
I 2014 2013 2014 2013

A-' 'm il l io n A' ’m i l l io n A' ’m i l l io n A*'m il l io n

J At 1st January' 475 605 — —
J W ithholding Tax C red it N o te  utilised (2.686) — — —
J Payments du rin g  th e  year (100) (473) — —-

Additional A ssessm ent re la ting  to prior year 2.686 —

' Charge fo r (lie y e a r : 
Income Tax 261- 245. — —

1 Education Tax 36 49 —
Under/(Over) p rovision  in p rio r years 
C u rren t Incom e T ax P ay ab le

— 49
672 475 — —
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{ A l l  A m o u n ts  a re  in  m il lio n s  o fX a ir a .  unless otherw ise sta ted)

(6) D eferred  Tax

Deferred incom e taxes are calculated on all temporary differences under the liability method using an 
effective tax ra te  o f  30%  (2 0 1 3 :3 0  %).

The analysis o f deferred  tax liabilities is as fo llo w s:
Group Bank

. 2014 2013 2014 2013
X  ’million X  'million X  'million X  ’million

Deferred Tax L ia b ili t ie s :
- Deferred Tax Liability* to be settled after more than 12 months 6.586 2,834 -  -
-D eferred Tax L iability  to  be settled within 12 months — —  —  —

6,586 2,834 -  -
Classification in  the sta tem en t o f  fin a n c ia l p o s itio n :

Deferred Tax L iability
The gross m ovem ent on deferred income tax account is as fo llow s:

Group Batjk
2014 2013 2014 2013

[ X  ’million X ’million X ’million X ’million

As at 1st J a n u a r y ' 2.834 3.024 -  -
Charge/(credit) to Profit o r Loss -  3,752 (190)
As a t 31st D ecem b er 6,586 2,834 • -  —

| The m ovem ent in deferred tax liabilities during the year. without taking into consideration the offsetting
1 of balances w ith in  the sam e tax ju risd ic tion , is as fo llo w s:

Group Bank
E * • Property'. Property .

Plant and Total Plant and Total

1 Equipment Equipment . ,
1 Deferred Tax Liabilities X ’million X ’million X'm illion X ’million

[ At 1st J a n u a ry ,  2013 3.024 3.024 -
Credit to P ro fit o r  Loss (190) (190)
At 3 1 s t  D ecem b er, 2 013  _• ' 2,834 2,834 -  -
Charge to  P ro f it  o r  Loss 3,752 3,752 -
At 31st D ecem ber, 2014 6,586 6,586 -  -

The G roup  offsets tax assets and liabilities if  and only if  it has a legally enforceable right to set o ff current
tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the sam e tax authority'.

Group . .  . Bank . .
19. ExterxalH hshrv^ s , 7  . 7 7 . _ . / .. 2014 • 2013 2014 2013

.. . . . . . . . . . .  7 .  ‘ " ' X  ’million X 'm illion X ‘million X 'm illion

Convertible C urrencies (A'ote 19a and 19b) 5.837.618 6.642.771 5.837.618 6.642.771
International M onetary  Fund R eserve Tranche 23 23 23 23
Gold 19 19 19 19

5,837,660 6,642,813 5,837,660 6,642,813
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Group Bank
Maturity A na lysis 2014 2013 2014 2013

A ’million A 'million A ’million A 'million

Current 4.176.629 5,048,066 4,176,629 5,048,066
Non-Current 1.661,031 1.594,747 1.661,031 1,594,747

5,837,660 6,642,813 5,837,660 6,642,813

Group Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013

l9.(o) Convertible C urrencies C omprise : A ‘million A’'million A million A 'million

-Time D eposits and M oney-placem ents 2.168.548 3,785.567 2.168.548 3,785,567
-Other Foreign Securities. .. 2.010.388 1,649,905 2,010,388 1,649,905
•Current A ccoun ts with Foreign  Banks 1..045,436 641,975 1,045,436 641,975
•Domiciliary A ccounts 570,401 506,949 570,401 506,949
•Sundry C u rren cies and T ravelle rs ' Cheques 42,845 58,375 42,845 58,375

5,837,618 6,642,771 5,837,618 6,642,771

'Included in convertib le  currencies is an amount o f N 1.770 billion (31 December 2013: N 1.607 billion), 
which represents the  N aira value  o f  foreign currencies held on behalf o f customers in various foreign accounts 
for letters o f  c red it transac tions and other purposes. The corresponding liability for this amount is included in 
deposits. {See S o te  29).

In  convertible C urrencies .are F urther Analysed Group . Bank
by Currency as Follows : • 2014 . 2013 2014 2013

A 'million A 'million A 'million A *million

United States D o lla r 4.962,244 5,969,338 4,962,244 5.969,338
Euro - 371.373 394,201 371,373 394,201
Chinese R enm inbi 368.499 138,530 368,499 138,530
British Pounds S terling  ‘ 133.904 138.533 133.904 138.533
Japanese Yen - 1,358 1,887 1,358 1.887
Others 240 282 240- 282

........ 5,837,618 6,642,771 5,837,618 6,642,771

; - •/
Group Bank

I9.(c) Other Foreign Securities are Further 2014 2013 2014 . 20| 3
Analysed .as Follows : A 'million A 'million A million A 'million

Externally M anaged  Fund 1,706,699 1,346,216 1,706,699 .'1,571,864

Internally M anaged  Fund 303,689 303,689 303,689 78.041

2,010,388 1,649,905 2,010,388 1,649,905
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{A ll A m oun ts are in m illions o /X a ir a . unless otherwise stated)

Group Bank
19.{d) O ther Foreign S ecu rities are Further 2014 2013 2014 2013

A n alysed  as Fo llo w s  : X  'million A-' ’million X  ’million A-’ ‘million

Short Term D eposits 
Debt s e c u r it ie s :

349.399 55.200 349.399 55.200

-H e ld  for T rading 1.338.014 1.507.540 1.338.014 1.507.540
- H eld  to  M aturity  

D erivatives :
* 301052 77.996 301052 77.996

- Fu tures C ontract (176) 941 (176) 941
- Forw ard C ontracts 21.099 8.228 21.099 8.228

. 2,010,388 1,649,905 2,010,388 1,649,905

Group Bank
19.(e) C .A S H  A N D  C A SH  E Q U IV A L E N T S 2014 2013 2014 2013

X 'million X  'million A-' ’million million

Time D ep o sits  and M oney  Employed 2.168.548 3.785.567 2.168.548 3.785.567
Current A ccounts with Foreign Banks 1.046.221 643.230 1.045.436 641.975
Dom iciliary A ccounts 570.401 506.949 570.401 506.949
Cash at Bank (Local) -  1516 6.637 — —

IMF H old ings o f  Special D raw ing Rights 406.403 400.351 406.403 400.351
Other Foreign  Securities 349.399 55.200 349399 55.200
Sundry' C urrencies and T ravelle rs1 Cheques 42.845 58375 42.845 58375

; 4,586,333 5,456,309 4,583,032 5,448,417

Cash and cash equ ivalen ts comprise time deposits and balances with foreign banks, sundry currency 
balances and cash com ponent o f  investments in foreign securities.

Group

N SPM ’s C ash .and Bank Balances i 2014 2013
A-' ’million A-’ 'million

Cash in H and — —

Cash at B ank . 1 516 6.637
Cash at B ank  (Foreign) 785 1.255

C ash a n d  B an k  B a lan ces r* 3,301 7,892

* T. ;
' ..

-
•
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CENTRAL BANK OF NIGERIA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended3 1st December. 2014 
( A l l  A m o u n ts  a re  in  m il lio n s  o f  S a ira . unless otherw ise s ta ted )

T he Central B ank o f  N igeria is the fiscal and depository agent of the Federal Republic o f  Nigeria for 
transac tions with the In ternational M onetary Fund (IMF). Special Drawing Rights (SDR) are issued by the 
International M onetary  Fund (IM F) to member countries-and represent allocations available to these member 
countries in m anaging and meeting their sovereign payment obligations. Financial resources availed to Nigeria 
by the F und  are channelled  through the Bank. The Bank presents the holdings and allocations o f  the IMF SDR 
as an asset and liability, respectively, in the statement o f financial position. Repayment of the IMF loans as 
well as charges is the  responsib ility  o f  the Bank. The SDR'balances in IMF accounts are translated into Naira 
and any  unrealized  gains or losses are netted off in Other assets (receivable from Federal Government o f 
N igeria in respect o f  SD R). The IM F calculates the daily value of the SDR in terms of the United States o f 
A m erica (U S) D ollars by reference to  a valuation basket o f four currencies (USD. GBP. Euro & Japanese Yen).

Group Bonk
20(o) IM F Holding of Special Drawing Rights 2014 2013 2014 2013

A-' 'million A ’million N A million A 'million

IM F  H o ld in g s  o f  S p ecia l D raw in g  R igh ts 406,403 400,351 406,403 400,351
At 1st Jan u a ry 400.351 399.753 400.351 399.753
Interest E arned  d u ring  the  year 374 294 ■ 374 294
Interest C harged d u rin g  the year (377) • (294) (377) (294)
Revaluation 6.055 598 6.055 598
At 31st D ecem ber 406,403 400,351 406,403 400,351

M aturity  A n a lysis
2014 2013 2014 2013

A' million A 'million A"million A ’million

C urrent 406.403 400.351 406.403 400.351
406,403 400,351 406,403 400,351

20(6) Quota in International Monetary Fund 2014 2013 2014 2013
A 'million A 'million A 'million A ’million

Q uota  in In te rn a tio n a !  M o n e ta ry  Fund 421,713 412,015 421,713 412,015
At 1st Jan u a ry 412.015 421.864 412.015 4 2 1..864
R evaluation 9.698 (9.849) 9.698 (9.849)
At 31st D ecem ber 421,713 412,015 421,713 412,015

M a tu rity  A n a ly s ts
2014 2013 2014 2013

A'1million A''million A 'million ■.A 'million

N on-C urren t 421.713 4 1 2 , 0 1 5 421.713 4 11015
421,713. 412,015 421,713 412,015

T he q u o ta  in In terna tional M onetary Fund is the reserve tranche held with the IMF by member states. Jt 
represents non-in te res t bearing  instrum ent with no stated maturity.
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• ( A f tA m o u n ts  a re  in  m il l io n s  o f  S 'a ira . unless o th e rw ise  s ta ted )

20(c) IMF Related  L iabilities 2014 2013 2014 2013
A1 m il l io n A' ‘m i l l io n A-* ‘m il l io n A1 'm il l io n

plF Related L iabilities 421,727 412,028 421,727 412,028
*

 ̂1st Jamiary 412.028 421.878 412.028 421.878
Icvaluation 9t699 (9.850) 9.699 (9.850)

Ai 31st December 421,727 412,028 421,727 412,028

H aturinr A n a ly s is 2044 2013 2014 2013
A-"m il l io n A1 m il l io n A-“m il l io n A1 ‘m il l io n

Non-current 421.727 412,028 421.727 412,028

421,727 412,028 421,727 412,028

t

IMF related liabilities represent other payables owed by the Bank to the General Resources Account of IMF.

20(rf) IMF A llocation  of Special D rawing R ights 2014 2013 2014 2013
A'-’m i l l io n A1 ‘m i l l io n A**m il l io n A-’ 'm il l io n

406,458 400,402 406,458 400,402

At 1st January 400,402 399,802 400,402 399,802
Revaluation 6,056 600 6,056 600

At 31st December 406,458 400,402 406,458 400,402

Keturity A n a ly s is 2014 2013 2014 2013
ATm il l io n A-''m il l io n A-* ‘m il l io n A-* ‘m il l io n

N on-cu rrent 406.458 400,402 406.458 400.402

. - 406,458 400,402 406,458 400,402

• G ro u p B a n k
li. Loans and  Receiv.ables 2014 2013 2014 2013
[ - ■.......... •— A-"m il l io n A-' m il l io n £ ‘m il l io n £ ‘m il l io n

Asset Management Corporation o f  Nigeria (AMCON) Notes 3,027,072 2.703,123 3,027,072 2,703,123
Overdraft Balances a n d  Short Term Advances 694,071 384,429 694,070 384,429
flank of Industry Debenture (BOI) 535,000 535,000 535,000 535,000
bog Term Loans _ 349,785 307,846' ' 349,785 ' 307,846
Nigerian Treasury Bonds 7 214,189 243,826 214,189 243,826

loans to Deposit Money Banks on Commercial 138,342 165,496 138.342 , 165.496

Agricultural Credit Scheme ' * ..........
Ollier Loans...... ..........- -  ■ 86,972 174,488** 86,972 174,488

Nigeria Incentive-Based Risk-Sharing System for Agricultural 72,500 — 72.500*, 1. v. ..  ̂—

Lending Debenture (NIRSAL)
Asset Management Corporation o f Nigeria (AMCON) Bonds ___ 16,745 — 16,745

Staff Loans 9.539 9.837 9,385 9,790

Perpetual Debentures in Nigerian Export Import 1,377 1,565 1,377 -1,565

Bank (NEXIM) '
Advances to Federal Mortgage Bank o f Nigeria 9 9 9 . 9

fade Receivables 3.520 _ 1.125

5 |J2  376 4,5-13,-189 5,128,701 J ,542,317

^ Im p a irm en t Allowance (210) . ' H 26.69I) (150-716) (.23 ,867) (M 9.993)
0 0 5 .6 8 5  4,392,773 5,002,834 4,392,324
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[A ll A m o u n ts  are  in m illions o /X a ir a . unless otherw ise stated)

M aturity A nalysis Group Bank

2014 2013 2014 2013
X'm illion X'million X ‘million X ‘million

C urrent 795.981 434.791 795.980 434r79i
N on-curren t 4.209.704 3.941.218 4?206r854 3.957333

. 5,005,685 4,376,009 5,002,834 4,392,324

21.(o) Impairment Allowance for Loans and Receivables

A  reconciliation  o f  the allow ance for impairment losses for loans and receivables, by class, is as follow s:

6% Perpetual
Trade Long Debentures Other Total

Receivables Term Loan inX E X lM v Loans
G roup • A-‘ 'million X  'million X 'million X  'million A-*’million

At 1st J a n u a ry ,  2013 1,110 229,251 263 62,460 293,084
Charge fo r the  year (N o te  16) — 14.835 77 436 15348
R eversal (N ote  16) (387) (151329) — — (151716)
As a t 3 1 s t  D ecem ber, 2013 723 - 86,757 340 62,896 150,716
Charge fo r the  year (N ote 16) 101 . • — — 24 125
Reversal (N o te  16) — (23.810) (316) — (24.126)
W rite -o ff . — — (24) — (24)
As a t  3 1 s t D ecem ber, 2014 824 62,947 — 62,920 126,691

6% Perpetual
.. ----- — - - Long Debentures Other Total

Bank Term Loan inXEXLM Loans
X  'million X  'million X  'million X'm illion

At 1st J a n u a ry ,  2013 229,251 263 62,460 291,974
Charge-for the year-.(Note 16) 14.835 77 436 15.348
Reversal (N o te  16) (157329) — — (157.329)
As a t  3 1 s t  D ecem ber, 2013 86,757 340 62,896 149,993
Charge fo r  the year (N o te  16) . — —  • 24 24
Reversal XNote 16) (23.810) . (316) —- (24.126)
W rite o f fV ,/" .  . (24) — (24)
As. a t  3 1 s t D ecem ber, 2014 62,947 — 62,920 125,867

O verd ra ft B a lances a n d  Short-Term  A d va n ces:

O verd raft balances represen t lending to customers and are collateralized by Nigerian treasury bills. 
Federal G overnm ent bo n d s and bonds issued by the Asset M anagem entCorporation o f  Nigeria (AM CON).

i- . • ' s ’ I
O th er L o a n s : .. -  .
O th e r loans represen t facilities given to distressed and liquidated banks. An amount o f  N24.05 m illion 

was p ro v id ed  as a t y ear end  (2013 : N436 million).
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Long-Term L o a n s  :
Long-term loans consist o f  facilities granted to AMCON and other banks.

Bank o f  Industn> D eben ture  {BOJ) :
The Bank purchased  N 500  billion debenture stocks issued by the Bank o f Industry (BOI) in 2010. The 

nestment is to fund in terven tion  activities initiated by the Bank and was executed through the BOI. The sum 
fN300 billion w ill be applied  to power projects. N200 billion applied to the refinancing/restructuring o f 
teposit Money B an k 's existing loan portfolios to Nigerian small and medium scale enterprise and manufacturing 
tc io rwith N 35 b illion  to the  m anufacturing sector. Net amount disbursed as at 31st December. 2014 isN429 
I o n (31st D ecem ber. 2013 :N 4 5 5  billion).

6% P erpetual D eb en tu res in X igerian  Export Import Bank (XEXIM)

This refers to  C B N 's  investm ent in debentures of the Nigerian Export Import Bank (NEXIM). There was 
pmovement on th e  account d u ring  the year.

Mgeria In cen tive -B a sed  R isk-Sharing System fo r  Agricultural Lending Debenture (XIRSAL)

The Bank invested  in N 72 .5  debenture stocks issued byNIRSAL Pic in 2014. The investment is to fund 
^agricultural financing  m echanism  initiated by the Bank to unlock and upscale lending, reduce transaction 
D5ts and estab lish  susta inab le  financial delivery platforms for agricultural business in the country. The 
orpose is to spark  ag ricu ltu ra l industrialization process through increased production and processing o f the 
rater part o f  the farm  p rod u ce/o u tp u t in the country to boost economic earnings across the value chain.

IFkaxclal Liabilities at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss

flinty A na lysis

went

Group Bank
2014 

X  'million 
; 22.300

2013, 
X  million

. .2014,, 
X 'million 

22.300

- . 2013
X  'million

22,300 — 22,300 —

2014 
A 'million 

21300

2013 
X  'million

2014 
X  'million 

• 22,300"

2013
X  'million

r" ■ * ' »

22,300 — 22300

The derivatives arose from  forw ard 'exchange and swap contracts entered into bv CBN wfilch were still 
at the rep o rtin g  date. FpnVard contracts are contractual agreements to buy d r sell a specified financial 

rnient at a sp ec ific  price and  date in the future. The Central Bank ofN igeria entered into forward exchange 
I swaps co n tracts to  sell fixed am ounts o f  foreign currencies at fixed exchange rates against the Naira at 
ure dates. T hese  fo rw ards and sw aps are customised contracts that were transacted in the over-the-counter" 

The fo rw ard  exchange and  sw ap agreements resulted in both derivative assets and liabilities positions 
1 the reporting date.

The table b e lo w  show s the fa ir values o f  derivative financial instruments recorded as assets or liabilities 
tether with th e ir  no tional am ounts. The notional amount recorded gross, is the amount that is used that is 

fid  to calculate the fa ir value o f  the derivative asset or liability in response to the movements in the underlying 
rivative co n trac ts  which is the foreign  exchange rates. It is the basis upon which changes in the value o f  

tevarives are m easured . The  no tional amounts indicate the volume o f  transactions outstanding at the year end 
t o  are neither  in d ica tiv e  o f  the m arket risk nor the credit risk.
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31st D ecem ber. 2014

Forward C ontracts 
Swap C on trac ts
Total D erivatives

Fair Value Fair Value 
o f  Assets o f  Liabili­

ties
X 'm illion X'm illion  

1 4 0 4  (6.234)
—  (18,470)

Contract
Xational
Amount

X ’million

201561
670.000

Fair Value Fair Value 
o f  Assets o f  Liabili­

ties
X  ’million X  ’million 

140 4  (6.234)
—  (18.470)

Contract
Sational
Amount

X 'm illion  

201561  
670.000

2,404 (24,704) 872,561 2,404 (24,704) 872,561

At th e ir  incep tion , th e se  deriva tives involved only a mutual exchange o f  prom ises with no transfer o f 
con sid era tio n . H ow ever, th e se  instrum ents are very volatile. A relatively small movement in the foreign 
exchange ra te s  u n d e rly in g  th e  deriva tive  contracts mav have a significant impact in the income statem ent 
of CB N .

23. Investment Securities

Available f o r  S a le :
A vailable-for-Sale E quity  Investm ents (Xote 23a) 
A vailabie-for-Sale D ebt Instrum ents (Xote 23b)

23.{a) A va ila b le  fo r  Sa le  E q u ity  Investm ents 
Asset M anagem ent C orpora tion  o f  N igeria (AMCON) 
Nigeria D ep o sit Insurance C orporation  (NDIC) 
International Islam ic L iq u id ity  M anagem ent Corporation 

o f  M a lay s ia
Federal M ortgage  Bank o f  N igeria  (FM BN)

L e ss : Im pairm ent A llow ance

Group Bank
2014 2013 2014 4 2013

X  'million A ’million X  ‘million X  'million

‘ 1,380 1,380 ' 1.380 1.380
3.250 3,160 3.250 3,160
4,630 4,540 4,630 4,540

5.000 5,000 5,000 5.000
1,380 1,380 1,380 1,380

743 743 743 743
60 60 60 60

7,183 7rI 83 7,183 7,183
(5,803) (5,803) (5,803) (5,803)

1,380 1380 1,380 1380

•* ■ ■ 

.. T 'i -V  •
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impairment AII ow ance fo r  Available fo r  Sale Equity Investments

A reconcilia tion  o f the allow ance for impairment losses for available for sale equity investments, by
investments, is as follows :

International

-

Asset Islamic Federal
Management Liquidity Mortgage Total ‘
Corporation M anagement Bank o f

o f  Nigeria Corporation Nigeria
(AMCON) ofN igeria (FMBN)
N  'million N 1million N  'million A’-'million

As at 31st D ecem ber. 2013 5.000 743 60 5.803
As at 31 st D ecem ber. 2014 5.000 743 60 5.803

The available-for-sale (U nquoted) equity securities are carried at cost because there is no active market for 
the securities and their fair values could not be measured reliably' due to the unavailability o f reliable piarket 
information and valuation inputs as at the end o f the reporting period. The Bank does not intend to dispose the 
securities. T he  securities have been subjected to an impairment test by determining the discounted expected 
cash flows and com paring  w ith the carrying amount.

E q u ity  Investm ent in F edera l M ortgage Bank o f  N igeria (FM BX)

The Federal M ortgage B ank o f  Nigeria (FM BN) was set up to primarily promote the growth o f  viable 
primary m ortgage institutions to sendee the need o f housing delivery in ail parts o f  Nigeria; mobilizing both 
domestic and offshore  funds into the housing se c to r ; linking the capital market with the housing industry: 
promoting a v iab le  secondary m ortgage market to support the primary mortgage market: and management o f 
the N ational H ousing  Fund (N H F) in accordance with the provisions o f  the NHF Act. The Bank holds an 
investment in th e  equity  o f  Federal M ortgage Bank o f Nigeria (FMBN). As at 3 1 st December. 2014 the Bank 
paid a total o f  N 60m iJIion (2013 : N 60m illion). The proportion o f the Bank equity' interest to the total holding 
in this in stitu tion  is 30%. These shares are measured at cost less impairment losses.

E quity In ves tm en t in In terna tional Islamic Liquidity M anagement Corporation o f  M alaysia (IILMC)

The In terna tional Islamic L iquidity  Management Corporation is an international institution established 
on 25st O ctober. 2010  by Central Banks. M onetary Authorities and M ultilateral Organisations to create and

(issue short-term  S harrah -co m p lian t financial instruments to facilitate effective cross-border Islamic liquidity 
management. B y  creating m ore liquid Sharrah-com pliant financial markets for institutions offering Islamic 
financial se n d e es  (IIFS). the IILM  aim s to enhance cross-border investment flow's, international linkages and 
financial stability'. The Bank ho lds an investm ent in the equity 'of IILMC. As at 31st December. 2014 the Bank 
Paid a total o f  U S D  5.000.000 (2 0 1 3 : USD 5.000.000). The proportion o f  the Bank equity interest to the total 
holding in th is C orporation is 6.67% . These shares are measured at cost less impairment losses.

E quity  Investm en t in N igeria  D eposit Insurance Corporation  (ND.IC)

t h e  N ig eria  D eposit insu rance  Corporation (ND1C) was set up to insure a lldeposit liabilities o f  licensed 
■ hanks and o th e r insured  financial institutions so as to engender confidence in the N igerian banking system: to 
I give assistance  to insured Institu tions in the interest o f  depositors, in case o f  imminent or actual financial 
I difficulties o f  banks particularly  where suspension o f  payments is threatened, and avoiding damage to public 
confidence in the Banking system; to guarantee payments to depositors, in case o f  imminent or actual suspension 
°fpaym ents by insured  Institu tions up to the maximum as provided and to assist m onetaiy authorities in the
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formulation and im plementation o f  policies so as to ensure sound Banking practice and fair competition among 
insured institu tions in the N igeria. The Bank holds an investment in the equity of N igeria Deposit Insurance 
Corporation (ND1C). As at 31 st December. 2014 the Bank paid a total o f  N 1,38billion (2013: N 1.38 billion). 
The p ro p o rtio n  o f  the B ank equity-interest to the total holding in this institution is 60%. However, the Federal 
Ministry o f  Finance which holds the remaining 40%  has power to direct the relevant activities o f the Corporation. 
These sh ares are m easured at cost less impairment losses.

Equity In ves tm en t in A sset M anagem ent Corporation o f  Nigeria (AMCON)

T he A sse t M anagem ent C orporation o f  Nigeria (AMCON) was set up for the purpose o f efficiently 
resolving the non-perform ing loan assets o f  Banks in Nigeria. The Bank holds an investment in the equity o f  
Asset M anagem ent C orporation  o f  N igeria (AMCON). As at 31st December, 2014 the Bank paid a total o f 
NSbillion (2 0 1 3 :1 4 5  b illion). The proportion o f  the Bank equity' interest to the total holding in this institution 
is 50%. H ow ever, the Federal M inistry o f  Finance which holds the remaining 50% has power to direct the 
relevant activ ities as it can reject the courses o f action proposed by the CBN regarding the direction o f relevant 
activities i f  it so wishes. The CBN cannot therefore act in isolation of the M inistry of Finance. Power therefore 
lies w ith  the  M inistry  o f  Finance whose decision on the direction o f relevant activities carries the day. These 
shares are m easured at cost less im pairm ent iosses.

N otes to the C onsolidated F inanclal Statements for the Y ear Ended 3 1 st D ecember. 2 0 14
(.All A m o u n ts are in m illions o f  Naira. unless o therw ise  stated)

23.(6) Available-for-Sale Debt Instruments Group Bank
2D 14 2013 2014 2013

... . . . . . . . . . . . . . -  ~ — -  - A"million X  ’million A ''million X  ’million

Nigerian T reasu ry  Bills-A vailable-for-Sale 3,122 3,027 3,122 3,027
FGN B onds-A vailable-for-Sale 128 133 128 133
Total . 3,250 3,160 3,250 3,160

M aturity A n a ly s is . . ,
2014 2013 2014 2013

A 'million X  ’million X  ’million A' ’million

Current 3,250 3,160 3.250 3,160
N on-C urrent 1,380 1,380, 1,380 1,380

4,630 4,540 4,630 4,540

2014 2013 2014 2013

23. (c) Held to Maturity X  ’million X  ’million X ‘million A ’million

Debt In s tru m en ts  
FGN B onds 
Nigerian T reasu ry  Bills

117.462 111.891 117.462 111,891
60,180 57,503 60,180 57,503

177,642 169,394 177,642 169,394

M aturity A n a ly s is 2014 2013 2014 2013
iV' 'million A-' ’million A-' ’million A ’million

73,075 91.597 73,075 91,597
Current
N on-C urrent • - • -

104.567 77,797 104,567 77,797
177,642 169,394 177,642 169,394
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{ A l l  A n w w u s  a re  in  m il l io n s  o f  X a ira . un less o th e rw ise  s ta le d )

FGS' B onds  :
The B an k  took  up additional FGN B onds for N30.308 billion during the year (31st December. 2013 : 

N31.7 b illion) w ith  nom inal interest rates ranging between 4% -1.6.39% per annum.

Asset M anagem ent C orporation of.Nigeria (AMCOX) B o n d s :
I The B a n k 's  investm ent in AM CON Series V bonds o f N.l8.8 billion were redeemed during the year. In 
, 2013. the B an k 's  investment in Series l- IV were redeemed and refinanced by the issuance o f a 6% N3.8 trillion 

naira A M C O N  notes.
24. Investment in Subsidiary Group Bank

2014 2013 2014 2013
X 'million X  'million X  'million X  'million

Nigerian Security Printing and Minting Company Pic. (NSPMC) — — 25.588 23,575
Total In v e s tm e n ts — — 25,588 23,575

Maturity A n a ly s is
20.14 2013 2014; 2013

X  ’million X  ’million X  'million. X  ’million

Current .. — — 25,588 23,575
- — — 25,588 23,575

Percentage S h a re h o ld in g 90% 89%

- The C B N -holds 90% (2013 : 89%) equity' interest in NSPMC. The subsidiary is held by the CBN to meet its 
functions as a Central Bank and is thus o f  a longstanding nature. NSPMC is a company whose main business activity 
is the Printing and M inting o f  Nigerian banknotes and coins respectively. It also prints securin' documents and 
products for o ther businesses. The investment in the subsidiary NSPM C is carried at cost less impairment.

The C B N  has not made any capital commitments to NSPMC. The risk that the CBN is exposed to as a 
result o f  co n tro llin g  N SPM C Is lim ited to providing additional capital in the event that NSPM C fails to meet 
its own w ork in g  capital requirem ents.

: T h esu m m '^ ised rin an c ia ljn fo rm a tio n  o f  this subsidiary is provided below. This information is based on 
amounts before  in ter-com pany elim inations.

Summarised S ta tem en t o f  p ro fit or Loss a n d  other Comprehensive Incom e

Revenue 
Cost o f  S ales - 
Adrriinistrative’JExpenses 
Other O perating  Incom e ? ■
finance In co m e..... . '
finance C osts :

I W it  on Ordinary Activities before Tax
I fieome Tax
I W t  after Tax
J ^m easu rem en t o f  post em ploym ent benefit obligations 

^°tal Comprehensive Income for the year

2014 2013
X'm illion X ’million

17.896 19.743
(15,189) (15,625)

(4,717) (3,801)
279 338
235 120
(33) (87)

(1,529) 688
(4,049) (154)
(5,578) 534

267 (77)
(5311) 457
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(A l l  A m o u n ts  a re  in  m il l io n s  o f  X a ira . unless o therw ise  sta ted) ••

Attributable t o :
Equity H o ld ers  o f  P aren ts (5.323) 469
N on-contro lling  In terest 12 (12)

Sum m arised  S ta tem ent o fF in a n c ia l position 2014 2013
A"million £  ’million

Inventories and Cash and C ash Equivalents (Current) 12.634 17.761
Property. P lan t and Equipm ent and other non-current Assets 57.544 35.876
Trade and o th er R eceivables and Retirement Benefit Surplus 16.859 12.810
Trade and o th er Payables (C urrent) (9.500) (7.239)
L iabilities (N on-current) (17.283) (8.173)
Other L iab ilitie s  (C urren t) (17.565) (475)
Total E q u ity v 42,689 50,560

A ttribu tab le t o :
E q u ity  H olders o f  parents 4.1.89^1 49.777
N o n-con tro lling  Interest . 796 783

S u m m a rised  C ash 'F low  Inform ation fo r  Year Ended 2014 2013
. £  ’million A-' ’million

O perating (2.-365) 2.870
Investing •: (24.897) (2.939)
Financing 22.678 (1.285)
Net Increase /(D ecrease) in C ash and Cash Equivalents (4,584) (1354)

• ■ % %
P ro p o r t io n  o f E q u ity  In te re s t  held by N on-controlling In terests 10 11

2014 2013
A million A-’ ’million

A ccum ulated  balances o fM ateria l non-controlling interests 12 (12)
D iv idends pa id  to non-contro lling  interests 140 . 140

Group Bank
25. LwEST.vmNTLv Associates Percentage 2014 2013 2014 2013

Shareholding A ’million 'million A*’million ■.A''million
Africa F in an ce  C orporation (A FC) 42.5% 89.646 79.850 57.958 57.958
N igerian E x p o rt Im port B ank (NEXIM ) 50% 22.463 22.459 25.000 25.000
Bank o f  In d u stry  (B O I) 41% 11.240 8.378 7.655 7.655
Bank o f  A g ricu ltu re  (B O A ) 14% — — 4.027 4.027 ..
Agricultural Credit Guarantee Scheme Fund (ACGSF) 40% 1.862 I..862 1.200 1.200“
Abuja Securities and Commodity Exchange (ASCE) 59.7% —  . — 408 •.u40& ,
National Econom ic Reconstruction Fund (NERRJND) 5% — — 100 100
F M D Q -O T C  P lc  45.6% 186 — J 00 — ..
Nigeria In ter-B ank S e ttlem en t System (NIBSS) 3.6% 173 149 53 53 14

125,570 112,698 96,501,.. ...,? m ....
L e s s : Im p airm en t A llow ance [Note 25a) — — (4,535) (4,535)

125,570 112,698 91,966 91,866
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N o t e s  t o  t h e  C o n s o l i d a t e d  F i n a n c i a l  S t a t e m e n t s  f o r  t h e  Y e a r  E n d e d  3  1 s t  D e c e m b e r .  2 0 1 4
{A ll A m oun ts are in m illions o f  Naira. unless otherw ise stated)

parity A nalysis 2014 2013 2014 2013
N  'million A’ ’million K  'million A' 'million

jon-Current 125.570 111698 91.966 91.866r 125,570 112,698 91,966 91,866

j(fl) A reconciliation of the allowance for impairment losses for investment in associates, by investees, is as
illows:

Abuja National
Bank o f Security Economic

Agriculture and Reconstruct Total
{BOA) Commodity tion Fund

Exchange {NERFUNDj
knk {ASCE)

A' 'million N  'million N 'million N 'million

j it3 1 s t D ecem b er, 2013 4,027 408 100 4,535
jat31st D ecem ber, 2014 4,027 408 100 4,535

There w as an increase ofNIO O m illion in the B ank 's equity holding in FMDQ-OTC Pic during the year.

The C B N  h o ld s unlisted equity investments in various entities that are classified as associates. These are 
eld by the C B N  as part o f its functions as a Central Bank and are thus o f  a longstanding nature. The percentage 
breholdings held by the CBN  and the cost o f  the investments are presented above.

The investees are involved in activities that promote economic growth and development in Nigeria, which 
fclsform part o f  th e  C B N 's agenda and mandate. The risks faced by the CBN as a result o f  these investments 
slimited to th e -o rig in a l cost invested.

The CBN* lias no t made any  capital commitments to any o f the associates. The investees are carried at cost 
jm ^aifm ent in th e  separate  financial statem ents and equity accounted in the consolidated financial 

WemerttsT Info rm ation  about the activities o f  the associates are presented below :

f c f l  Finance Corporation {AFC) ■ ...

, AFC is a  p riv ate  sector-led Pan African multilateral development finance institution, with a capital base 
fCSSl.2 b illio n , established to be a catalyst for private sector infrastructure investm entacross Africfch. AFC 
Wonfy'provides access to finance, deal structuring and sector technical expertise, but also advisory services, 
tyfict developm ent capacity, and funding to bridge the infrastructure investment and access deficits, in the 

infrastructure sectors o f  power, natural resources, heavy industry, transport and telecommunications, all 
pica! p illars fo r  econom ic grow th across African. Its principal place o f  business is in Lagos. Nigeria. The 
p u p 's  in terest in A F C  is accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated financial statements.

[ W o n  Export Import Bank {KEXIXI)

A forem ost bank o f  its nature in African. NEXIM  was established to c$rry on the business o f provision 
fexport c red it guaran tee  and export credit insurance facilities to its clients, provision o f  credit in local 

ncy to its c lien ts  in support o f  exports., establishment and management o f  funds connected with exports, 
pim enance o f  a  foreign  exchange revolving fund for lending to exporters who need to import foreign inputs to
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facilitate export production, m aintenance o f a trade information system in support o f export business and 
provision o f  dom estic credit insurance where such a facility is likely to assist exports. Its principal place o f  
business is in Abuja. N igeria. The G roup!s interest in NEX1M is accounted for using the equity method in the 
consolidated financial statem ents.

Bank o f  Industry> [B O I)
T he B ank was incorporated as a private limited liabilttx* company under the name Nigerian Industrial 

D evelopm ent Bank Lim ited on 22nd January, 1964 and it changed its name to Bank o f Industry Limited by a 
special resolu tion  passed at an extra-ordinary general meeting held on 5th October, 2001. The principal 
activity  o f  the group is the provision o f  developm ent financing sendees. Its principal place o f business is in 
Lagos. T he G roup 's interest in BOI is accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated financial 
sta tem ents.

Bank o f  A gricu ltu re  (B O A ) v .
T he B ank  w as incorporated on 24th November. 1972 as Nigerian Agricultural Bank Limited, changed its 

name to  the N igerian A gricultural and Co-operative Bank Limited (NACB) in 1978 and later changed to 
N igerian A gricultural Co-operative and Rural Development Bank Limited (NARCDB) on 29th December. 
2000. It en larged it object clause to include the total development activities of the Peoples Bank o f Nigeria and 
also acquired  the risk assets o f  the Family Economic Advancement Program (FEAP). On 6th October, 2010 the 
Bank further changed to Bank o f  Agriculture Limited. The Bank is fully owned by the Federal Government o f 
N igeria th rough  the M inistry o f  Finance Incorporated and the Central Bank of Nigeria. The Bank grants Micro 
and M acro loans for A gricultural production, processing and marketing and other financial services, but as from 
1 st A pril. 2006  m arketing ceased to be one o f the B ank's principal activities. It also engages in the business o f  
stim ulation  o f  rural savings as well as provision o f loans to small scale enterprises in order to develop the 
econom ic base o f  the low incom e populace. Its principal place o f business is.in Kaduna, Nigeria. The Group's 
interest in B O A  is accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated financial statements.

F M D O -O TC  P ic

FM D Q  O TC  PLC  was incorporated in N igeria under the companies and Allied matters Act on 6th 
January, 2011 as a public  liability* company, and was licensed by the Securities and Exchange Comnission on 
6th N ovem ber. 2012 to perform  the function as a securities exchange and self regulatory' organisation. The 
principal activities o f  the Com pany are developing, organising and regulating the platform for listing, quotation, 
registration and trading o f  debt securities and currencies.Its principal place o f  business is in Lagos, Nigeria. The 
G roup 's in te rest in FM D Q  is accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated financial statements.

A gricu ltura l C redit G uarantee Scheme F und  {A CGSF)

The F und  was established by the Agricultural Credit Guarantee Scheme Fund Decree (No. 20) o f 1977. 
The Fund w as established for the purpose o f  providing guarantees in respect o f  loans granted for agricultural 
purposes by any bank with a view  to encourage banks to make advances to the agricultural sub-sector o f  the 
economy. T he Fund is m anaged by the A C G SF Board. The Board was dissolved in October, 2007. Its principal 
place o f  business is in A buja, N igeria. The G roup's interest in ACGSF is accounted for using the equity’ method 
in the conso lida ted  financial statem ents.

Abuja Secu rities  a n d  C om m odity Exchange (ASCE)

The A bu ja  Securities and Com modity Exchange(ASCE) was originally incorporated as a Stock Exchange 
on June 17 ,1 9 9 8 . It com m enced electronic trading in securities in May 2001 and was converted to a commodity 
Exchange on A ugust 8. 2 0 0 1 and brought under the supervision o f  the Federal Ministry o f  Commerce. The 
conversion w as prem ised on the need for an alternative institutional arrangemenl that would manage the effect
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N OTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 ST DECEMBER, 2014 
lA lt  A m o u n ts  a n  in  m il l io n s  o f  X a ira . unless otherw  ise s la ted)

1 • ' " : ' ■ • - -
p̂ricc fluctuations in the m arketing o f agricultural produce which has adversely affected the earnings of 

jnicrs since th e  abolishm ent o f  com m odity Boards in 1986. Its principal place of business is in Abuja, 
jgcria. The G ro u p 's  interest in ASCE is accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated financial 
aiements.

Sational E co n o m ic  Reconstruction F und  (S'ERFU.XD)

The Fund w as estab lished  in 1989 by the National Economic Reconstruction Act.. Cap. 254.1990 Laws 
fthe Federation (N E R FU N D  Act) with the main objective of acting as a catalyst for the rapid rise of real 
roduction en te rp rises  in the country. To accomplish this., it is mandated to provide medium to long term 
hancing to sm all and m edium  scale enterprises, with special emphasis on the manufacturing and agro-allied 
stctors. It is a lso  saddled  w ith  the responsibility o f  ‘correcting observed inadequacies in the provision of 
pedium-to long term  financing  to  small and medium scale enterprises' in the country. Its principal place of 
teiness is in A buja. N igeria. The G roup 's interest in NERFUND is accounted for using the equity method in 
(econsolidated financial statem ents.

Kigeria In te r-B a n k  Settlem ent System  (M B SS)

The N ig eria  In ter-B ank  Settlem ent System Pic. (NIBSS) was set up by the decision o f the Bankers 
Committee in 1992. as a B ankingIndustry Shared-Service, to help streamline inter-bank payments and settlement 
Khanisms. and to prom ote electronic paym ents in Nigeria. Incorporated in April 1993, it commenced 
perations on th e  13th of June 1994. The Bank holds an investment-in the equity of NIBSS. As at 31st 
Member, 2 014  th e  Bank paid  a total o f  N53 million (2013 : N53 million and 2012 : N53 million). The 
foportion o f  the  B ank equity  interest' to the total holding in this institution is 3.6%. These shares are 
Kssured -at cost- less im pairm ent losses. N IB SS is owned by all licensed Banks and Discount Houses in 

%eria. and the  C entra l Bank o fN igeria , The Board consists o f representatives o f  banks. Discount Houses and 
^Managing D irecto r o f  NIBSS with Deputy Governor (Operations). Central Bank ofNigeria. as the Chairman, 
principal p lace  o f  business is in Lagos. Nigeria. The Group's interest m NIBSS is accounted for using the 
|iity method in  th e  consolidated  financial statements.

' CENTRAL BANK OF NIGERIA

toe o f  P rofit o f  A ssociates 
o f  OCI o f  A ssociates

2014 2013
£  ’million X'million

6,227 3,407
6.458 (2.258)

. 12,685 1,149
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The following table illustrates the summarised finaneial information o f  the Group's investments in Assoeiates accounted lor using the equity
m eth o d  :

■ N ig e ria ■ A f r ic a N a t io n a l N ig e r ia n H a n k  o f H a n k  o f • A g r ic u l t u ­
3 1 st D ecem ber, 2 0 1 4  I n te r - H a n k f i n a n c e E c o n o m ic ■ E x p o r t - A g r i c i i l - I n d u s t r y E M  D O r a l  C re d it

S e t t le m e n t • ( ’o r p o r a - R e c o n s t ru c t I m p o r t ‘ f a r e . { H O I ) ore f i l e G u a ra n te e - '3
S y s te m l i o n l io n  N u n  J H a n k {H O  A ) S c h e m e mV)_j

{N IH S S ) { A / 'C ) ( N  e k e i  i n d ) <N E X / M ) l- 'u n d O
: h

{A  C G S h ’) _  X

N  'm i l l i o n N  'm i l l i o n N  ’m i l l i o n iV  'm i l l i o n N  'm i l l i o n iV  'm i l l i o n ■ A 1 'm i l l i o n 'm i l l i o n r *  p
Current A ssets 5 .753 5 7 .3 7 6 623 17.098 1 1.947 2 8 .4 4 ! 210 163 i r  Cr> oo  c
N on-eurrcnt A ssets 2 .0 1 8 3 5 1 .1 7 4 2.755 3 4 ,195 23 .855 583.71 1 1 .367. 6 .554

i  §
Current L iab ilities (1 .5 0 6 ) (4 .2 0 5 ) (4 .7 0 7 ) (5 .1 7 7 ) (1 0 .9 8 9 ) (1 8 ,6 6 4 ) (4 7 2 ) (103) ** m

N on-current L iab ilities — (1 7 7 ,8 1 9 ) (5 .7 2 1 ) (1 0 .3 5 5 ) (2 1 .9 7 7 ) (4 3 1 .3 0 0 ) (16) (1 .9 5 7 ) 3  O/  (7]

E auitv 6 ,265 2 2 6 ,5 2 6 (7 ,0 5 0 ) 35,761 2 .836 162,188 1.089 4,657 S' S Z«. n —1
G roup's carrying am ount o f the Investm ent 173 _ . 89 ,646 22 ,463 __ 11,240 186 1,862 ~ > TO

5= £  >
R evenue 2.97V ? -/ 16.339 159 , 4 .193 1.244 23.253 1.600 .593

5- £? r- 
5 5 CT

. G ross ln co m c/(l.o ss) 2.9SJ5 r 22^413 (122) 4 ,732 3 .210 27.108 1.753 593 vO 55m *
Total E xpenses (1 .4 0 4 ) s  1(6 .035) (591) (4 .6 2 4 ) (3 .3 9 5 ) (2 1 .4 6 4 ) (1 .0 4 4 ) (640) •= ■< 3  ^S o
P rofit/(L oss) before T axation  . 1,591 ; * 16,378 (713) 108 (185) 5 ,644 709 (47) C* -r, .

=5 g  -*i
Incom e fax E xpenses (445) r  ; --- — — — (454) * (161) . — 5 . s  o
P rofit for  the year .1,140 t  16,378 (713) ' ! 108 (185) 5,190 548 (47) 2 -< m

2 £  TO
Other com prehensive incom e, net o f r ,  f ; o  =  >  

5 -  m
Incom e T ax: .— 13.412 — — — . 1.858 — — rs X  3  c

Total com prehensive incom e for the year 1,140 29,790 (713) 108 (185) 7,048 548 (47) £
G roup  Share o f p rofit for the year 24 4,095 4 — 2,018 86 — L, C/> 

^  ■
G roup  share o f  other C om p reh en sive £  S

In com e r.
F. '■ ?.7fi0 — — — 758 — — ■—- m

G roup share o f  T otal C om p reh en sive ** : — B  ‘s
Incom e 24 .  9 ,795 — 4 /  ___ 2,776 86 — F

U nrecogn ised  share o f  losses fo r  the
o

C u rren t year — (36) — — — — —
C u m u lative  share o f  losses at end *•

o f  period — — (1 ,401) — — — ’ — —

D ividend R eceived i i r 2,865 . _ 50 73



Nigeria Africa National Nigerian Hank o f Hank o f Agricnltn- Abuja -
3 1  Sl D ecem ber. 2 0 1 3  Inter-Hank Finance Fconomic lir/ mrf- Agricul­ Industry ral Cretlil Securities

Settlement ( ' itrpnra- Reconstruc­ hnport ture (HOD ( ina ran tee ant!
System Han tion Fund Hank (HOA) Scheme ( ‘nilimndih ' Z

( Nt/ tSS) {AbX') ( NFRFUND) ( NH.XIM) Flint/ lixchange S
( A(  d s n (AS(  Vs) KH

f t  'm illion f t  'm illion f t  'm illion f t  'm illion f t  'm illion f t  m illion f t  'm illion tV 'm illion o
d

Current A sse ts 3 .8 5 4 3 5 .7 2 4 620 16.365 19.395 8 8 .8 0 6 163 __
Xm

^  o
N on -cu rren t A sse ts 1.941 2 6 2 ,9 7 0 3 .1 8 4 3 5 .5 6 6 15.515 5 4 0 ,4 7 8 6 ,5 5 4 "  ox
Current l /lab ilities (1 .2 2 0 ) (1 .6 4 6 ) (9 .7 7 6 ) (3 .5 8 0 ) (2 6 .5 8 1 ) (2 2 .5 4 7 ) (1 0 3 ) — 3  o  o n
N on-eurrent L iab ilities (1 8 6 ) ( 9 8 ,0 8 1) (72) ( 1 1.887) (5 ,1 3 4 ) (4 5 2 ,9 8 1 ) (1 .9 5 7 ) — 3 >5  ^
E quity 4 ,3 8 9 198 ,9 6 7 (6 ,0 4 4 ) 3 6 ,464 3 ,1 9 5 153 ,756 4 ,6 5 7 __ C5 °rs *n o
G roup’s carrying am ount o f  the Investm ent 149 79 ,8 5 0 ___ 22 ,459 __ 8 ,3 7 8 1,862 __ *  ? . m S' fc z
R evenue 4 ,1 5 9 9 ,563 290 3 .884 2 ,6 6 0 2 2 .2 4 ! 593 __

-  o  —J 
2 >S r -  >

Ciross Incom e 4.503 12,760 311 3 .900 3.153 24 .943 593 — S  Co t— 2  H
Total U xpenses (2 ,6 9 1 ) (3 3 2 ) (4 .2 3 3 ) (3 .8 3 2 ) (6 .9 8 3 ) (2 3 .2 4 6 ) (6 4 0 ) — S D3 

o S3 >
P ro fit /(L o ss) b e fo re  T axation 1,812 12,428 (3 ,9 2 2 ) 68 (3 ,8 3 0 ) 1,697 (47) — '"S m Z

Incom e Tax 1 expenses (5 7 8 ) — — — — (484) — — §. s  o5 o  -n
P ro fit for  the year 1,234 12,428 (3 ,9 2 2 ) 68 (3 ,8 3 0 ) 2,181 (47) — M  1
Other com prehensive incom e, net o f £  <  mS m jo

Incom e T ax: — (5 .3 8 9 ) — 57 — (55) •— — o ** >
Total com prehensive incom e for the year L234 7,039 (3 ,9 2 2 ) 125 (3 ,8 3 0 ) 2 ,126 (47) — S- rng  x
G roup  S h a re  o f  p rofit/lo ss for  the year 38 2,489 28 __ 871 (19) — ^  2 — oto (J
G rou p  shAre o f  o th er  C o m p reh en sive ’ s* 3

In com e —  ‘ (2 ,2 6 3 ) — 23 — (18) — — 1 °  rb rn
G rou p  sh are o f  T otal C om prehensive S  g

In com e 38 226 __ 51 — 853 (1 9 ) — 5m
U n recogn ised  sh are o f  losses for the .Pfsj

C u rren t year — — (1 ,294) — (1 ,532) — — — O
Xu

C u m u la tiv e  sh are o f  losses at end ■ i
o f  period — — (1 ,366) — (4 ,9 9 1 ) — — —

D ividend  R eceived 6 2,713 — — — 23 — —



CENTRAL BANK. OF NIGERIA
N otes to the Consolidated F inancial Statements for the Year Ended 3 1st December. 2014 

{ A l l  A m o u n ts  are  in  m illio n s  o f  N a ira . unless o therw ise stated)

Group Bank
26. Other Assets 2014 2013 2014 2013

N ’million N 'million N 'million N 'million

Sundry R eceivables {Note 26a) 1.264.957 1,406,493 1,264,957 1,406.493
A ccount R eceivab les 28376 28,376 28,376 28,376
P rep ay m en ts 15.550 3,265 12,608 260
D eposit fo r Shares 1500 2,100 2,500 2,100
Due from  A gricu ltu ral C redit Guarantee Scheme Fund 787 932 787 932
O ther R eceivab les 5.169 7,863 — —
Inventories 9323 9,866 — —

1,326,662 1,458,895 1,309,228 1,438,161
Less : Im pairm ent A llow ance (266) (35.754) (33,924) (35.754) (33,924)

M aturity  A n a lysis
1,290,908 1,424,971 1,273,474 1,404,237

C urrent 30.043 21,595 12,609 861;
N on-cu rren t 1.260,865 1,403,376 1,260,865 1,403,376

26(o) Sundn> receivables are fu r th er analysed as fo llo w s :
1,290,908 1,424,97 L 1,273,474' 1,404,237

O ther S undry  A ssets 1,264,433 1,406,493 1,264,433 1,406,493
C heques in C learing 524 — 524 —

1,264,957 1,406,493 1,264,957 1,406,493

S undry  receivab les include prepaid staff expenses ofN 13.7 billion (31st December. 2013: N12.9 billion) 
and p rep aid  in te rven tion  expenses o f  N1.237 trillion (31st December. 2013 : .N1.387 trillion) arising from 
below  m arket in terest loans issued to staff members and loans to the financial sendees sector respectively. The 
loans to  financia l services sector are in pursuit o f  the CBNfs developmental agenda and also to ensure financial 
m arkets stability .' T hese prepaid expenses are amortised over the tenor o f the respective loans.

<■
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26(b) i m p a i r m e n t  A l l o w a n c e  f o r  O t h e r  A s s e ts

A  reco n c ilia tio n  o f  the a llo w a n ce  for im pairm ent for o th er a sse ts , by  c la ss , is as fo llo w s  :

A t 1st J a n u a ry , 2 0 1 3

Cron/)
Due from  

Agriculture
Account Sundry  • Credit

Receivables Receivables Guarantee
Schem e

h'und
hi'million hi'm illion hi ’million

2 7 ,7 7 5  2 8 9 ,4 2 5  371

Rank
Due from  

Agriculture
Total Account Sundry Credit Total

Receivables Receivables Guarantee 
Schem e  

h'und
hi 'million A‘-'million hi'million hr'million hi'mi IIion

3 1 7 ,5 7 1  2 7 ,7 7 5  2 8 9 ,4 2 5 371 317 ,571
C harge'for the year ( N o te  l 7) 
R eversal during the year ( N o te  17) • —  (2 8 3 ,6 4 7 )

_
(2 8 3 .6 4 7 ) —  (2 8 3 .6 4 7 ) —  (2 8 3 ,6 4 7 )

A s a t 3 l s r  D ecem b er, 2 0 1 3 2 7 ,7 7 5 5 ,7 7 8 371 3 3 ,924 2 7 ,775 5 ,7 7 8 371 33 ,924
C harge for the year ( N o te  17) 600 1,408 — 2.008 600 1,408 — 2.008
R eversal * — •— (178)- (178) — — (1 7 8 ) (178)
A s at 3 1 st D ecem ber, 2 0 1 4 2 8 ,375 7 ,1 8 6 193 3 5 ,754 28,3^5 7,186 193 35 ,754

o
_  3  
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CENTRAL BANK OF NIGERIA
N o t e s  t o  t h e  C o n s o l i d a t e d  F i n a n c i a l  S t a t e m e n t s  f o r  t h e  Y e a r  E n d e d  3  1 s t  D e c e m b e r .  2 0 1 4

{A ll Amounts are in millions ofXaira , unless otherwise staiecf)"'

27 . Intangible Assets

Cost

At 1st J a n u a r y ,  2013
A dditions

Computer
Sofware

million

12,838
1.692

Group 
Software 

under 
Develop- 

ment 
million .

479
1,797

Total

A1 million 

13,317 
3,489

Computer
Sojware

X'million 

12,815 
1,692

Bank
Software

under
Develop­

ment
million

479
1,797

Total

X'million 

13,294 
3,489

At 3 1 st D e ce m b er, 2013
A dditions
R eclassifica tions

14,530
5

117

2,276
312

(117)

16,806
317

14,507
5

117

2,276
312

(117)

16,783
317

At 3 1 s t D e ce m b er, 2014 14,652 2,471 17,123 14,629 2,471 17,100

A m ortisa tion
At 1st J a n u a r y ,  2013
A m ortisa tion

6,476
2.918

— 6,476
2,918

6,456
2,915 __i

6,456
2,915

At 3 1 s t D e ce m b er, 2013
A m ortisa tion
At 31«t D e c e m b e r  2014

9,394
1688

— 9,394
2,688

9,371
2,688

— 9,371
2,688

12,082 — 12,082 12,059 — 12,059
r \ l  J X o l  J L /v v C l I lU t l   ̂ Jb\J JL

Ket B o o k  Value
A t  e t  M o n o  vn h o r  O f i l  A 2,570 2,471 5,041 2,570 2,471 5,041
a i  j i s i  u e c e m D e r, x i/iH
A t  e t  T\ o  f* a m  K a h  t  7 5,136 2,276 7,412 5,136 2,276 7,412
a i j i s i  u e c e m o e r ,  z u io

M aturity 'A na lysis Group
2014 2013 

^•m illion X'million

Bank
2014 2013 

X  ’million X  'million

C urrent 5,041 7,412 5,041 7,412
N o n -C u rren t - 5 ^ r 7,412 5,041 7,412
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Plan/
28. PROlMiKTIY, Pl-ANT AND KOUIPMI-NT M achinery Furnitures C apita1

a n d a n d ( \im p u ter M otor Work in Total %
land 11 lidding E quipm ent hillings E quipm ent 1 ch id es Progress R

Group X  'm illion X  'm illion X  m illion X  'm illion X  m illion X  m illion X  'million X  'million o
h

Cost
At 1st January, 2013 1,671 109,136 63,275 5,167 4,474 6,782 190,074 380,579

l o~~ o

Additions — 8.712 2.117 578 280 1.493 42.651 55.831 S o cs c
Reel assi 11 cations — (354) 107 326 25 12 (116) — I ITransfers — — 60 — — — (60) — C5 O
Disposals — — . (215) (423) (36) (92) (2.323) (3,089) ^  £ m
At 31st December, 2013 1,671 117,494 65,344 5,648 4,743 8,195 230,226 433,321 /  z  

^ 6  -f^  > 73
Additions — 5.027 3.717 280 562 1.228 63.835 74.649 S ' "  >S' ^  I—
Reclassifications — 58,664 482 210 191 798 • (60.345) — S £5  3 CD

—  Transfers 
<o Disposals

—
_ (2,004) (62) (107)

(304)
(126) (1)

(304)
(2.300)

m >>. 
*'-N m Z
S' s  0

At 31st December, 2014 1,671 181,185 67,539 6,076 5,389 9,791 233,715 505,366 S- -n CJ

D epreciation and  Im pairm ent ~ ^  2  5 . - 0ftAt 1st January, 2013 — 17,098 24,787 3,567 2,409 2,703 • — 50,564 S £  TO

Depreciation charged for the year 
Disposals

— 2.287 4,899 . 
(38)

. 460 
(91)

1.035
(12)

1.074 
(87) _

9.755
(228)

%  m  >
2 gm

At 31st 6ecember, 2013 — 19,385 29,648 3,936 3,432 3,690 — 60,091 -i. o
53 -

Depreciation charged for the year — 6.018 5,643 477 1.006 1.283 — 14.427 S "  5  a
Disposals — — (612) (49) (83) (401) — (1.145) m

s  s
At 31st December, 2014 _ 25,403 34,679 4,364 4,355 4,572 — 73,373 03
Net Hook Value NJ
At 31st December, 2014 1,671 155,782 32,860 1,712 ,  1,034 5,219 233,715 431,993
At 3lst December, 2013 1,671 98,109 35,696 1,712 1,311 4,505 230,226 373,230
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CENTRAL BANK OF NIGERIA
N o t e s  t o  t h e  C o n s o l i d a t e d  F i n a n c i a l  S t a t e m e n t s  f o r  t h e  Y e a r  E n d e d  3 1 s t  D e c e m b e r ,  2 0 1 4

(A l l  A m o u n ts  are in m illions o f  Xaira, unless otherwise stated)

fatitriftf A n a ly s is  

Ion-Current 

5. Deposits

toernment D ep o sits  :
■Capital and Settlem ent A ccounts 
•Domiciliary A ccounts 

Hher A ccounts (.Yote  29a)
financial In s titu tio n s :
•Current and Settlem ent A ccounts 
-Banks' R eserve  A ccounts

1foturitv A n a ly s is

went

\q) Other A cco u n ts  arefitrther analysed as fo llo w s:

Petro leum  P ro fits  Tax N aira Funding Account 
excess C ru d e  Oil proceeds (N aira funding) Account 

ters o f  C red it C onso lidated  A ccount 
: (External C red ito rs) F u n d in g  A ccount 

:ial R eserve A ccoun t 
widry A cco u n ts  .•... *
IPC/NAPIM S C a lh  Call A cco u n t _ ! •

overeign W ealth Fund 
)sit fo rN a ira  D raft A c co u n t

Group Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013

X m illion A’ ’million X  ’million X ’million

431.993 373,230 374,448 337,355
431,993 373,230 374,448 337,355

Group Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013

X  ’million X  'million X  ’million X  ’million

862.060 1,077,488 862,060 1,077,488
570.402 506,949 570,402 506,949

1.199.238 1.099,950 1,199,238 1,099,950

564.179 1,227,870 564,179 • 1,22,7,870
3.583.636 2,216,552 3,583,636 2,216,552
6,779,515 6,128,809 6,779,515 6,128,809

2014 '2013 2014 2013
X  ’million X  ‘million X  ’million £  ’million

6.779.515 6,128,809 6,779,515 6,128,809
6,779,515 6,128,809 6,779,515 6,128,809

786.663 552.981 786,663 552.981
162,735 185,065 162,735 185,065
160,323 171,326 160,323 171,326
38,731 41,198 38,731 41,198

'  "33,002 136,881 33,002 136,881
11,363 6,131 11,363 6,131
6,353 6,352 6.353 6.352

V '* .* 49 — 49 —
~ 19 16 19 16

1,199,238 1,099,950 1,199,238 1,099,950
' § • » ; . •

29(b) F o re ig n  cu rrency  deposits  held on behalf o f  customers for Letters o f  Credit transactions and other 
l^rposes are  an a ly sed  b e lo w : •'

Group Bank

I^ e r  A c c o u n ts . 
V ic i l ia rv  A c co u n ts

2014 2013 2014 2013
X ’million X  ’million X  ’million X  ’million
1,199,238 1099,950 1,199,238 1,099,950

570,402 506,949 570,402 506.949

1,769.640 1,606,899 1.769,640 1,606.899
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G o vernm en t D eposits  :
T h is  rep resen ts the position  o f  the accounts of Ministries. Departments and Agencies of the Federal 

Government o f  N igeria  w ith the  Central Bank ofNigeria.

F in a n c ia l In s titu tio n s:

T he cu rre n t and settlem ent accounts represent transaction and deposit balances o f financial institutions 
I with th e  C e n tra l B ank o fN ig e ria .  T he B anks' reserve accounts represent the statutory minimum reserve 

(SMR) o f  co m m erc ia l banks w ith the Central Bank o fN ig eria . This is a statutory ratio for monetary 
policy. C o m m erc ia l banks are  requ ired  to hold a prescribed percentage of their total deposits with the 
Central B an k  o fN ig e ria .

O th er A c c o u n ts :
T he  o th e r  accounts largely represent deposits held on behalf o f customers.

Group K • Bank

CENTRAL BANK OF NIGERIA
N o t e s  t o  t h e  C o n s o l i d a t e d  F i n a n c i a l  S t a t e m e n t s  f o r  t h e  Y e a r  E n d e d  3 1  s t  D e c e m b e r .  2 0 1 4

(A ll A m o u n ts  are in m illions o f  S'aira. unless otherwise stated)

30. Central Bank of Nigeria Instruments 2014 2013 2014 2013
-  ...... £  ’million A ’million A ’million A' ’million

Open M ark et O perations— Central Bank ofN igeria  Bills 2,755,611 3.738,632 2,755.611 *3,738,632
Central B ank  o fN ig e ria  Prom issory Notes — 461 .... . — 461

2,755,611 3,739,093 2,755,611 3,739,093
Central B a n k  o f  N igeria  P rom issory  N otes : •
At 1st J a n u a r y 461 11,658 461 11,658
Issued d u rin g  the year — 436 — . 436
Redem ption in  the y ear (461) (11.658) . (461) . (11,658)
Accrued In tere st ■ — 25 — 25
At 3 1 st D e ce m b er — 461 .— 461
Open M arket O perations— Central Bank o f  Nigeria B ills :
At 1st J a n u a r y 3,738,632 2,580,482 3,738,632 2,580,482
Issued d u rin g  the  year 
R edem ption during  the year 
Deferred In tere st and P repaym ents
At 31st December

M aturin’ A  n a lvs is

Current

8.369.171 10.060.375 8,369.171 10.060.375 
(9.296.675) (8,814,321) (9,296,675) (8,814.321) 

. (55,5.1.7) (87,904) (55,517) (87,904)

2,755,611 3,738,632 2,755,611 3,738,632.

Group Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013*..:

N  'million N  'million A-* 'million A* 'million
2,755,61! 3,739,093 2,755,611 3.739.093
2,755,611 3,739,093 2,755,611 3,739,093

C e n tra ! B a n k  o f  N ig eria  Prom issory’N o te s :

T h e  C B N  issued Promissory' N otes to Ecobank Nigeria Pic., as part o f  .a Purchase and Assumption 
A rrangem ent o v e r the p rivate  sector deposits and certain assets o f  defunct African International Bank Limited. 
The p ro m isso ry  nptes  have a tenor o f  i year and carry coupon rates Of 10.8%-15%.
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CENTRAL BANK OF NIGERIA

N otes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the Y ear Ended 31st D ecember. 2014 
(All Amounts are in millions of Naira. unless otherwise stated)

^  1 ' . 1 “ I . — i i - -

Open M a rke t O perations— C entral Bank o f  Nigeria B ills :
Central B ank  o f N igeria  b ills represent bills o f the Bank issued to Commercial Banks as a liquidity 

management tool and as a m eans o f  implementing monetary policy. These instruments have tenors ranging 
(rom 7 day s-3 6 4  days and e a rn ’ d iscount rates ranging from 11.55% -13.30%  per annum.

Group Bank
31. Bank N otes and Coins in Circulation 2014 2013 2014 2013

A’ ’million A 'million A-' 'million A 'million

Holes 1.796.518 1,775,032 1,796,528 1,775,035
Coins ’ 1,314 1,270 1,314 1.270

1,797,832 1,776,302 1,797,842 1,776,305
\ia(urin; A n a ly s is

2014 2013 2014 2013
A 'million N 'm il lion A 'million A 'million

Current 1,797,832 1,776,302 1,797.842 1,776,305
1,797,832 1,776,302 1,797,842 1,776,305

Bank N o te s  and C oins in circulation  represents the face value o f notes and coins in circulation. Notes and
Coins held by  the  Bank are cash in main vault, interm edian' vault and cashier/teller at the end o f financial year
tave been n e tted  o ff against the liability for notes and coins in circulation because they do not represent
currency in c ircu la tion . '

32. Employee B enefit

The tab le  below  outlines w here the G roup 's post emplovment amounts and activitvare included in the
financial sta tem en ts.

Group Bank
Employee d e fin e d  Benefit (A ssets) L iabilities recognised 2014 2013 2014 2013
in S ta tem en t o f  F inancial P o s itio n : A 'million A 'million A 'million A 'million

Refined B enefit Pension Schem e (Note.32. i). (28.751) (7.622) (28,665) (7.622)
*$set in th e  S ta te m en t o f  F in a n c ia l Position (28,751) (7,622) (28,665) (7,622)

ty n e d B e n e fit  L ia b ilitie s : .
defined b en efit Pension  Schem e (N ote  32.1) — 160 — —
^ •e m p lo y m e n t. Gratuity Schem e (N ote  32.2) 77,543 6L591 77.543 61,591
°̂fig Service A w ards (Note 32 .3 ) 809 889 750 826

^•em ploym en t’Medical Aid Scheme for Pensioners (Note 32.4) 3,304 4.043 3.304 4,043
^fined C o n trib u tio n  Liabilities 235 32 235 32

^ability in th e  S ta tem en t o f  F in a n c ia l Position 81,891 66,715 81,832 66,492

E m p lo y ee  B enefits  L ia b ilitie s 53,140 59,093 53,167 58,870
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CENTRAL BANK OF NIGERIA
N otes to the Consolidated F inancial Statements for the Y ear Ended 31 st D ecember. 2014

{A ll A m o u n ts are in m illions o f  Sa ira . unless otherw ise sta ted)

Group Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013

A 'million
Set B en efit Expenses reco g n ised  in Income Sta tem ent:

A' 'million A 'million A' 'million

Defined B enefit Pension Schem e {Note 32.1) (1.019) (412) (1,039) 163
Post-em ploym ent G ratuity Schem e {Kote 32.2) 12.134 11,186 12,134 11,186
Long S e n d e e  Awards (N ote 32.3) 61 36 59 27
Post-employment Medical Aid Scheme for Pensioners (A o/e 32.4) 521 600 521 600
Total D e fin ed  B enefit E x p en ses 11,697 11,410 11,675 11,976
Defined B en efit C ontribu tions 4.943 3,472 3,671 3,197

Remeasurement (Gains) Losses in other Comprehensive Income :

16,640 14,882 15,346 15,173

Defined B en efit Pension Schem e (Note 32.1) (15.354) (1.709) (15.087) (1 -787)
Post-em ploym ent Gratuity Schem e (A’ote 32.2) 6.822 (6,809) 6.822 (6,809)
Post-emplo>ment Medical Aid Scheme for Pensioners (Aore 32.4) (933) (1,018) (933) ‘ (1,018)

(9,465) (9,536) (9,198) (9,614)

T he  p ro fit o r loss charge included within personnel expenses includes current service cost, interest cost, 
past se rv ice  co sts  and rem easurem ent gains or losses (other long term employees benefit) on defined benefit 
schemes.

M aturity .A nalysis Group ■ Bank
2014 20 1 3 ' ‘ 2014 2013
million A 'million A-' 'million A"million

Current 23 5 32 235 32
N on-current 52,905 59,061 . 52,932 58,838

53,140 59,093 53,167 58,870

32.1. D e fin e d  B enefit P ension  Schem e

T he C en tra l B ank o f  N igeria  operates a Defined Benefit PensionScheme for the retired employees o f the 
Bank. T h is schem e is fun d ed  and will be terminated only at the death o f the last pensioner. An actuarial 
valuation h as  been perform ed to determ ine the B ank's obligations to the pensioners for each of the three years 

J and rhe a m o u n ts  have been appropriately  recognised in the statement o f  financial position.

j T h e  a sse ts  o f  the p en sio n  plan are held in a separate fund administer by the Trustee to meet the shortand 
I long term  p lan  pension liab ilities o f  retired employees. The Trustee is required to act in the best interest o f  the 
[ beneficiary. T he  Trustee is appointed  by the Group. The Trustee select adviser to the fund and are also 

responsible fo r  p reparing  p ro p e r accounting records o f  the scheme., safeguarding assets and taking reasonable 
steps to p rev en t and detect fraud and any other irregularities. The trustee actively monitors how the duration 
and the  ex p e c te d  y ield  o f  the  plan  assets match the expected cash flows from pension obligations. The Trustee 
have n o t ch a n g ed  the  p ro cesses used to manage risks from previous period, no derivatives are used to manage 
risk. T he T rust deed specify■ th at assets o f  the fund are not available to fhe Group for other uses and must be '' 
used o n ly  to  fund  defined p ension  obligation.
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CENTRAL BANK OF NIGERIA
N o t e s  t o  t h e  C o n s o l i d a t e d  F i n a n c i a l  S t a t e m e n t s  f o r  t h e  Y e a r  E n d e d  31st D e c e m b e r ,  2014

(A ll  A m o u n ts  are in m illions o f  Xaira. unless otherwise stated)

The a m o u n ts  recognised in the statement o f financial position are determined as fo llow s:

Group Bank
2014 2013 2014 ' 2013

X ’million * X'million X  million X'million . 
>jcsent V alue o f  Funded O bligations 62.927 83.853 61.713 82.173
lair Value o f  P lan  Assets (91,678) (91315) (9Q;378) (89.795)
Surplus o f  F u n d e d  P lan s (28,751) (7,462) (28,665) (7,622)

The m axim um  econom ic benefit available is in the form o f a combination of reduction in future contribution 
nd refunds.

The m o v em en t in the defined benefit liability over the year is as fo llow s:

Present Fair Value Present Fair Value
Value of of Plan Total Value of of Plan Total

Obligationf Assets Obligation Assets
X'million million X million million X 'million X'ini II ion

At 1st J a n u a r y ,  2013 93,922 (92,014) 1,908 92,215 (90,964) 1,251
Interest E x p en se ! 1.479 — 11,4-79 11,289 — 11,289
Expected re tu rn  on Plan A ssets — (11.891) (11,891) — (11,126) (11.126)

11.479 (11.891) (412) 11.289 (11.126) 163
&measurements:

(GainyLoss from change in Assumptions (5.848) — (5,848) (5,753) — (5,753)
Actuarial L o sses on  plan A ssets — 10.592 10,592 — 10.515 10.515
Experience A d justm en t (6.453) — (6,453) (6,549) — (6,549)

(12.301) 10.592 (1,709) (12,302) 10.515 (1,787)
mployer C o n tribu tions — (7.249) (7,249) — (7,249) (7,249)
enefits P ay m en ts (9.247) 9,247 — (9,029) • 9,029 —

r
(31st D e ce m b er, 2013 83,853 (91,315) (7,462) 82,173 (89,795) (7,622)

At 1st Jan u a ry , 2014 83,853 (91,315) (7,462) 82,173 (89,795) (7,622)
/interest E x p en se 10.591 — 10,591 10,390 — 10,390
fepected  re tu rn  on plan A ssets — (11,610) (11,610) — (11,429) (11,429)

10.591 (11,610) (1,019) 10,390 (11,429) (1,039)
jkmeasurements:

j!Gain)/L oss from change in Assumptions (5,659) — (5,659) (5,530) —  • (5,530)
/Actuarial L o sses on plan A ssets — 7,386 7,386 — 7,198 7,198
1 Experience G ains (17.081) — (17,081) (16,755) — (16,755)

(22.740) 7,386 i(15,354) (22,285) 7,198 (15,087)
Employer C on tribu tions — (4,916) (4,916) ■ — (4,916) (4,916)
Benefits P ay m en ts (8.777) 8,777 — (8,565) 8,565 —

\ t 3 l s t  D ecem b er, 2014 62,927 (91,678) (28,751) * 61,713 (90,378) (28,665)

The rem easurem ents o f  the ne t defined benefit liability (asset) relates only changes in financial assumption.
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Asset Mix
T h e  breakdow n o f  the  fund 's net assets as provided by the Group is shown in the table b e lo w :

CENTRAL BANK OF NIGERIA
N o t e s  t o  t h e  C o n s o l i d a t e d  F i n a n c i a l  S t a t e m e n t s  f o r  t h e  Y e a r  E n d e d  3 1 s t  D e c e m b e r .  2 0 1 4

' { A f t  A m o u n ts are  in m illions o fX a ir a . unless o thenrise  sta ted)

Category■ 2014 Percentage 2013 Percentage
A 1 'million X ’million A  ’million A  ’million

E quities * 9.050 9.80% 11.235 9.12%
M o n ey  M a rk e t 36.450 39.48% 54.224 44.00%
B onds 46.655 50.53% 55.700 45.20%
O p en /C lo sed  hybrid funds — 0.00% 303 0.25%
Cash 62 0.07% 249 0.20%
O thers H I 0.12% 1.522 1.24%
G ro ss V a lu e  o f  A ssets 92,328 100.00% 123,233 100.00%
Less : A m o u n t due to active  staff (650) -0.70% (31.918) -25.90%
N et A s se t 91,678 9930% 91,315 74.10%

T h e  breakdow n o f  the  fund 's net assets as provided by the Bank is shown in the table b e lo w :

Category 2014 Percentage 2013 Percentage
A-*’million X 'million A ”million X 'million

E q u ities 9.050 9.94% 11.235 923%
M o n ey  M a rk e t 36.450 40.04% 54.224 44.55%
B onds 45.353 49.82% 55.700 45.76%
O p en /C lo sed  Hybrid Funds — 0.00% 303 0.25%
Cash 62 0.07% 243 0.20%
O th ers 113 0.12% 8 0.01%
G ro ss  V a lu e  o f  A ssets 91,028 100.00% 121,713 100.00%
Less : A m o u n r due to active  s ta ff (650) -0.71% (31,918) -26.22%
N et A s se t 90,378 9929% 89,795 73.78%

T h e  sign ifican t actuarial assum ptions were as fo llo w s:
Bank >

Financial Assumptions Long Term Average 2014 *2013
D isco u n t R a te  (p.a) 15% 13.5%
R ate  o f  P en sio n  Increase(p.a) 4.5% 4.5%
A verage R a te  o f  Inflation (p.a) 9% 9%

D em o g ra p h ic  A ssum p tio n s

A ssu m p tio n s regard ing  future m ortality are set based on actuarial advice in accordance with published 
s ta tis tic s  an d  experience in each territory.
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CENTRAL BANK OF NIGERIA
N o t e s  t o  t h e  C o n s o l i d a t e d  F i n a n c i a l  S t a t e m e n t s  f o r  t h e  Y e a r  E n d e d  3 1 s t  D e c e m b e r .  2 0 1 4

[A ll A m o u n ts  a re  in m illio n s o f  Sa ira . unless otherw ise stated)

Age of 
Pensioner

o f  P ensioners

Average
Expected

Future
Lifetime
(years)

55 22
60 19
65 15
70 12
75 9

The B a n k ’s s e n s i t iv i ty  o f  th e  d e fin ed  benefit ob lig a tio n  to  changes in the w eighted  principal 
sumption is  :

Impact ofDefined Benefit Obligati on

a Decrease 
A-' 'million

Change in Impact of Impact of Impact of
Assumption an Increase a Decrease an Increase

se: A-' 'million A1 'million A: 'million
mint Rate
Dsion Increase  R ate 1% (2.736) 3.027 (4.740)
ortality E x p erience 1% 3.655 (3 3 2 4 ) 6.178

lyear ( U 3 7 ) 1.109 (1.876)

5.326 
(5.540) 

‘ 1.842

The abo v e  sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions 
instant. In p ractice , th is is un likely  to occur and changes in some o f the assumptions may be correlated. When 
M atin g  th e  sensitiv ity  o f  the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same 
nhod (p resen t value  o f  the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the 
i of th e  reporting  period) has been applied as when calculating the pension liability recognised within the 
itcment o f  financia l position.

The m ethods and types o f  assum ptions used in preparing the sensitivity' analysis did not change compared 
ie p rev io u s  period .
The fo llo w in g  paym ents are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future y e a rs :

fain the  nex t 12m onths(nex t annual reporting period) 
Ween 2 and 5 y ears 
«"een 5 and 10 years
tfal e x p ec te d  p a y m e n ts

2014 
A-* 'million 

8.59 J 
34,268 

149.549

2013
A**'million 

10,269"' 
41,201 

192.874
192,408 244J44

The average  dura tion  o f  the  defined benefit plan obligation at the end o f  the reporting period is 7.43 years 
}13: 7.93 years)

’2. Post-employment Gratuity Scheme

The G roup  operates a non-contributory, lump sum. defined  benefit gratuity scheme. Under this scheme, 
alifving em ployees are entitled to gratuity  payments on exit from the bank after completing 5 years o f  
M’nuous serv ice  w ith the Bank. Under the previous framework, the Bank recognised yearly liabilities in its
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financia l statem ents under this scheme. However, under IFRS it has engaged the services o f  an Actuary to 
estim a te  the  gratuity p lan 's  accrued liability for each of the years. This plan is unfunded and the amounts 
reco g n ised  in the statem ent o f  financial position have been appropriately recognised.

T h is  p lan is governed by the employment laws o f the Bank. The level o f benefits provided depends on the 
m e m b e r 's  length o f  sendee  and salary at exit from the Bank. The fund has a legal form of a foundation and It is 
g o v e rn e d  by  the B oard  o f  T rustees, w hich consists o f an equal number of employers and employee 
rep resen ta tiv es .

T he  am ounts recognised in the statem ent o f  financial position are determined as follows :

Group Bank
2014 2013 . 2014 2013

A"million A 'million A 'million A 'million
77,543 61,591 v 77,543 61,591

32 .2 . Post-em ploym ent G ratuity Scheme— continued 
T he m ovem en t in the  defined benefit liability over the year is as fo llo w s:

CENTRAL BANK OF NIGERIA
N o t e s  to t h e  C o n s o l i d a t e d  Financial S t a t e m e n t s  for t h e  Y ear E n d e d  31 s t  December, 2014

(A ll A m ounts are in m illions o f  S a ir  a. unless o therw ise stated)

A t 1 s t J a n u a ry ,  2013 
C u rre n t S en d ee  Cost 
In terest E x pense

R e m ea su rem en ts :
G ains from  change in assum ptions 
E x p erien ce  A djustm ent

B e n efits  Paym ents 
A t 3 1 s t  D ecem ber, 2013

A t 1 s t  J a n u a ry ,  2014
C u rren t S en d ee  Cost 
In terest E xpense

R e m e a su re m e n ts :
G ains from  change in.financial assumptions 
E x p erien ce  A djustm ent

Benefits Payments
Past Sendee Costs
At 31st December, 2014

Group Bank
Present Present
I alue of 1 alue of

obligation obligation
A ’million A 'million

57,629 57,629
3.756 3.756
7.430 7,430

11.186 11.186

(1177) (1177)
(4.632) (4,632)
(6.809) (6.809)

(415) (415)
61,591 61391

61,591 61391
4.044 4,044
8.090 8,090

11134 12,134

(1793) (7.793)
14.615 14,615
6.822 6.822

(4.690) (4.690)
1.686 1,686

77,543 77,543

P r e s e n t  V alue o f O b lig a tio n s
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CENTRAL BANK OF NIGERIA
N o t e s  t o  t h e  C o n s o l i d a t e d  F i n a n c i a l  S t a t e m e n t s  f o r  t h e  Y e a r  E n d e d  3 1  s t  D e c e m b e r .  2 0 1 4

(A ll A m o u n ts  are in m illions o f  S a ira . unless otherw ise stated)

The rem easurem ents o f  the net defined benefit liability relates only changes in financial assumption. 
The s ig n ifican t actuarial assum ptions were as follows:

i Bank
long Term A verage 2014 2013

discount R ate  (p .a ) 15% 13.5%
Average P ay  Increase  (p.a) 12% 12%
Average R ate o f  Inflation (p.a) 9% 9%

A ssum ptions regarding future m ortality are set based on actuarial advice in accordance with published
statistics and experience in each territory.

Sample
A 'umber o f  
deaths in

Age year out o f
llorta/it}- in  S ervice oflO.OOO

lives

25 7
30 7

* 35 9
•• 40 14

1 45 26

Withdrawal fr o m  Service Bank Rate

Age Band 2014 2013
Less than o r equal to 30 5% 5%

31-39 4% 4%
40-44 3% 3%
45-60 0% 0%

T he B ank 's sensitivity o f  the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumption i s :

Impact o f  D efined Benefit Obligation

2014 2013
Change in Impact o f Im pact o f Impact o f Impact o f

Assum ption an Increase a Decrease an Increase a Decrease
W 'million A 'million A* 'million & 'million

1% (4.017) 4.479 (4.556) 5,055
1% 4.794 (4.359) 5,518 (5.038)

ly ea r 904 (1,399) 86 (77)

Base :
Discount R ate  
Salary Increase  R ate  
M ortality E xperience

T h e  ab o v e  sensitiv ity  analysis is based on a change in an assum ption while holding all other assumptions 
constant. In p ractice , this is un like ly  to occur and changes in some o f  the assumptions may be correlated. When 
calculating the sensitiv ity  o f  the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same 
m ethod (presen t value  o f  the defined  benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit m ethod at the 
end o f  th e  reporting  period) has been applied as when calculating the pension liability recognised within the 
statem ent o f  financial position.
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T h e  m ethods and types o f  assum ptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared 
to the  p rev ious period.

CENTRAL BANK OF NIGERIA
N o t e s  t o  t h e  C o n s o l i d a t e d  F i n a n c i a l  S t a t e m e n t s  f o r  t h e  Y e a r  E n d e d  3  1 s t  D e c e m b e r .  2 0 1 4

(A ll A m o u n ts  are  in m illions o f  Xaira. unless otherwise stated)

T h e  follow ing paym ents are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future y ea rs:
2014 2013

. X  'million X  ’million
< V/ithin the  next 12months (next annual reporting period) 5.943 3.325

Betw een 2 and 5 years 45.945 31.693
Betw een 5 and 10 years 110.767 84.745
Total expected payments 162,655 119,763

T he average duration o f  the defined benefit plan obligation at the end o f the reporting period is 7.81 years 
(2013: 8.58 years).

32.3. L ong Service Awards K'

T he Central Bank o f  N igeria provides its employees with a long service award at their tenth, twentieth, 
th irtie th  and thirty-fifth year o f  em ploym ent with CBN irrespective o f grade and department.,This is a 
g raduated  fixed sum cash award paid to sta ff after they have worked for any o f these length o f  service with the 
B ank. C B N  engaged the services o f  an A ctuary to determine its liability with respect to this scheme at the end 
o f  th e  reporting  period.

T h e  am ounts recognised in the statem ent o f  financial position are determined as fo llow s:

Group Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013

A-''million X'million X'million X'million

P resen t V alue o f O bligations ~ 809_ _ _ _ _ _ 889_ _ _ _ _ _ 750_____ 826

The m ovem en t in the defined benefit it;

At 1st January 2013
C u rren t S e n d e e  Cost 
In tere st E x p en se

R e m e a su re m e n ts :
G ains fro m  ch ange  in assum ptions 
E x p erien ce  G ains

Benefits Payments
At 31st December, 2013

ility over the year is as fo llow s:
Group Bank

Present Present
Value o f Value o f

obligation obligation
X  ’million X  \million

1,005 938
89 84

120 112
209 196

(83) (79)
(90) • (90)

(173) (169)
(152) (139)

889 826
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CENTRAL BANK OF NIGERIA
N o t e s  t o  t h e  C o n s o l i d a t e d  F i n a n c i a l  S t a t e m e n t s  f o r  t h e  Y e a r  E n d e d  3 1  s t  D e c e m b e r .  2 0 1 4

{A ll A m o u n ts are in m illions o f  Saira . unless otherwise staled)

At 1st J a n u a r y ,  2014 889 826
Current S e rv ice  Cost 81 79
Interest E x p en se - 103 103

184 182
Rem ea su rem en ts ;

j Gains from  change in assum ptions (64) (64)
Experience G ains (59) (59)

(123) 023)
Benefits P aym en ts (141) (135)
At 3 1 s t D ecem b er, 2014 809 750

The s ig n ific a n t actuarial assum ptions were as fo llo w s:
Financial A ssu m p tio n s Long  Term A verage ■ "2014 2013
Discount R a te  (p .a) 15% 13.5%
Average P a y  Increase (p.a) 12% 12%
Average R ate  o f  Inflation (p.a) 9% ‘ 9%

A ssu m p tio n s  regarding future mortality are set based on actuarial advice in accordance with published
statistics and  experience in each territory.

K umber o f

i Sample deaths in1
Age year out o f

j M ortality in  S ervice o f 10.000
lives

25- 7
30 7

• 35 • 9
40 14
45 26

W ithdraw al fr o m  Service Rate

Age Band 2014 2013
Less than or equal to 30 5% 5%

31-39 4% 4%

r 40-44 3% 3%
/ 45-60 0% 0%

The Bank’s sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumption is:

Impact o f  Defined Benefit Obligation

Base;
D iscount R ate  
Inflation R a te

2014
Change in Impact o f  Impact o f  

Assum ption an Increase a Decrease 
A-'*million A' 'million

(37) 421% 
1% 47 (43)

2013
Impact o f  Impact o f  

an Increase a Decrease 
million A mill ion

(43) 48
53 (49)
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T he above sensitiv ity  analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions 
constan t. In practice, th is is unlikely to occur and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When 
ca lcu la tin g  the sensitiv ity  o f  the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the .same 
m ethod  (presen t value o f  the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the 
end o f  th e  reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the pension liability recognised .within the 
sta tem en t o f  financial position .

T h e  m ethods and types o f  assum ptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared 
to  th e  p rev io u s period. * . : .

T he average duration  o f the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 6.21 years 
(2 0 1 3 :6 .3 0  years) - .

3 2 A . P ost-em ploym ent M edical A id  Scheme fo r  Pensioners

T he M edical Aid Schem e is a schem e that is currently being operated by the Bank-for the benefits of the 
p en sio n ers  o f  the form er defined benefit scheme which is made up o f pensioners (i.e. those who no longer work 
fo r the  Bank)..The pensioners are paid a fixed sum o f amount twice every year, in January and July of the same 
year. T h ese  paym ents m ade to the  form er employees are a function of the beneficiaries' gfede whi je in 
e m p lo y m en t. T - . :

V • . . ! fi •/! /: f u i ' - -

T h is  p lan is governed by the employm ent laws o f the Bank. The fund has a legal form o f a foundation and 
It is gov ern ed  by. the B o a rd '‘of. T rustees; which consists.of an equal num benof employers and employee 
rep re sen ta tiv es . « . . . . • •  ..*,*■

T h e  am ounts recognised in the statem ent o f  financial position are determined as foIlQws: * . •••> * - ='

CENTRAL BANK OF NIGERIA
N o t e s  t o  t h e  C o n s o l i d a t e d  F i n a n c i a l  S t a t e m e n t s  f o r  t h e  Y e a r  E n d e d  3  1 s t  D e c e m b e r .  2 0 1 4

{A ll A m o u n ts are in m illions o fS a ir a . unless otherwise stated)

Group Bank
2014 

A' ‘million

* P r e s e n t  V alue of O b lig a tio n s  3.304

T he.m o v em en t in the defined benefit liability over the year is as fo llow s:

A t  1 s t J a n u a ry ,  2013 
In terest E xpense

G ain from  change in assum ptions ‘ 
E x p erien ce  A djustm ent

Benefits Paid
At 31st December, 2013

2013 2014 
1million A 'million

4,043 3,304

2013 
A 'million

4,043

Group Bank
Present Present
Value o f Value o f

obligation obligation
A* ’million _ A 'million

4,807 4,807
600 600
600 600

(575) (575)
(443) (443)

(1.018) (1.018)
(346) (346)
4,043 4,043
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CENTRAL BANK OF NIGERIA 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 st December, 2014

(Ait Amounts are in miltions o f Salra. unless otherwise staled)

At 1st J a n u a ry , 2014 4,043 4,043
Interest E x p en se 521 521

m ea su rem en ts :
521 521

Gain f ro m  change in assum ptions (406) (406)
Experience A djustm ent (527) (527)

j (933) (933)
Benefits P a id (327) (327)
At 31st D ecem b er, 2014 3,304 3,304

T h e  rem easurem em s o f  the net defined benefit liability relates only changes in financial assumption. 

T h e  sign ifican t actuarial assum ptions were as fo llo w s:

Financial A ssu m p tio n  ' . v
Long T erm  A v erag e 2014 2013
Discount R ate  (p .a) 15% 13.5%
Average Pay Increase  (p.a) - N/A N/A
Average R a te  o f  Inflation (p.a) 9% 9%

A ssum ptio n s.reg ard in g  fu ture m ortality are set based on actuarial advice in accordance with published 
statistics and  experience in each territoiy.

^Demographic A ssum ptions, s. v . i

Mortality o f  P ensioners

Average
Age expected

Pensioner fiiture
lifetime

v« 1. (years)

55 22
. 69 . 19

65 15
70 12
75 9

T h e  B a n k 's  s e n s i t iv i ty  o f  th e  d e fin e d  b en efit ob lig a tio n  to changes in the w eighted  principal 
a s su m p tio n  Is  : ‘

Base: . ?
Discount R o te  ■ 
Inflation'Rate- 
MortaJity Rate
• /•#. f ‘

Impact o f  Defined Benefit Obligation
Change in  Impact o f Impact o f Impact o f Impact o f

Assum ption an Increase a Decrease an Increase a Decrease
A* 'million A' 'million A* 'million A-' million

1% (228) 261 (308) 355
1% 282 (250) 378 (331)

A ge rated up by]year 87 87 (116) (966)
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T he above sensitivity  analysis is based on a change in an assumption while h o ld ing^! other assumptions 
co nstan t. In practice, th is is unlikely to occur and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When 
ca lcu la tin g  th e  sensitivity  o f  the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same 
m eth o d  (p resen t value o f  the  defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the 
end  o f  the  reporting  period) has been applied as when calculating the pension liability recognised within the 
sta tem en t o f  financial position.

T he m ethods and types o f  assum ptions used in preparing the sensitivity* analysis did not change compared 
to  th e  p rev io u s period.

T he average duration o f  the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 8.61 years 
(20 1 3 : 9.79 years).

N o t e s  t o  t h e  C o n s o l i d a t e d  F i n a n c i a l  S t a t e m e n t s  f o r  t h e  Y e a r  E n d e d  31 s t  D e c e m b e r .  2014
(A ll A m o u n ts are  in m illions o f  S'aira. unless otherwise stated)

32.5. D efined  Contribution Liabilities Group N Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013

D efined  C ontribu tory  S c h e m e : A 'million A-' 'million A-' 'million A 'million
A t 1st January. 32 24 32. 24

C o n trib u tio n s 5.403 4.464 5.403 4.464
A m o u n t rem itted to selected Pension Fund Administrators (5.200) (4.456) (5.200) (4.456)

A t 3 1 s t D ecem b er 235 32 235 32

33. Other Liabilities Group
2014 2013

Bank
2014 2013

A-”million A ' ’million X ’million A’ ’million

S u n d ry  Payables 717.909 746,072 717,608 742,905
Surplus payable to Federal Government o f Nigeria (Note 33a) 152.654 152,654 152,654 152,654
In te re s t Payable — — — —
A ccrued  C harges 17.784 23,685 17,515 22,390
D e p o s it  fo r Shares 5.085 5,116 — —
T rad e  P ay ab les 2.920 1,145 — —
D iv id en d  Payab le 140 140 — —
IB R D  - SM E  Loan 51 51 51 51
B a n k  B o rro w in g s and O verdraft 20,493 — — —

917,036 928,863 887,828 918,000

33.(o) S u rp lu s  payab le  to  F ederal G overnment o fS ig eria Croup
2014 2013

Bank
2014 2013

A-' ’million A ’ ’million & ’million A: 'million

A t 1st January. 152:654 30,495 152,654 30,495

T ran s fe r  from  Incom e Statem ent —  . 152,354 — 152,354

P a id  d u rin g  th e  year — (30,195) — (30,195)

At 3 1 stDecember 152,654 152)654___152,654___152,6.~



N otes to the Coxsoiid'at ed Finascial Statements for the V ear Ended 31 st December, 2014 
(A ll Amoiiius are in millions o f Saira. unless otherwise stated)

.— • ~ — •"  ....... . " ~ -  — T.------------------------------------------------- ——------------- --- -------------------  1

T h e  N e t incom e for the year in d u d e s  unrealised gains on foreign exchange balances t»1 N I82.310 
million (2 0 1 3  : N 17,145 m illion) and unrealised fair value gain on other foreign securities amounting to 
113,583 m illio n  (2013 : N 2 .034  m illion). Therefore, the realised component of the net income stated above 
is a d e f ic it  o f  N  150,471 m illion  fo r the year (2013 : surplus o f  H \ 90.442 million), hence.-no surplus is 
available fo r d is trib u tio n  in 2014 .

CENTRAL BANK OF NIGERIA

Group Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013

Maturity A n a lysis rv 'million A’ ’million A-' ’million H"million

Current 173.358 177.484 170.169 175,044
Don-current 743,678 751,379 717,659 742.956

917,036 928,863 887,828 918,000

B anking  Sec tor R esolution S inking  Cost F u n d : v
T he B ank ing  sector resolution sinking cost fund represents the total contributions by Eligible Financial 

Institutions (:iE F F )  to establish the Banking Sector Resolution Cost Fund ("the Fund") in Nigeria under the 
Asset M anagem ent C orporation Act and the memorandum of understanding signed by the EFls with the 
Central B ank  o f  N igeria, the Asset M anagem ent Corporation o f Nigeria ("AMCON").

S u n d ry  P a y a b le s :

Sundry' payables represent balances not yet disbursed on BOI debenture., balances held on behalf o f  Debt 
M anagement O ffice as regards the proceeds from issued bonds, balances payable to AMCON and other 

(payable am o u n ts . Included in the sundry' payables are treasury' related payables amounting to H499.895 
million (2013 : N 2 9 9 .5 16 m illion). Furthermore, out o f the amount sown in sundry payables in 2013. N250.738 
million rep re sen ts  an am ount payable to the Asset Management Corporation o f Nigeria (“AMCON").

A c c ru e d  C h a rg e s :
A ccru ed  charges consist o f  productivity  bonus., intervention fund on national security and other expense 

accruals.

14. S h a r e  C a p it a l  a n d  R e s e r v e s

Authorised Shares— O rd in a ry S h a re o fN l each

'issued and  fu lly  p a id  u p :
Ordinary' S h are  o f  H I -each

At 3 1 s t D e ce m b er

Group Bank
2014

H 'million
2013 

A-’’million
2014

A-' ’million
2013

A-’ 'million

100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000

A-’ ’million A-’ ‘million 4-' ‘million A-’ 'million

5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000

& 'million X ’million A-' ’million £ ’million ,
5,000 5.000 5,000 5,000

S e c tio n  4 ( I )  o f  the Central Bank o f  N igeria Act No. 7 .2007 gave approval to the increase in authorised 
^pital o f  th e  B an k  from  N5 billion  to H I 00 billion. Section 4 (2) provides that all the capital o f  the Bank shall 
^  subscribed  and  held  only by th e  Federal Government o f  Nigeria.
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N otes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the Y ear Ended 31st December. 2014 

{A ll Amounts are in millions of Xaira. unless otherwise stated)

T he Federal Governm ent o f  Nigeria is the sole subscriber to the paid up capital of the Bankand its holding 
is n o t transferable in w hole or in part nor is it subject to any encumbrance.

Availabie-for-Sale R e s e n t
T he available-for-sale reserve comprises the cumulative change in the fair value of available-for-sale 

in v estm en ts until the investm ent is derecognised or impaired.
F o reig n  C urrency Transaction Reserve •

T he foreign currency translation reserve comprises translation o f investment in associates.

R eta in ed  Earnings
R eta in ed  earnings refers to 20%  o f  the operating surplus of the Bank. It also includes accumulated losses in the 
p e r io d s  w here the CBN posted net losses. Retained earnings and losses are cumulative from year to year.

35. C ash  G enerated from O perating A ctivities Group

V.
Bank

• 2014 2013 2014 2013
Sotes  A ’million A’ 'million X'million* X'million

N e t in co m e fo r the y ea r 40,120 213,716 35,422 209,621
A d ju stm en ts  f o r  non Cash Item s  :
D ep rec ia tio n  o f  Property. P lant and Equipment 28 ” 14.427 9.755 11,191 8,009
A m o rtisa tio n  o f  Intangible Assets 27 2.688 2.918 ~ 2.688 2,915
Loss/(profit) on disposal o f  Property. Plant and Equipment 10 (1.367) 2.843 (1.362) 2,775
U nrealised  gain/(Joss) on Financial Assets at FVTPL 8 18.717 (2.034) 18,717 (2,034)
U nrealised  gains on Foreign Exchange Revaluation (182.482) (17.119). (182,310) (17,145)
Share o f  Profit o f  Associates (6,227) (3,407) — —
D erecogn ition  o f  Property. P lant and Equipments 304 —• — —
D efined  B enefit Expense 9 11..697 11.410 11,675 11,976

(102,123) 218,082 (103,979) 216,117

C h a n g e  in O perating A ssets a n d  L ia b ilities :
Increase  in Loans and Receivables 21 (612.912) (375,017) (610,510) (378,063)
(Increase)/D ecrease in External Reserves 19 (63.317) 57,626 (54.756) 55,354
(lncrease)/D ecrease  in Investm ent Securities - AFS 23 5.770 (2,460) (134) (189)
D ecrease /! Increase) in O ther A ssets 26 134.063 (1.345.659) 130,763(1344,717)
Increase/(D ecrease) in D eposits 29 650.706 (241,667) 650,706 (241,667)
D ecrease/(Increase) in Central B ankofN igeria

Instrum ents 30 (983.482) 1,146,953 (983,482) 1,146,953
In crease  in B ank N otes and C oins in Circulation 31 21.530 144.798 21.537 144,799
D ecrease  in O ther L iabilities 33 (11.827) (61,693) (30,172) (59,340)
N e t  C ash  F low s used in O p e ra tin g  A ctivities (859,469) . (677,119) (876,048) (676,870)

(961,592) (459,037) (980,027) (460,753)
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N otes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the Y ear Ended 31 st December. 2014 

{A ll Amounts are in millions of Xaira. unless otherwise slated)

36. Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

To m eet the  financial needs o f customers, the Bank enters into various irrevocable commitments and 
tontingent liab ilities including financial guarantees. Even though.these obligations may not be recognised in the 
statement o f  financia l position, they do contain credit risk and are therefore part of the overall risk of the 
Group {see  N o te  3 .2.2).

j j6.(o) L e g a l Proceedings

T h ere  w ere a num ber o f  legal proceedings outstanding against the Bank as at 31 December 2014 with 
contingent liab ilitie s o f  N 3.777 billion (31st December, 2013 : N619 billion). The Directors estimate that 
provision m ad e  fo r the contingent liabilities will be adequate to meet any liability that may crystallise.

T he  D ire c to rs  are also o f  the opinion that all known liabilities and commitments which are relevant in the 
assessment o f  th e  state o f  affairs o f  the Bank have been taken into consideration in the preparation of these 
financial sta tem en ts.

Group Bonk
2014 2013 2014 ,2013

Capita! a n d  O th er Comm itments A 'million A 'million A million A ’million
In tervention F unds 668.260 652,210 668,260 652,210
FX fo rw ard s and C urrency Swaps 2,404 — 872,561 —
Capital C o m m itm en ts 58,563 • 78,253 58,563 78,253
Furniture. F ittin g s  and E quipm ent 1,337 553 — —

730,564 731,016 1,599,384 730,463

In te rv e n tio n  funds balance ofN 668 billion (31 December 2013: N652 billion) represents commitments 
made in resp ec t o f  Com m ercial Agricultural Credit Guarantee Scheme. Small and Medium Enterprises Credit 
G uarantee Schem e, Pow er and Aviation Fund. SME/Manufacturing Sector Intervention Fund and other 
in terven tion  activ ities  o f  the Bank.

F o re ig n  exchange forw ards and currency swaps refer to the amounts that the Bank has committed to 
provide to  counterparties  in forward exchange contracts.

T he  cap ita l com m itm ents are in respect o f  property plant and equipment, and the funds to meet the 
capital co m m itm en ts  will be sourced from internally generated funds.

36b O p e ra tin g  Lease com m itm ents  - Bank as lessee

T he G ro u p  leases various houses under non-canceliable operating lease agreements. The lease terms are 
betw een tw o and five years, and majority o f  these lease agreements are renewable at the end o f  the each lease 
period a t m ark e t rate.

T h e  future, aggregate m inim um  lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follow s:

No la te r  than  J y e a r
l a t e r  than  I year and no later than 5 years 
la te r  than 5 years

Total

2014 2013
A*'million A  'million 

102 105
33 10
70 —

205 115
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(c ) G uarantees

T h e  G roup  has provided credit risk guarantee to Small and Medium Enterprises (SME) and agricultural 
d e rs  in case the borrow ers fail to repay the loans when they fall due and also a guarantee of interest 
ay m en t i f  the borrow ers repay the loans within the tenor of the loan. The maximum amounts guaranteed as 
l i s t  D ecem ber. 2014 isN 4 .85  billion (31st Decem ber.2 0 1 3 ;N 5 .12billion).

I E vents after the Reporting Date

| N o  m aterial events occurred between the reporting dates and the sign off dates requiring disclosure in. or 
.u stm en t to. the annual financial statements for the year ended 31st December 2014.

CENTRAL BANK. OF NIGERIA
N o t e s  t o  t h e  C o n s o l i d a t e d  F i n a n c i a l  S t a t e m e n t s  for t h e  Y e a r  E n d e d  3  1 s t  D e c e m b e r .. 2 0 1 4

(A ll A m oun ts are in m illions o f  Saira. unless otherwise stated)\t& - _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _

I Related Party Transactioxs

C entra l Bank o f  N igeria  is wholly-owned and controlled by the Federal Government o f Nigeria (FGN).

T h e  Federal Governm ent ofN igeria  also contols the Ministry of Finance Incorporated., other Government 
in is trie s. D epartm ents and Agencies (MDAs). Nigeria Securities. Printing and Minting Company (NSPMC). 
jvvada L im ited . These entities (in addition to the key management personnel of the Bank) are :

( /)  A d va n ces  to the F ederal Government ofX igeria

T h e  transac tions with the Federal government and fellow subsidiaries (under control of the Federal 
o v ern m en t) are exem pted due to their nature. However material transactions and balances are disclosed.

Group
2014 2013

I A”million X1million
239.146 134.814
352.855 104.332

p e n in g  B alance 
AdditionsI
'lo s in g  B a la n ce 592,001 239,146

( if) K ey  .1 fanagem ent Compensation

I T he  B a n k 's  key m anagem ent personnel comprises-the Governor, the 4 Deputy Governors and 12 Non 
jx ec u tiv e  D irectors o f  the Bank.

T he  com pensation  paid or payable to key management for employee services is shown below :

Group
2014 2013

A 'million X 1million 
339 199la la rie s  and  O ther Short-Term  Em ployee Benefits 

Total

(//'/') B alances w ith K ey M anagem ent Personnel

L o a n s  and advances
I

339 199

Group
2014 2013

A 'million A 'million 
462 647
462 64 7
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T h e  B an k  has applied the exem ption granted by IAS 24 relating to the disclosure requirements in relation 
re la ted  party  transactions and outstanding balances with (a) a government that has control and significant 

flu en ce  oy.er the  B ank (b) another entity that is a related part)’ because the same government has control or 
g n ifican t in fluence over both the Bank and the other entity. Hence, the Bank has not disclosed transactions 
id b a la n ce s  w ith  its subsidiaries and associates as they are controlled by the Federal Government of Nigeria 

^hich  a lso  co n tro ls  the Bank. T he B ank’s collectively significant transactions with the Federal Government of 
■iigeria an d  o th e r  entities controlled, jo in tly  controlled or significantly influenced by Federal Government 
rises fro m  th e  norm al business activities o f  the CBN including government deposits held by the Bank, 
ivestm ent in securities issued by the Federal Government and its agencies, transfer to the Federal Government 
i c o m p lian ce  w jth  the Fiscal R esponsibility  Act among others.

CENTRAL BANK OF NIGERIA
N otes to the C onsolidated F inancial S tatements for the Y ear E nded 31 $t December. 2014

.. . - (AH A m o u n ts  a re  in m illions o f  X aira. unless otherwise stated)
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